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Frank Edelblut Christine Brennan
Commissioner Deputy Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHiRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATiON

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301
TEL. (603) 271-6133
FAX (603) 271-1953

October 7,2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellness, Office of
Social & Emotional Wellness to amend a sole source contract with National Alliance on Mental

Illness New Hampshire, (NAM! NH), Concord, NH (vendor code 166630), by increasing the
price limitation by $85,482.88 from $309,851.15 to $395,334.03, to provide additional support
services in the expansion of New Hampshire's System of Care (SOC), effective upon Governor
and.Executive Council approval through September 29, 2020. This contract was originally
approved by Govemor and Council on October 2, 2017 (Item #37), amended on June 20, 2018
(Item #132) and renewed on June 19, 2019 (Item #211). 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the account titled System of Care Grant for FY 20,
and are anticipated to be available in FY 21, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office without further Govemor and Council approval, if needed and
justified:

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073 FY'20 FY'21

Grants - Federal ^ $62,169.37 $23,313.51

EXPLANATION

The DOE would like to amend a sole source contract. This contract was originally sole sourced,
due to the federal grant requirement that the agency identify a Lead Family Contact prior to
submitting the application. A Request for Letter of Commitment (RFC) was advertised on the
Bureau of Student Wellness Website: www.nhstudentwellness.org; and the Department Of
Education website ~ Office of Student Wellness, on March 23 through March 31, 2016. The
Office of Student Wellness only received one request, which was submitted by NAMI NH.
NAMI NH agreed to work with the New Hampshire Department of Education to fulfill the
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of2

requirements of the grant. NAMINH has been an active partner in the NH Children's Behavioral
Health Collaborative steering committee and Safe Schools/Health Students and Project
Advancing Wellness and Resilience in Education (AWARE) state management teams.

The purpose of this contract amendment is to improve mental health outcomes for children and
youth (birth to 21 years of age) with serious emotional disturbances (SED) and their families.
This program will support the delivery of Family Peer Support Services to families in the Lakes
Region and North Country who are participating in NH's High-Fidelity Wraparound service.
This service is a key component of the Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for
Children with Serious Emotional Disturbances. SOC supports the provision of mental health and
related recovery support services to children and youth with serious emotional disturbances and
those with early signs and symptoms of serious mental illness first episode psychosis, and their
families.

NAMI NH is evaluated by the Department through the monitoring of the services provided. In
addition, they submit reports to the Department on the progress in meeting the objectives of the
contract. A final report will be due from the vendor upon completion of this contract.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

FE:TLS

Enclosures



AMENDMENT TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellness, hereinafter "the
Agency," and National Alliance on Mental Illness New Hampshire, Concord, NH, hereinafter "the Contractor", and.
pursuant to an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on October!, 2017 (Item
#37 ) and renewed on June 20, 2018 (Item #132) and on June 19, 2019 (Item #211) hereby agree to modify same as
follows:

1. Amend section 1.8 by removing S309,851.15 and replacing with $395,33d.03.

2. Remove Exhibit A-1 (Scope of Services) and replace with Exhibit A-2 (Scope of Services).

3. Remove Exhibit B-2 (Budget) and replace with Exhibit B*3 (Budget).

4. All other provisions of this contract shall remain in full force and effect.

This modification ofan existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be attached to the said agreemenL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Education
(Agency)

Division of ̂ Commissioner's

aT Vu/TBy:
Commissioner of Education Date

NAMINew Hampshire
.Name of Corporation (Contractor) ) r. 11 ̂.  yj .Iconic oi v^orpordiion j.\^oniniuorj_ |

STATE

Bv: DiP^c/o^'^ ■
Si^ature, Title Date

OF U(gu;' pishf'/g-
County of Uy^irri nna
On this the ^ day of I ̂  2019 before me, Ufffhn , the undersigned officer,
personally apoeared who acknowledged himselOhersdf to be ̂  ,

t^/^iHitV-^ffi4i^f ^J/Wf a corporation, and that he , as such b.)^CL^ IOC X>)
being authorized so to do, executed the fo^oing Instrument f^uhe purposes therein contained, by signing the name
of the corporation by hlmself/ltersetfas

In witness whereof I hereto set my hdnd ̂ {^d ofTicial ̂ al.

/# MV
^ / COMMtSStON ». %
=  ; expires : =
I  \ JUNE 20,2023 j r

lic/Justi of the Peace



Approved as lo form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this. _ day of dH- 2019.

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of.

Elision of Att9P9cy Qet^eral Office

V
.2019

By:



EXHIBIT A-2

Scope of Services

NAMl NH will provide to the New Hampshire Department of Education, Office of Social &
Emotional Wellness with the services to support the expansion of NH's System of Care and the
provision of family driven services and supports across NH's educational system.

Services provided within this contract will include; '
I. One Full Time Equivalent Lead Family Contact to work in partnership with the Office of

Social & Emotional Wellness. The Lead Family Contact will:
•  Submit work plan for approval that identifies proposed activities and a timeline for

implementation of the services to be provided within this contract.
•  Participate in bi-monthly calls with staff from the Office of Social & Emotional

Wellness. |
•  Support the use of the Dual Capacity Framework within grantee demonstration sites

and statewide.

•  Assist grantee demonstration sites with the completion of the Family Engagement
Fidelity Too! (FEFI) and participates in subsequent planning

•  Identify, recruit family leadership candidates and connect them with a Family
Leadership Training Program.

•  Recruit, provide or ensure training/orientation and support to family leaders in a role
of their choice.

• Work to eliminate stigma and end discrimination regarding mental health for all
individuals and their families.

•  Serve on work groups, advisory councils and committees as appropriate.
•  Collect and analyze all data related to the position.
•  Demonstrate in his/her work a commitment to the system of care values and guiding

principles.

2. Provide access to the Director of Children and Youth Programs to work in partnership with
the Office of Social & Emotional Wellness. The Director of Children and Youth Programs
will:

•  Support execution of the work plan developed by the LFC.
•  Participate in bi-monthly calls with staff from the Office of Social & Emotional

Wellness.

•  Supports the use of the Dual Capacity Framework within grantee demonstration sites
and statewide.

• Work to eliminate stigma and end discrimination regarding mental health for all
individuals and their families.

•  Serve on work groups, advisory councils and committees as appropriate.
•  Effectively outreaches and promotes education, leadership programs, and public

policy advocacy.
•  Demonstrate in his/her work a commitment to the system of care values and guiding

principles.

Initials

Date



EXHIBIT A-2

Scope of Services
Continued

Expanded Services:

3. NAMINH will work collaboratively with the NH Department of Education, Bureau of

Student Wellness and local Student Wellness Project Managers to:

•  Deliver Family Peer Support Services to families in the Franklin School District

participating in NH's High-Fidelity Wraparound service

• Deliver Family Peer Support Services to families in SAU 7: Colebrook,

Stewartslown, and Pittsburg participating in NH's High-Fidelity Wraparound service

•  Participate in meetings and events hosted by local education agencies designed to
support students and their families.

•  Provide supervision and oversight of employees delivering Family Peer Support
Services in the Franklin School District and SAU 7.

InitialssDate #



Item

Personnel

Fringe

Phone

EXHIBIT B-3

Budget

Description

Two part-time Family Peer Support Specialists to
work in partnership with the Office of Social &
Emotional Weliness and local school districts in

both the Franklin School District and SAU 7 to

provide support services for families receiving
High-Fidelity Wraparound.

Calculated at 36%

Wireless cell phone service for project personnel.

Total Expense

43,250.00

15,354.00

1,620.00

Travel
Mileage is reimbursed at the GSA approved rate of
0.535/permile. 8,500.00

Staff Staff education and training to ensure fidelity to the
Education NH High Fidelity Wraparound Family Peer

and Training Support Model.
7,600.00

Total Direct Costs $ 76,324.00
Indirect

$ 9,158.88
Costs

Total $ 85,482.88

Limitation on Price: This Contract will not exceed $85,482.88

Source of Funding: Funding for this contract is 100% Federal Funds from the account titled
System of Care Grant, as follows:

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073 FY'20

Grants - Federal $62,169.37

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073

Grants - Federal

FY71

$23,313.51

Method of Payment;

Payment will be made upon the submittal of an invoice that is received by the 10th of the
following month which is supported by a summary of activities that have taken place in
accordance with the terms of the contract. Invoice template to be provided by the Office of
Social & Emotional Weliness.

Attn: Kelly Untiet
NH Department of Education
Office of Social & Emotional Weliness

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Initials

Date \!M



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NAMl NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 24, 1982. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62349

Certificate Number 0004600693

SI

I&.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4ih day of October A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



I,

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporation without a Seal)

Russell Conte

(Name of the Clerk of the Coipoi arion. cannot be signatorva
do hereby certify that:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

I am the duly elected clerk of NAMI New Hampshire

(Coiporation Name)

The following are true copies of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on October 6. 2019 .

(dai=;)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, acting through
its Department of Education.

Keimeth Norton Executive DirectorRESOLVED: That_

(Name ofContraci Signatory) (Title ofConrract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

The foregoing resolution(s) have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of the
day of October . 2019 .

(day, month, yr) (itiu.si be same date a.< the contract date)

Kenneth Norton is the duly elected Executive Director of the corporation.
(na.me of contract signatory) (title of contract siunator.-)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Business Representative of the Corporation this
6th day of October , 2019 .

(Signutiire ofClevk ot Corporation)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF Merrimack

October 6* 2019 the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

My commission expires on:

5  • O* :

mi

Notary PuMic/Jusuce of the Peace



A.CC^C? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrrVYY)

05/06/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Senrlces LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

COJJWCT Eleanor Spinazzola

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

A^ESS- El^^^Pi'^zzolaigeslnsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

National Alliance on Mental Illness, NAMI-NH

85 North State Street

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B Technology Insurance Co 42376

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2019 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iRsin
LTR

TODC
IH8D

5U5IT -RSnCTtPF"
tMMfl)0/YYYYl

POLicve)#
IMM/DO^TYYlTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER UMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LtABILTTY

CLAJMS-MADE OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrano)

05/07/2019 05/07/2020

MEO EXP(Anyoo< pwion)

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1^ Q LOC
OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPIOPAGO

AbMol Cnslr. CIssSpc

1.000,000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3.000.000

S 1.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
<E»»edOant> S 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

05/07/2019 05/07/2020 BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddefii)

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAS

(XCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000.000

05/07/2019 05A)7/2020

OED X RETENTION S ^O-O^O

AGGREGATE

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY

ANY PROPRIETCWPARTNER/EXECUTTVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yaa, daacrtba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS PalOw

STATUTE
OTH-

£3—

10/10/2019 10/10/2020
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

500.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarta Schadula, may be attached H mora apaca Is raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education

Bureau of Student Wellness

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



ABOUT NAMI NH - NAMI NH

INFO.& RESOURCCSLINE

^ l-eOO-242-6264 H
GET HELP DONATE

ABOUT US " FIND SUPPORT - GETINVOLVEO ^ PROGRAMS EVENTS - RESOURCES -

Content

About NAMINH

NAMI New Hampthire Ij a grassroots organization working to Improve tlie quality oi life for all by
providing support, education and advocacy for people affected by mental illness and suicide.

Comprised of a network of affiliate chapters and support groups, staff and volunteers. NAMI NH
provides information, education arsd support to all families and communities affected by mental illness
and suicide.

► NAMI NH Non-Dlscrimlnatlon Statement

The Organization Annual Reports Snapshot

ENews Sign Up
Contact Us

Annual Reports

Evaluation Results

Funders

Annual Membership
Board

Staff

FAQs
Employment
The Organization

Privacy Policy

Events

OUR MISSION

OUR VISION

GUIDING
VALUES

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve
the lives of all people affected by mental Illness and suicide through
support, education and actvocacy.

History
After the death of her husband in 1972. Peggy Strav/'s daughter began experiencing a mental Illness.
Back In those days, families, especially parents, were blamed for causing nwnal illness. Although the
Communir/ Mental Health Center Act of 1963 established centers throughout the US. most of them
were providing 'prevention- services to people who could be Identified as the 'worried well,' The
flawed theory was that. If people received services before they became ill, the Illness could be
prevented.

In an effort to find support and learn about tfienatureof her daughter's disease. Peggy [oinediheNH
Association for Mental Health. In 1976, at the urging of the Association's E.xccutive Director, she wrote
to every state to flisd out if there were any support groups for families of loved ones with mental Illness.
Of the 39 states that resporKfed to her inquiry, norse knew of any support groups or even where
information other than patient rights booklets could be obtained,

Peggy decided to start her own support group in 1978 with a few other interested families. As President
of her local mental health center, she attended a convention in San Francisco in 1979. There she heard
abotn a group of families from Wisconsin considering the formation of a National Alliance for the
Mentally III (NAMI). The next year she travelled to Chicago to attend the first organizational meeting ol
NAMI. represenilDg New Hampshire.

A seed was planted, and families alfcctcd by mental Illness (oined together to form affiliates throughout
the state. Slov/ty. support groups were organized by affiliates with a goal of advocating for better
community based services for their loved ones. In the fall of 1982, NAMI NH legally Incorporated In the
state of NH as a S01(c)3 non-profit organization. With dedkacion. persistence and hard work. NAMI NH
has grown substantially from its humble be^nnlngs, as have the many affiliates througfKiut the state.

Due in large pan to generous individual, corporate and foundation donations, NAMI NH Is able to
continue to focus on three cornerstones of activity that offer hope, reform and health to our New
Hampshire community: Support. Education and Advocacy.

Keene Family-co-Family Class
08/26/2019-11/11/2019

Winchester Parents Meeting the
Challenge Class
09/25/2019- 11/13/2019

In Our Own Voice Pi esencation at
Plymouth State University
10/08/2019

Plymouth

all e-/encs

©fIRini New 1 lamp.sliire
« »1T - »1« NAta Mm

tsnmSHuSMKCorciM. taiaaam

IntowBcoa Utn; l-«a>.Z«4iH

m en: Z2-Z7W70

Mora I Coraci U> I $l«rn«)

C«t Enrm Updjta

Mnrnr oxnnunltv and rtwlv* the Mesl n«wt upilMa

Email

f 0" o t B

6B English

https://www.naminh.org/about-us/ 10/7/2019
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;VACHON CLUKAY
& Company PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
608 Chestnut Street • Manchester. New Hampshire 03104

(603) 622-7070 • Pax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT ALTDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire (a nonprofit
entity), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related
statements of activities and cash fiows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management \s Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the.United Stales of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the tinanciai statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, the
financial position of NAMI New Hampshire as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United Stales of America.

Other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The schedules of functional expenses oh pages 14 and 15 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements. The infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied-
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 27, 2018



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEiMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2018 and 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Land

Building and improvements
Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS;

Investments

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

2018

72,262

177,594

295,309

545,165

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(104.147)

1,373,165

425,056

425,056

2017

199,316

391,465

174.454

2,890

768,125

164,000

735,018

8,218

604

907,840

(84,478)

823,362

401,810

401,810

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,343,386 $ 1,993,297

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Mortgage notes payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

95,064

50,479

30,166

175,709

593,997

593,997

74,138

43,323

18,407

135,868

298,625

298,625

TOTAL LIABILITIES 769,706 434,493

NET ASSETS:

Temporarily restricted

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

1)573,680
1,573,680

75,000

1,483,804

1,558,804

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,343,386 $ 1,993,297

See notes tofinancial statements

3



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 ajid 2017

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
Contributions

Interest and dividends

Unrealized gains on investments

In-kind donations

Fundraising events
Training services
Membership dues

Other revenue

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES

2018

1,411,07!

225,894

10,423

28,093

10,363

138,625
644,041

5,886

17,948

2,492,344

2017

1,110,748

224,009

12,460

45,580

12,423

127,314

462,253

5.416

18,035

2.018,243

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS:

Satisfaction of donor restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

- TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

75,000

75,000

2.567,344

821

82!

2,019,064

EXPENSES:

PROGRAM SERVICES:

Commiiniiy and Public Policy Relations

Connect Suicide Prevention Project

Public Education

TOTAL PROGRA.M SERVICES

135.810

268,531

1,527,340

1,931,681

118.037

379,808

1.044,581

1,542,426

.SUPPORTING SERVICES:

Management and general
Fundraising and development

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL EXPENSES

TOTAL INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

316,021

229.766

545,787

2.477,468

89,876

232,241

188,225

420,466

1,962,892

56,172

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

INCILEASE (DECREASE) IN TEMP0R^\R1LY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NETASSETS, JULY 1

NET ASSETS. JUNE 30

(75,000)

(75,000)

14,876

1,558,804

75,000

(821)

74.179

130,351

1.428,453

$  1,573.680 S 1.558,804

See notes to financial statements
4



NAM! NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from grants and contributions $ 2,297.662 $  1,982,662
Interest income received 10,423 12,460
Other income received 17,948 18,035
Cash paid to employees (1.442,622) (1,095,866)
Cash paid to suppliers and others (960,358) (820,163)
Interest paid (13,484) (10,208)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (90,431) 86,920

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTTVITTES:

Purchase of investments (26,282) (44,562)
Sale of investments 245,000
Purchase of property and equipment (221.472) •

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (2,754) (44.562)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES;

Payments on mortgage notes payable (33,869) (30,053)
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (33,869) (30,053)

Net increase (decrease) in cash (127.054) 12,305

Cash, beginning of year .199,316 187,011
Cash, ending of year ' S  72.262 $  199,316

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $  14,876 S  130,351

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Net unrealized (gains) losses on investments (28,093) (45,580)
Depreciation 19,669 20,490
Forgiveness of debt (7,000) (7,000)
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (120,855) (15,083)
Prepaid expenses 2,890 4,080

20 7
Accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:

In-kind donations received

In-kind expenses

Forgiveness of debt

Issuance of mortgage payable for purchase of assets

,926

7,156

(90,431)

10,363

(10,363)

7,000

348,000

$  355,000

,051

(7,389)

86,920

$  12,423

(12,423)

7,000

7,000

See notes to financial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE l-SUMMARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLTNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

NAM[ New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) was founded as a nonprofit corporation in
1982 and is committed to improving the lives of all people affected by mental illness and suicide through
support, education and advocacy. As a grassroots coalition of people living with mental illness and their
families, NAMI NH has over 35 years of service to Granite State children, transition age youth, adults,
and seniors, offering statewide activities which provide education/training and support to individuals,
families and communities. The organization also promotes and provides advocacy and empowerment at
the individual/family level as well as at the systems level by offering members, volunteers, and
stakeholders training and graduated opportunities to build confidence in advocacy and leadership skills.
Last year, NAMI NH provided support, education and advocacy to over 15,000 individuals. The financial
support for these programs and activities comes from a variety of sources that include governmental and
private foundation grants, contract services, donations, and membership dues.

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
•  Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;
•  Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and
•  Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of NA.M! New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities e.xcepl as indicated hereafter, The
following is a summaty of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958-205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Entity is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets, based upon the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Basis ofAccounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues from program sei^vices are recorded svhen earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

Contributions

The Entity accounts for contributions received in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605, Accountingfor
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
linconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted
net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other
donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Cask and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
on hand and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, mutual funds, and exchange traded
funds, are carried at their market value at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017. Investments reported as non-
current represent amounts designated by the Board as held for capital improvement or debt service.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments are reflected in the statement of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of $1,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Years

Building and improvements 39

Equipment 5

Fumiturc and fLXtures 7-10

Depreciation expense was $19,669 and $20,490 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30. 2018 and 2017

Compensated Absences

Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, full-time employees will receive up to five days of accrued/unused vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to $21,782 and $20,990 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

NANfl New Hampshire receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer

efforts, while critical to the success of its mission, are not reflected in the financial statements because
the accounting criteria for recognition of such volunteer efforts have not been satisfied.

f

Donated goods and professional services are recorded as both revenues and expenses at their estimated
fair value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services in support of fundraising
activities totaling $10,363 and $12,423 during the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a
functional basi.s in the accompanying statement of aciivitie.s. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting scrsiccs based on percentage allocations and estimates
determined by the Entit)''s management.

Fund Raising Activities

\

Fund raising expenses represent the cost of preparing contribution appeals, running special events, and
letters of appreciation by staff of the Entity and totaled $229,766 and $188,225 for the years ending June
30. 2018 and 2017. respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was $2,103 and S 1,648 for the years
ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entit)' uses the rcser\"e method for accounting for bad debts. No allowance has been recorded as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, because management of the Entity believes that all outstanding receivables are
fully collectible.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that afTect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



NARH NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Income Taxes

I

The Entity has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies
for tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for any exempt function
income. Tn addition, the Entity is not subject to state income taxes. Accordingly, no provision has been
made for Federal or State income taxes.

The FASB adopted Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes
which requires the Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes, FASB ASC
740 prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose in its financial
statements, tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity's tax returns that are reflected in
measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax positions taken
in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements will generally result in an increase in a
liability for income tax payable or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or'an increase in a deferred tax
liability. The Entity does not have,any material unrecognized tax benefits.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

NOTE 2~COi\CENTR.ATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The
Entity's demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total
of $250,000. The Entity had no uninsured deposits as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 3-INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820) which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that are not active;



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractiial) term, the Level 2 input must be observable
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value nieasuretnenl. Valuation techniques used
need to ma.ximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities arc traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Money market funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, and equities: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Certificates of deposit and corporate debt securities: Valued using a market approach valuation
technique which incorporates ihird-part>" pricing services and other relevant observable Information such
as market interest rates, yield curves, prepayment risk and credit risk generated by market transaelions
involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities in valuing these types of investments

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation

methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to detenuine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in
a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets at fair value:

Assets at Fair Value as of Juno 30.2018
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Money market mutual funds $ 135,423 S 135,423
Mutual funds 201,70S 201,70S

Exchange traded funds 223.306 223,306
Equities 5, ISO 5,180
Certificates of deposit S 5,831 i 5.831
Corporate debt securities 31.202 31,202
Total assets at fair value $ 565.617 S' 37.033 $ 602,650

10



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30,2017

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Money market mutual funds $  348,882 $  348,882
Mutual funds 183,834 183,834
Exchange traded funds 217,088 217,088
Certificates of deposit S  6,009 6,009
Corporate debt securities 37,462. 37,462

Total assets at fair value $  749,804 $ 43,471 $  793,275

Investment Valuation and Income Recomition

The Entity's investments as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 are stated at fair value. Shares of the
separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares
held by the Entity at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Investments consist of money market investments, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, equities,
certificates of deposit with an original maturity greater than 90 days, and corporate debt securities which
are carried at market value (adjusted monthly). Realized and unrealized gains and josses are reflected in
the Statements of Activities. Assets held in the investment accounts were as follows at June 30, 2018
and 2017;

Market Value Market Value

2018 2017

Money market mutual funds $  135,423 $  348,882
Mutual funds 201,708 183,834
Exchange traded funds 223,306 217,088
Equities 5,180
Certificates of deposit 5,831 6,009
Corporate debt securities 31,202 37,462

S  602,650 S  793,275

NOTE 4~M0RTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the mortgage notes payable consists of the following:

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by property, payable
in monthly installments of $2,297 including interest through
January 2026. The variable interest rate on the note is 5.0%

through April 2022. Thereafter, the interest rate will change
to equal the 5 year Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston

amortizing rale plus 3.0%. The interest rate change will not
occur more often than each five years. The balance of the

note Is payable in full on April 2, 2032.

2018 2017

$  159,612 $ 191.032



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by property, payable

in monthly installments of$2,364 mcluding interest through

March 2038. The variable interst rate on the note is 5.35%

through March 2028. Thereafter, the interest rate will change

to equal the Federal Home Loan Bank 10/20 amortizing advance

rate plus 3.0%, and remain at that rate for the duration of the

loan. 345,551

$140,000 mortgage note payable to the City of Concord, New

Hampshire is non-interest bearing and is secured by the property.
The Entity ia a subrecipient of Community Development Block
Grant funds which were used to create an ADA compliant
community education space. Repayment of the funds will be

required in the event of noncompliance with the grant. The note
will be forgiven over a period of 20 years through December 31,
2034. 1 19.000 126.000

$ 624,163 $ 317.032

Under the terms of the mortgage note payable for the property' located at 87 N. Stale Street, Concord NH.
with a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2018 of $345,551, the Entity must maintain a loan to value
ratio of less than 80%. Additionally, the Entity must demonstrate a debt service coverage ratio of at least
1.00.

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30, 2018:

Year Ending
June 30. Amount

2019 $ 30,166

2020 31,681

2021 33.410

2022 35,162

2023 37,007

Thereafter 456,737

S 624,163

NOTE 5~TEMP0RARILV RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following donor restricted funding at June 30, 2018 and
2017:

2018 2017

NHCF grant - operations $ $ 75,000

12



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 6~UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June'30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Board designated:

Investments held for capital improvements and debt service $ 425,056 $ 401,810
Future building improvements 60,000 60,000

Undesignaled 1,088.624 1,021,994

S  1,573.680 $ 1,483,804

NOTE 7-CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Entity
recognized revenue of $1,411,071 (56.62%), and $1,110,748 (53.06%), respectively, from fees and grants
from governmental agencies. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the grant contracts and
is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training services, contributions,
in-kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 8-PENSION PLAN

The Entity has a deferred compensation pension plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Under the terms of the plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan. During
the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Entity's contribution to the plan was equal to 2.0%
respectively of each eligible employee's annual salary. The Entity contributed $16,949 and $12,990 for
the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 9-CONTLNGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of
additional expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time,
although the Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE ID-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through Xxxjoof XX,-2018 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSEiS

For ihc Year Ended June 30, 2018

Program Ser\'ic€s Supporting Services

Commiiniiy Connect

and Public Suicide loial Management Total

Policy Prevention I'ublic Program and Supporting Total

Relations Proiect Education Seivices General Fundraisina Services Exoenses

SALAEUES AND RELATED EXPl-NSHS:

Salaries $  96,057 S  133,847 S  891,407 S  1,121,311 S  166,352 S  102,115 S  268,467 S  1,389,778
Employee bcneflls 11,185 30,033 144,811 186,029 25,716 14,944 40,660 226,689

Payroll taxes 7,529 10.073 70.363 87.965 15.328 7,968 23,296 , 111,261

114,771 17.3.953 1,106,581 1,395,305 207,396 125,027 332,423 1.727.728

OIUER EXPENSES:

Accounting
-

8,167 2,461 10,628 10,628

Audit fees 860 1,510 8.305 10,675 3,166 1,359 4,525 15,200

Legal and membership fees 50 955 4,157 5,162 6,162 4,167 10,329 15,491

Contracted services 7,726 106,291 1 14,017 18,175 15.044 33,219 147,236

Client services/training ,1.654 15,714 61,362 78,730 16,979 9,558 26,537 105,267

Software subscriptions 554 1,220 6,764 8,538 1,552 998 2,550 11,088

Staff conferences and conventions 504 1,107 6.143 7,754 1.410 906 2,316 10,070

Occupancy 1,295 2,332 14,248 17;875 5,699 2,332 8,031 25,906

OfTice supplies 1,006 1,807 1 1,334 14,147 3,922 2,688 6,610 20,757

Maintenance 3,701 8,143 40,716 52,560 14.808 6,663 21,471 74,031

Fundraising/Event supplies 97 113 18,177 18,387 25 18,274 18,299 36,686

Depreciation 984 1,770 10,817 13,571 4,328 1,770 6,098 19,669

Food supplies 570 91 2,877 3,538 7,250 14,272 21,522 25,060

Equipment rental 516 930 6,207 7,653 2,271 930 3,201 10,854

Equipment maintenance 150 847 1,581 2,578 3,919 375 4,294 6,872

Advertising 396 396 70 1,637 1,707 2.103

Printing III 111 50 4,710 4,760 4,871

Telephone and Communications 2,999 3,834 20,498 27,331 2,901 4,836 7,737 35,068

Postage and Shipping 30 1,201 396 1,627 3,635 1,611 5,246 6,873

Staff transportation 5,405 43,972 83,279 132,656 37 4,336 4,373 137,029

Insurance 664 1,195 7,479 9,338 2,922 1.195 4.117 13.455

Non-cash supplies 7,039 7,039 204 3,120 3,324 10,363

Other expenditures 2,693 .  2.693 973 1,497 2,470 5,163

Total $  135,810 $  268,531 S 1,527,340 i  1.931.681 S  316,021 $  229,766 S  545,787 $ 2,477,468
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries "

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Community

and Public

-  Policy
Relations

65,065

3,198

5,558

73,821

Program Services

Connect

Suicide

Prevention

Project

t  169,457

28,309

13,124

210,890

Supporting Services

Public

Education

E  601,437

86,197

44,990

732,624

Total

Program

Services

835,959

117,704

63,672

1,017,335

Management

and

General

$  161,217

10,168

12,859

184,244

Fundraising

$  77,663

9,197

5,598

92.458

Total

Supporting
Services

S  238,880

19,365

18,457

276,702

Total

Ext)enses

1,074,839

137,069

82,129

1,294.037

Accounting 221 700 2,026 2.947 1,085 3,481 4,566 7,513
Audit fees 852 2,698 7,811 11,361 1,420 1,420 2,840 14,201
Legal and membership fees 50 180 100 330 1,966 2,404^ 4,370 4,700
Contracted services 21,800 41,640 23,940 87.380 8,905 21,137^ 30,042 117,422
Client services/training 189 48,160 106,278 154,627 . 154,627
Occupancy 997 2,992 9,142 13.131 1,994 1,496 3,490 16,621
OfTice supplies 1,090 2,362 6,409 9,861 1,227 1,186 2,413 12,274
Maintenance 2,884 9,133 26,438 38.455 4,807 4,807 9,614 48,069
Fundraising/Event supplies

- 24 21,247 21,271 21,271
Depreciation 1,229 3,893 11,270 16,392 2,049 2.049 4,098 20,490
Food supplies 206 2,796 3,002. 5,193- 12,158 17,351 20353
Equipment rental 339 1,073 5,470 6.882 565 565 1,130 8,012
-Equipment maintenance 75 2,723 45,802 48,600 3,543 4,080 7,623 56323
Advertising 560 560 371 717 1,088 1,648
Printing 56 222 278 343 10,601 10,944 11322
Telephone and Communications 2,912 3,677 12,687 19,276 7,420 1,453 8,873 28,149
Postage and Shipping 1,646 294 1,940 4,050 1,583 5,633 7373
Staff transportation 10,707 45,879 31,931 88,517 949 1,122 2,071 90,588
Insurance 665 2,106 6,097 8,868 1,109 1,109 2,218 11,086
Non*cash supplies 8,294 8,294 977 3,152 4,129 12,423
Other expenditures 4,390 4,390 . 4,390
Total S  118.037 S  379,808 S 1,044,581 S  1.542,426 $  232,241 $  188,225 $  420,466 S  1,962,892
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NAMI NH Board of Director

2018-2019

NAME
BOARD

POSITION

AtkinsoQ, Kate Monber

Brown, Donna Member

Bunker, John If Vi« President

Conte, Russell Secretary

Ciumingham, Ross Member

Eastman, Chuck Member

Gardiner, Arthur Member

Hosmer, Andrew Member

Janelle, PetCT President

LaFrance, Shawn 1" Vice President

Moler, Teresa Member

Norian, Isabel Member

Richardson, Rose Treasurer

Sanders, Elizabeth Member

Trudel, Karen Member

Wright, Michael Member



NAMI New Hampshire

List of Personnel -SOC 2020-DOE

Name Title Annual Salary
Brian Huckins Director of Children & Youth Programs $  56,500
Susan Steams Deputy Director $  86,000
Ken Norton Exectuive Director $  96,340
Patrick Roberts Program Evaluation and Improvement Coordinator S  48,925
Tammy Murray Chief Rnancial Officer $  85,647



Brian S. Huckins

Sapcrvisor, Long Terra Services and Supports

Healthcare Professional with strong background in the development and delivery of services of proactive
care for people who need assistance with behavioral health, developmentally disabilities, and/or medically
frail conditions. Skills include development and implementation of policies, procedures, care methods,
and care coordination. Unique understanding of broad services programs, state funding, provider network
and waivered services for all ages of population. Well regarded for recruiting and developing staff in all
phases of care delivery including consumer outreach, service agreement development and data tracking.

Experience

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance 00 Mental Illness) Concord, New Hampshire
NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots non-proftt dedicated to improving the lives of people affected by mental
illness.

Director of CbOdreo and Youth Programs . (12/I6-Pre3eot)
Provides overall leadership for (he development, implonentation, and evaluation of services for families of children
and youth with Serious Emotional Disturbance (SED).
•  Coordinates and promotes training and educational programs for children, youth and (heir famiUes/caregivers.
•  Promotes the "family perspective" and knowledge of SED through public presentations and professional

■ trainings; provide educational materials and speak to various community groups about children's mental health
issues and NAMI NH*s position on the issues.

•  Participates in programs that eliminate stigma and end discrimmation r^arding mental health for children,
youth and their famil ies.

•  Services 'allcontracts relating to the provision of mental health training which address the needs of children,
youth and their femilies.

•  Supervises the collection and organization of statistical data for the beneftt/obligation of program quality
improvement; grants and contract requirements; and assure required rqrorts are timely and accurate.

•  Serves as the liaison/spokesperson between NAMI NH and other organizations concerned with services to the
SED population and promote the NAMI NH brand in all venues.

•  In coordination with the Executive Director and CFO, develops and oversees a program budget and all relevant
grants/conijacts.

•  Advocates on behalf of youth with SED and their families/caregivers at local, r^idnal and state levels by
actively participating on various committees and/or testifying at hearings.

•  Represents NAMI NH and actively participate with the NH Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative and
various local, regional, state and national venues that pertain to health and mental health services for children
with SED and their families.

New Hampshire Healthy Families Bedford, New Hampshire
NH Healthy Families (wyrw.NHheaUhvfamUies.com) is iindenvritten by Granite State Health Plan, Inc. Granite
State Health Plan is a wholly-owned subsidiary ofCentene Corporation providing coordinated healthcare,
behavioral health, pharmacy, vision, and transportation services to members la New Hampshire's Medicaid Care
Management Program.

Long Term Services and Support Care Coordiaatioo Supervisor (9/15-11/16)
Department responsibility to develop staffing to support Long Term Services and Supports for Medicaid eligible
mCTibers. This Medicaid eligibility includes: CFI, DD, ABD, IHW, Nursing Homes and DCYF.
• Managed the High Touch Process for members who utilized NH Medicaid waivered services connected with

developmental disability services, elder services, and children's special medical services.
•  Participated and case presentation at weekly Medical Management Clinical Rounds for entire team, including

medical and pharmacy directors.
•  Completed Home Health Service Asses^cnts in member's homes in collaboration with home health service

agencies.
« Management documentation of cases through TruCare and CRM data systems, evaluating post discharge,

hospitalization, prior authorization and utilization review. ,



•  Particlpaicd in the development of practices and policies for submiital ofNH Medicaid slate planned autism
trcaimcn! services.

• Derv'dopcd the preliroina/y policies and procedures in anticipation of the start of Long Terra Services and
Supports.

•  Played key role NCQA audits ensuring that quality standards and FedciBl Requirements arc met.

START (Systemic, Therapeutic, Assessmeot, Resources, and Treatment) Concord, New Hampshire
STiRT\ t'Mi'Wf.centerforstartservices.orv) is a national initiative that strengthens efficiencies and service outcomes
for individuals with inteilectual/deveJopmental disabilities and behavioral health needs in the community.

Central CoUeborative Team Leader and START Coordinator (4/10-9/15)
Provided clinical and systematic leadership in the development of START Services in NH. These services support
individuals who experience developmental disabiliiles and co-existing behavioral health disorders.
•  Supervised NH START Coordinator Collaborative (Concord, Manchester. Nashua and ICeene)..
•  Formalized preventative strategies to keep individuals with developmental disabilities out of crisis, emergency

rooms and Hospital.
•  Completed health screening tools as part of work with Dartmouth Medical Center and UMass Medical Center's

COD Clinics.

•  Established community linkages and serves as liaison to mental health providers, local medical providers and
other community partners.

• Worked in close collaboration .with the Center for START Services and the Bureau of Developmental
Disabilities to Identify systems, trainings, service and other needs and insure that the fidelity to the START
model.

»  Provided clinical and systemic leadership to the Central Collaborative.
• Chan^ioncd the development of the START Center in Boscawen, NH.
•  Provided clinical on-call support.
•  Developed implementation of START Center Outreach Supports. '
•  Tracked monthly statistics and data regarding START Center residency rates.
• Wrote START Center admission and discharge plans, Comprehensive Service Evaluations and Cross System

Crisis Plans.

New Hampshire AuUsm Council Concord, New Hampshire
The New Hampshire Council on Autism Spectrum Disorders I'mvw. nheounciionasiL ore) was created by the NH
Legislature in 2008 to coordinate supports and services for individuals and their families.

Chair (9/08-8/16)
Charged with providing state-wide coordinated leadership in addrcssiog the healthcare, education, and service
needs of individuals who cq>erience autism or a related disability.
•  Lead council meetings and agendas.
• Charged with yearly report out to NH Stale Legislation and Governor.
• Managed grant funding.
•  C^rdinated and testified for and against autism related laws in the NH State Government.
•  Ck>-deveioped (honor's Law.
• Co-devcit^uncnt the NH Autism Registry.
•  Assisted in the coordination of the NH State Needs Assessment and State Plan for Autism.'
• Hosted annual seminar on ASD for professional development to over 400 professionals.

Community Bridges Concord, New Hampshire
Community Bridges ̂MnKw.comniunirvbrideesnh.orpj advances the integration, growth and interdependence of
people with disabilities in their home communities in ways that promote their ability to have positive control over
the lives they hove chosenfor themselves.



IndividDAl ood Family Support Planniog Spedalist/Supervisor (9/0$- 1/11)
Provided individual, group supcrvisipn and coaching to,case management dcpanmcnt.
•  Ensured He-M 503 regulations were met by case management department.

•  Ensured individual's Projected Service Needs (Bureau of Developmental Services) was rrvjintainedand update.
• Managed individual budgets, requests for proposals, and formal service needs for Communiiy Participation

Services, Supported Employment, and Residential Services.
•  ParticipatedindecisionmaldngforallocationcffundiQgforDD, ABD,andIHSwatvers.
•  Participation and care coordination in Clinical Rounds for individuals in crisis, experiencing severe persistent

mental illness and/or forensic support needs.
•  Implemented crientaiiODAraining of staff, including designing group trainings for person centered planning,

oatural resources, service development, and respite.

Educition

Granite State College
BA in Human Services, anticipated graduation 08/2017.

Workshops

• NH Leadership graduate, Uruversity of New Hampshire Institute on Disability
• NH Advanced Leadership graduate. University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability
•  Education Advocate graduate. Parent Information Center
•  Professional Presentations: Perspectives on Autism at ihe Carricr Art Center and NH Public Radio Interview on

Autism Awareness Month (4/15) fhttD://nhDr.org/post/diagnQses-rise-fofum-explores-persDectives-autism^



Susan L. Stearns
Mental Health Executive ̂  Development P' rofessional

QUAUn CATIONS

Solid background in non-
profit development &

administncion

Proven leadership skills
and advocaqr expexieoce

Recognized expert in
development and grant

* writing

Excellent written and oral

communicator

Knowledgeable in
program development and

evaluation

Experienced working uith
boards atid volunteers

Ability to work well with
diverse individuals and

groups

Certified mediator and

victim advocate

Professional

educator/trainer

Broad understanding of
abuse, poverty, disability

and fiunily issues

WORK EXPERIENCE

2016- Deputy Director. NAMI New Hampshire. Concord.

2013-2016 Director of Philenthropy, NAMI New Hampshire, Concord.

2007-2013 Director of Development^ Greater Nashua Mental Health
Center at Community Council. New Hampshire.

2005-2007 Director of Proposal Devehpmeat, Harbor Homes. Inc.,
Nashua, New >lampshire.

2004-2005 Executive Director, part-droe position, Dtas for Success New
Hampshire, Concord.

2004-2010 T/aXner, contracted pact-time, Guardian tfdEicr/jr Board,
Concord. New Hampshire.

2001-2006 Director, part-time posidon, Cdalidon for Family Law & Mental
Health, Disabilidcs Rights Center, Concord, New Hampshire.

2000-2013 Grant & Marketing Writer, Independent Contractor

2000-2004 Grant Writer/Development Associate, part-dme posidon.
New Hampshire Assodadon for the Blind, Concord.

1998-2000 Executive Director, Whole Village Family Resource Center,
Plymouth, NH.

1993-1998 Program Spea'aiist, New Hampshire Coalirion Against
Domesdc Sc Sexual Violence. Concord.

'  j

1988-1993 Administrative Director, Txsk. Force Against Domesdc &
Se.xual Violence, Plymouth, New flampshire.

1986-1988 Assistant Ombudsperson, Ombuds Office, University of
Massachusetts, Amherst.

EDUCATION

1986-1987 Graduate work. Coosuldng & Counseling Psychology, School
of Educadon. Unh'crsity of Massachusccts. AmhersL

1986 B.A. in EngUsb. Universic)' of Massachusetts, AmhersL



S. L. Stearns
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PUBUCATIONS

2012 Mcdicaid CooUacts Raise Questions Galore, CrnvrdMomior, (wich H. Hafc2), April 18,
htfp://www.concordmonirQr.com/article/3242Q8/medicaid-contrac»-raisc-<)ues lions-pal ore.

2009 Jtcclaimmg Our Future: A Puthway for Treadng Co-Occurring Mental Health stnd Substance Use
Disorders in New Hampshire's Adolescents and YoungAdults, National Alliance on Mental Illness -
New Hampshire (primary author), www.naminh.orp/Hnrnments/NAM1ReclgiminyQurFuruf<> pdf

2008 Raising Matthew: A Mother ReQects on McdicaUng Her Son, No Htulth u/UboMt .\UstulHtultb,
Conununity Coundl of Nashua, (reprinted in Ctnttis Timu,
»w.genesisbh.Qrg/pdf/Genesis%2(rrimes%2Q.''/n202t)Q9.pdn.

2008 Community Council - The Community's Mental Health Center, Progress Edition, Nashua Telegraph,
^■ww.Drint2webcorD.com/new3/Nashua/HealthandEducarion/200803&4/p28.asD>ad=D28 a4.htma.t=a.

2007 Coming in from the Cold: Creating ̂ lutioos to Homelessness for People with DisabUides, R.4P
Sbttt: The Laksl in Disability Ktstanb, Adooatiy, Polity, and Prartite, (for P. KcUcher),
\cww drgnh ory/RapSprinpQ7.pdf. ■
Guidelines for Parents: Planning for Appropriate Care foryour Children, Coalition for Family Law &
Menul'-Heald).

2006

2005 The Struggle for Justice: Seekiag Legal Equity for Parents with Mental Illness, TbelMitst
in DuabiSy R/jtanb, Adtecay, Poiiy, andPractut, winter Issue, ̂ ^^v^v■d^cnh.o^g/^apsheel^v^^tet05■pdf■

2003 Best I^ctjce Standards for Adequate Assessment of Parenting Competency, Coalition for F'antily
Law & Mental Health, www.drcnh.org/PareniaLAssessmenLpdf.

2003 Pointers for Legal Professionals Pegarding Family Law Issues and Parents with Physical or Mental
Illness, Coalition for Family Law & Mental Health, wwvt-.drcnh.org/ParentalPointers.pdf. v.

1998 StaDdag:.A guide for victims. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic 6c Sexual Violence.
1997 Sexual Assault, A Ltyfll Handbook for Womrn in Nav Hampsbirr, Ncvv Hampshire Commission on the Status

of Vi Otnen, wwvv.unh.edu/wDmens^ommissiQn/lepl.hsndbook/sexual-Msault.html.
1994 Mediadon and Domestic Violence: Consldcradons for Mediators and Banered Women, Ntv

Hompsbirt Bar jonniei. Vol. 35, No. 2, p. 32, June.

RECENT PROFESSIONAL ACnVITIES

Member, Governor's Commistioa oa Disabib'iy, appointed by New Hampshire Go\"cmor Hassan (since 2016).
Member, Board o/Trusrecs, Taylor G>nvnumt)-, Lsconia (lince 2016).

Member, Jusdce lavofved Veterans Task Force, New Hampshire (since 2013).
Facilitator, Coalidon oti Meota!Health SeJustice, Hillsborough Count)- (since 2009).

Member A Past President, Board of Directors, Genesis BchaWoral Health. Laconia (2007-2016).
Member, Criminal Justice/Mental Health Work'Team,

Commission to Develop a Compccl^Kre State Mental Health Pbn, Concord (2001-2008).
Member. Task Force on Family taw, appobted by New Hampshire Governor Shahceo (2002-2004).



KENNETH NORTON

EDUCATION: UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT, Hartford. CT
MSW, Decanber 1985, Casework Major, Groupwork Minor

UNTVERSTTY OF MAINE, Orono, ME
BA, May 1980, Philosophy and Sociology - with High Distinction
BSW in Social Welfare from the Council On Social Work Education (CSWE)

CERTIFICATIONS: NEW HAMPSHIRE BOARD OF MENTAL HEALTH PRACTICE
LICSW - Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, November 1995

ACADEMY OF CERTIFIED SOCIAL WORKERS

ACSW December i 987, Silver Springs, MD

EYE MOVEMENT DESENSTTIZATION REPROCESSING (EMDR)
Specialized Trauma Treatment. Trained in Level 1 EMDR, Nov. 2000

WORK:

EXPERIENCE;

COMISSIQNS &

COMMITTEES:

EXECUTIVE DIRECrOR

National Alliance On Mental Illness, NAMl NH, Concord NH
Statewide organization dedicated to improving the lives of those impacted by mental illness and
Connect Suicide Prevention Program. Responsible for all aspects of the organization including
financial, personnel, program development and implementation, public policy, advocacy, grant
writing and fundrsising. Reports to the Board of Directors. May 2011-present.

DIRECTOR CONNECT SUICIDE PREVENTION PROGRAM
National Alliance On Mental Illness, NAMI NH, Concord, NH
Responsible for development and implementation of the Connect Suicide Prevention Projat
including program design, community organization, and developing statewide protocols for
responding to suicide incidents. Other duties involve grant writing, marketing, conducting
trainings, providing technical assistance to military, communities, coalitions and key
stakeholders. Serve as a member of NH Suicide Prevention Council which oversees
in^Iemcniation the NH Suicide Prevention Stale Plan, ianuary 2003 - May 2011.

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPM ENT
Familystrength, Concord. NH
Duties included fund-raising, grant writing, board development, marketing, public relations and
publishing newsletter. Other responsibilities included participation on agency management team
and program development. Mar^ 1999 - January 200L

DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES/DIRECTOR OF ADULT SERVICES
Genesis The Counseling Groi^, Laconia, NH
Senior management position involving complete administrative and clinical responsibility for
seven programs with a combined thirty five full time stafT. Programs included residential,
vocational, case management/outreach and office based treatment modalities. Responsibilities
included establish and monitor program goals, develop and implement policy and procedures,
oversee budget and personnel issues. Also supervised regional 24/7 psychiatric emergency
services program covering Bclknap and Southern Graftoh County. July 1997- Mamh 1999.-

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON MEDICAID MANAGED CARE:
Appointed position on twelve member commission to review and advise the Governor on the
implementation of Mcdicaid Managed Care in New Hampshire. April 2012- present

STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBER
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline, Mental Health Association of New York City



VOLUNTEER

EJffERTENCE:

AWARDS:

Steering Comrmtice members provide the Lifeline's primary administrators with expert guidance
on the.Issues that affcci the network. Members provide recommendations and advice that support
the Lifeline's mission and work to enhance its capacity to serve persons throughout the US who

. potentially could be suicidal. October 2008-present

NATIONAL ACTION ALLIANCE fOR SUICIDE PREVENTION;
Member of the Military and Veteran subcommittee. Survivor of Suicide Loss Committee and
Sustainabiiity Committee examining and making recommendations for implementation of the
National Strategy For Suicide Prevention November 2011 - present

CONCORD HOSPITAL MEDICAL ETHICS COMMfTTEE '
Community member of a multidisciplinary hospital ethics committee reviewing policies and
procedures as well as individuals case reviews to offer guidance and recommendations
December 2011 - present

WINNIPESAUKEE RIVER TRAIL ASSOCIATION
Member of a small steering committee that has secured over $700,000 in funding for a
Multi-use rail to trail that parallels the Winnipcsaukce River. Assisted with community
organization, landowner negotiations, publicity, special events, grants and fund-raising.
October 1998-present

FOUNDER.

Friends ofthc Winnipcsaukce River, Tillon,NH. "
Established environmental advocacy group for the Winnipcsaukce River Watershed.
Responsibilities include: community organizing, writing press releases, lobbying at state and
local levels, attending public hearings organizing events etc. December 1987 - prcscnl.

FOSTER PARENT.

New Hampshire Division of Children Youth and Families, Laconia, NH
Licensed Foster Home. October 1997- July 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
New Beginning - A Woman's Crisis Ccmcr, Laconia. NH.
Member of the organizational steering committee, and Board of Directors for agoicy serving
victims of domestic violence and sexual assault in Bdknap County. Duties included grant
writing, membership development, writing press releases, fund raising, and policy dcvclopmeit,
served as Board Vice Chair. December 1990-April 2001.

LEADERSHIP AWARD: NH Psychiatric Society
For Leadership in service to people with mental illness May 2014

SOCIAL WORKER OF THE YEAR: National Association of Social Workers NH Chapter
For significant contributions to the profession and society. March 2009

COIN OF EXCELLENCE: NH National Guard Adjutant General .Major Gen. Kenneth Clark
Presented for technical assistance and consultation in development of NH National Guard Suicide
Prevention Program February 2009

CASE MANAGER OF THE YEAR - NAMI NH,National Alliance For The Mentally 111,
For outstanding services and advocacy for individuals with mental illness and their families.
October 1991

REFERENCES:

SENIOR SKULL HONOR SOCIETY — University ofMainc for outstanding leadership,
scholarship and exemplary citizenship 1979.

Available upon request.



VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE:

AWARDS:

Steering Committee members provide the Lifeline's primary administrators with expert guidance
on the issues that afTect lbe network. Members provide recommendations and advice that support
the Lifeline's mission and work to enhance its capacity to serve persons throughout the US who"
poientially could be suicidal. October 2008- present'

NATIONAL ACTION ALLIANCE FOR SUICIDE PREVENTION;
Member of the Military and Veteran subcommittee. Survivor of Suicide Loss Committee and '
Sustainability Committee examining and making rtcommendations for implementation of the
' National Strategy For Suicide Prevention November 2011- present

. CONCORD HOSPITAL MEDICAL ETHICS COMMITTEE
Community member of a multidisciplinary hospital ethics committee reviewing policies and
procedures as well as individuals case reviews to ofTcr guidance and recommendations
December 2011-present

WINNIPESAUKEE RIVER TRAIL ASSOCIATION

Member of a small steering committee thai has secured ova $700,000 in fimding for a
Multi-use rail to trail that parallels the Winnipcsaukee River. Assisted with community
organization, landowner negotiations, publtcily, special events, grants and fund-raising.
October 1998-present

FOUNDER.

Friends of the Winnipcsaukee River, Tikon, NH.
Established environmental advocacy group for the Winnipcsaukee River Watershed.
Responsibilities include: coinmuniiy organizing, writing press releases, lobbying at state arid
local levels, attending public hearings organizing events etc. December 1987 - present.

FOSTER PARENT.

New Hampshire Division of Children Youth and Families, Laconia, NH
Licensed Foster Home. October 1997- July 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
New Beginnings - A Woman's Crisis Center, Laconia. NH.
Member of the organizational steering committee, and Board of Directors for agency, serving
victims of domestic violence and sexual assault in Belknap County. Duties included grant
writing, rricmbcrship development, writing press releases, fund raising, and policy development,
served as Board Vice Chair. December 1990-April 2001.

LEADERSHIP AWARD: NH Psychiatric Society
For Leadership in service to people with mental illness May 2014 "

SOCIAL WORKER OF THE YEAR: National Association'of Social Workers NH Chapter
For significant contributions to the profession and society. March 2009

COIN OF EXCELLENCE: NH National Guard Adjutant General Major Gen. Kenneth Clark
Presented for technical assistance and consultation in development of NH National Guard Suicide
Prevention Program February 2009

CASE Manager of the year - NAMI NH National Alliance For The Menially 111.
For outstanding soviccs and advocacy for individuals with mental illness and their families.
October 1991

SENIOR SKULL HONOR SOCIETY - University of Maine for outstanding leadership,
scholarship and exemplary citizenship 1979.

REFERENCES: Available upon request.



Patrick A. Roberts

EDUCATION

Coooselittg M.Ed. University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, May 2007 to May 2009
o Overall CPA 3.83/4.0

o Relevant counework: Theory and Practice of Counseling, Psychology of Career and Personal
Development, Group Counseling, Psychological Disorders - Human Development, Society and
Culture in Counseling

Justice Stndies MA., University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, January 2005 to September 2006
o Overall CPA 3.90/4.0

o Relevant counework: Violence in the Family, Children & the Law, Organizational Leadership,
Evaluation of Social Programs, Quantitative Research Methods

Psychology and Justice Studies B.A., University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, August 2001 to
May 2005

o Overall GPA: 3.42/4.0 Within Major: 3.75/4,0
o Relevant counework: Behavioral Analysis, Personality Psychology, Abnormal Psychology,

Behavior Culture and Contemporary Society.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Cbordioator of Program Evalnatlon and Improvement - National Alliance on Mental Illness: New
Hampshire, Concord, NH, 2006 - Present

o Collect, enter, analyze, and manage program data
0 Provide recommendations for program improvements based on evaluation results

Develop new evaluation tools
o Ensure compliance with evaluation requirements of grants/contracts
o Conduct extensive literature reviews to support new and existing programs
o Coordinate with outside evaluators to ensure that data collection activities are in compliance with

Institutional Review Board requirements
o Participate in state workgroups to improve the capacity of data surveillance systems

EvaluatioD Consultation - Antioch University New England Center for Behavioral Health Innovation,
2013- Present

o Collaborate on evaluation of federal grants including Garrctt Lee Smith Suicide Prevention,
FAST Forward (System of Cart), Safe Schools Healthy Students, and Project AWARE

o Collect and submit National Outcome Measure and Infrastructure Development, Prevention &
Mental Health Promotion data on a quarterly basis

o Develop and maintain program data dashboards
o  Interface with multi-site evaluation teams for federal grants and respond to data and reporting

requests

Office Assistant -The Office of International Students and Scholars - UNH, Durham, NH, 2003-2006
o Performed general administrative duties i.e., Filing documents, data entry, preparation of

correspondence, preparation of event materials, website maintenance, etc.
o Provided information to ensure that students maintained appropriate immigration status
o Assisted with training/supervision of new staff.
o Acted as International Student Orientation Leader for newly arrived international students



Resume - Patrick A. Roberts (cant'd)

RECENT PUBLICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

o Co-author: Trcmblay, O.C., Fauth, J., Erdmann, J., Roberts, P. (2015, November). Maximizing
Practitioner Utility of Data Dashboards. Paper presented at the annuaJ mfceting of the American
Evaluation Association, Chicago, IL.

Patrick Roberts, MA, MEd, Coordinator ofProgram Evaluation and Improvement.
Patrick Roberts received his BA in Psychology and Justice Studies from the University of New
Hampshire in May of 2005, his MA in Justice Studies from the University of New Hampshire in
September of200'i5, and his MEd in Counseling in 2009 from the University of New Hampshire. Since
September 2006 he has been employed at NAMINH. He oversees the internal evaluation and evaluation
reporting of all NAMI NH programs, and coordinates with the state and national evaJuators for the NH's
.Garrett Lee Smith, FAST Forward (System of Care), Safe Schools Healthy Students, and Project
AWARE SAMHSA grants. Mr. Roberts also maintains the social media pages and websites for NAMI
NH and NAMI NH's Connect Suidde Prevention Program. He is a member of the NH Research and
Evaluation Group, a special member section of the NH Public Health Association, and chairs the NH
Suicide Prevention Council Data Subcommittee.



TAMMY E. MURRAY, CIA

SUMMARY: Expertise '\n accounting systems development, fiscal management, financial
reporting and strategic planning. Proven record of developing and Implementing financial and
operational controls that Improve P&L performance. Successful track record In building strong
organi^tional cultures, Identifying business opportunities, and deHvering pp'sitive results. Known
for ability to conceptualize and successfully implement human resource systems for sustained
business growth. Core competencies Include-.

Rnandal arKd strategic planning Cash flow management
Auditing aryj compliance Employee reialions
Budget development and management Business process Impro^ment
Federal grant management Numerous accounting software programs

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Chief Financial Officer NAMl New Hampshire, Concord, New Hampshire

•  Integral member of senior management team leading complex nonprofil organization with
multiple funding sources including federal and state contracts and an affiliated structure with
diverse program areas delivered nationally.

•  Developed and utilized forward-looking, predictive models and activity-based ftnanda) analyses
to provide Insight into the organization's operations and business plans while managing
organizational risk.

• Reorganized accounting functions, investigated and implemented sophisticated furx) accounting
software, and achieved balance sheet creditabiiity through proper accounting policies and
procedures. f

•  Implemented controls for A/P, A/R and G/L, ensuring accuracy, consistency and compliance with
all funders requirements irx^fuding the Office pf Management end Budget Uniform Administrative
requirements, cost prindples and audit requirement for federal awards.

• Achieved unqualified audit opinions, with'no material weaknesses or deticlencies during entire
tenure of position.

• Developed a financial measurement standard and developed system to monitor performance
against goals Including budgeting, forecasting and business models.

•  Engaged finance committee in investment, and asset management, growing activities by $1M.

•  Secured line of credit to meet short term cash flow deficiencies.

• Created the organizations first financial and human resources policies and procedures manuals.

•  Led and executed real estate acquisition and renovation of organization's facilities, reducing
overhead expenses and enhancing organization's visibility.

•  Developed and administered employee benefits Including 403(b) plans for all employees.

•  Identified IT system upgrade requirements to accommodate expanding growth, and compliance. ■



TAMMY E. MURRAY, CtA (ConQ

RELEVANT PRIOR EXPERIENCE:

Field Operations Manager
OfTtceMax, Incorporated, Cleveland. Ohio.

Senior Internal Auditor

OfficeMax, Incorporated, C\eye\anti.Ohto.

Collection Servicee Manager
Balfour Company, Attlaboro, Massachusetts.

Senior Auditor/Accountant

Balfour Company, Attleboro, Massachusetts.

Office Manager
C. Fisher Manufacturing, Smithfield. Rhode Island.

Staff Accountant

The Jen Companies, Cranston. Rhode Island.

EDUCATION & PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATION:

BRYANT UNIVERSITY, Bachelor of Science in Business Administration

Major Accounting

CERVFIED INTERNAL AUDITOR



Frank Edeiblut

Commiisionef

h
JUNOaaSptt 1J32DAS ^11

Christine Brennan
Deputy CommiMtoner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 Pleasant Street

Concord. N.H. 03301
TEL (603) 271-6133
FAX (603) 271-1953

May 15,2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 .
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellncss, Office of
Social & Emotional Wellness to exercise a renewal option on a sole source contract with
National Alliance on Mental Illness New Hampshire, (NAMl NH), Concord, NH (vendor code
166630), by increasing the price limitation by $148,603.75 from $161,247.40 to $309,851.15, to
continue working in partnership with the NH Department Of Education, (NHDOE) in all levels*
of decision-making, including the development, implementation and evaluation of the System of
Care (SOC), effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 29,
2020. This contract was originally approved by Governor and Council on October 2, 2017 (Item
#37), renewed on June 20, 2018 (Item #132) 100% Federal funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the account titled System of Care
Grant for FY 20 and FY 21 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office without further Govemor and Council approval, if needed and justified:

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073

Grants - Federal

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073

Grants - Federal

FY'2Q

$118,883.00

FY-21

$29,720.75

EXPLANATION

The DOE would like to exercise the renewal option on a sole source contract. This contract was
originally sole sourced, due to the federal grant requirement that the agency identify a Lead
Family Contact prior to submitting the application. A Request for Letter of Commitment (RFC)
was advertised on the Bureau of Student Wellness Website: www.nhstudentwellness.org; and the
Department Of Education website - Office of Student Wellness, on March 23 through March 31,
2016. The Office of Student Wellness only received one request which was submitted by NAMI
NH. NAMI NH agreed to work with the New H^pshire Department of Education to fulfill the

TDD Access; Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page Two ,

requirements of the grant. NAMl NH has been an active partner in the NH Children's Behavioral
Health Collaborative steering committee and Safe Schools/Health Students and Project
Advancing Wellness and Resilience in Education (AWARE) state management teams.

The purpose of this contract renewal is to improve mental health outcomes for children and
youth.(birth to 21 years of age) with serious emotional disturbances (SED) and their families.
This program will support the wide scale operation, expansion and integration of system of care
(SOC) approach by creating sustainable infrastructure and services that are required as part of the
Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for Children with Serious Emotional
Disturbances. SOC will support the provisions of mental health and related recovery support
services to children and youth with serious emotional disturbances and ̂ ose with early signs and
symptoms of serious mental illness first episode psychosis, and their families.

NAMI NH is evaluated by the Department through the monitoring of the services provided. In
addition, they submit reports to the Department on the progress in meeting the objectives of the
contract. A final report will be due &om the vendor upon completion of this contract.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

nJ- wr
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

FE:TLS

Enclosures



AMENDMENT TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellness, hereinafter "the
Agency," and National Alliance on Mental Illness New Hampshire, Concord, NH, hereinafter "the Contractor", and,
pursuant to an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on October 2, 2017 (Item
11^37) and renewed on June 20, 2018 (Item #132) hereby agree to modify same as follows:

Amend section 1.7 by removing June, 30.2019 and replacing with September 29. 2020

Amend Section i .8 by removing $ 161,247.40 and replacing with S309,8S 1.1S.

Remove Exhibit A (Scope of Services) and replace with Exhibit A-1 (Scope of Services).

Remove Exhibit B-) (Budget) and replace with Exhibit B'2 (Budget).

Remove Exhibit C and replace with C-1

Add Exhibits D-H

All other provisions of this contract shall remain in full force and effect.

This renewal option shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval, and shall terminate on September 29, 2020.

This thodification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Education
(Agency)

Division of Commissioner's Opice

Bv: 
Ĉommissioner of Education Date

)  NamaaPCorTOration (Contractor)

By:

Signature, Title Date OS/OCf/ ZOi^

STATE OF ;

County of VV\gfl<»^TwApW

On this the day of VT\ftY 201^ before me, VlogTojJ , the undersigned officer,
personallyypeared acknowledged himsel£Q»e»tlfto be tte • ^

e  of in] Amt Mcu. a corporation, and that he , as such .
being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name
of the corporation by himselfi'hetseif .

In witness whereof I hereto set my Jfaild and official seal. ^

^  Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
I I : I
5  • : 5
5  a



Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this ^ ' day of 201Ii2f^ day of

ivis

OA

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of

n of Attorney General Office

By:



EXHIBIT A-1

Scope of Services

NAMINH will provide to the New Hampshire Department of Education, Office of Social &
Emotional Wellness with the services to support the expansion of NH's System of Care and the
provision of family driven services and supports across NH's educational system.

Services provided within this contract will include:
1. One Full Tjme Equivalent Lead Family Contact to work in partnership with the Office of

Social & Emotional Wellness. The Lead Family Contact will:
•  Submit work plan for approval that identifies proposed activities and a timeline for

implementation of the services to be provided within this contract.
•  Participate in bi-monthly calls with staff from the Office of Social & Emotional

■Wellness.
•  Support the use of the Dual Capacity Framework within grantee demonstration sites

and statewide.
•  Assist grantee demonstration sites with the completion of the Family Engagement

Fidelity Tool (FEFI) and participates in subsequent planning
•  Identify, recruit family leadership candidates and connect them with a Family

Leadership Training Program.
•  Recruit, provide or ensure training/orientation and support to family leaders in a role

of their choice.
• Work to eliminate stigma and end discrimination regarding mental health for all

individuals and their families. ^
«. Serve on work groups, advisory councils and committees as appropriate.
•  Collect and analyze all data related to the position.
• Demonstrate in his/her work a commitment to the system of care values and guiding

pnnciples.

2. Provide access to the Director of Children and Youth Programs to work in partnership with
the Office of Social & Emotional Wellness. The Director of Children,and Youth Programs
will:

•  Support execution of the work plan developed by the LFC.
•  Participate in bi-monthly calls with staff from the Office of Social & Emotional

Wellness.
•  Supports the use of the Dual Capacity Framework within grantee demonstration sites

and statewide.
• Work to eliminate stigma and end discrimination regarding mental health for all

individuals and their families.
•  Serve on work groups, advisory councils and committees as appropriate.
•  Effectively outreaches and promotes education, leadership programs, and public

policy advocacy.
•  Demonstrate in his/her work a commitment to the system of care values and guiding

principles.

Initials
Date



Item

EXHEBIT B-2

Budget

DescriptioD Total Expeose

Lead Family Contact and Director of Children and Youth
Programs to work to work in partnership with the Office

Personnel of Social & Emotional Wellncss in all levels of decision- $ 84,475.00
making, including the development, implementation and
evaluation of the SOC and providing support services for
families receiving services through the cooperative
a^^ment.

Fringe Calculated at 40% 5 33,790.00

Travel

Meetings

Mileage reimbursement for Lead Family Contact
estimated at 24,000 miles per year based on historical and $ ) 0.700.00
statewide overseeing of (3) FCSS including North
Coimtry. Mileage is reimbursed at the GSA approved rate
ofd.535/per mile.

Travel to and from national meetings as required to
support the expansion of NH's System of Care and the
provision of family driven services and supports across
NH's educational system.

3,700.00

Indirect Costs

Total Direct Costs S i 32,663.00

$  15,938.75

Total $ 148,603.75

Limitation on Price; This Contract will not excccdS $148,603.75

Source of Funding: Ftmding for this contract is 100% Federal Funds from the account tilled
System of Care Grant, as follows:

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073 FY'20

Grants - Federal $118,883.00

06-56-56-562010-50600000-072-509073

Grants - Federal

FY'21

$29,720.75

Method of Payment:

Payment will be made upon the submiital of an invoice that is received by the 10th of the following
month which is supported by a summary of activities that have taken place in accordance with the
terms of the contract. Invoice template to be provided by the Office of Social & Emotional Wcllness.

Attn: Melissa Lee

NH Department of Education
Office of Social &. Emotional Wellness

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

I* t t\Initials

Date
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None.

Initials

Date %



Revised 1/11/r 9

EXHIBtTD

Contractor Obligations

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
administrotive. contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or
breocti contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200. Appendix II. required contract clauses.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U-S.C: Chop. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims
and Statements) applies to the controctor's actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its
certification, and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees thot the
provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.. opply to this cerlification and disclosure, if ony.

Breach

A breach of the contract clauses above moy be grounds for termination of the contract, and
for deborment as a contractor and subcontractor os provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understands thot. if the project which is the subject of this Conlroct is financed in
whole or In port by federal funds, thot if the undersigned, the company that the Controctor
represents, or any employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement,
representation, report or claim as to the chorocler. quality, quantity, or cost of material used or
to be used, or quantity or quality work performed or to be performed, or mokes any false
statement or representation of a materiol fact in ariy statement, certificate, or report, the
Contractor and any company that the Contractor represents moy be subject to prosecution
under the provision of 18 USC § 1001 and §1020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is applicoble if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts
onty.)

The Contractor.ls required to comply with aD applicable standards, orders or requirements issued
under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean Water Act
(33 U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order 11738. and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations
(40 CFR Part 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of
tocilities included on the EPA List of Violating Focilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA
and to the U.S. EPA Assistont Administrator for Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materfals

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962).'State
agencies and agencies of a political subdivision of a sfate that are using appropriated Federal
funds for" procurement must procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that contain the highest percentoge of recovered
moteriols practicoble, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the
purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired in the
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid waste manogement services in a
monner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an
affirmotive procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA
guidelines.

Conlroctof
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ExhIbH E

Federal Deborment end Suspension

a. By signature on this Controct. the Contractor certifies Its complionce. and the
compliance of its Sub-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principol
investor, project director, monoger. auditor, or any position ot outhority involving federol
funds: .

1. Is not currently under suspension, deborment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of'
ineligibility by any Federal Agency:

2. Does not hove a proposed deborment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by
any Federol Agency within Ihe past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or hod a civil judgment reridered against the firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction In any motter involving fraud or offlclol
misconduct within the past three (3) years. ,

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unoble to certify to the statement in
Section o.l . obove. the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared Ineligible to
enter into Contract or participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as
listed in Sections a.2., 0.3.. or a.4., above. Ihe Contractor or Its Sub-Contractor shall
submit a written explonatlon to the DOE. The certification or explanation shall be
considered in connection with the DOE's determination whether to enter Into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate Nvritten notice to the DOE If. at any time,
the Contractor or Its Sub-Contractor, leom thot its Deborment end Suspension
certification has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

ContTOctor Irvliols.
Oof
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Exhibit F

Antl-Lobbylhg

The Contractor agrees to conripty with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121.
Government wide Guidonce for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352. and
further agrees to have the Contractor's^represenlative. execute the following.Certlflcotion:

The Controctor certifies, by signing and submitting ttiis contract, to the best of his/her knowledge
and belief, that:

a. No federal approprioted funds have been paid or stxili be paid, by or on behotf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or
employee of any State or Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, on officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the
awarding of any Federal contract. t^>e making of any federal grant, the making of any
federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the extension.
contlrK/atlon. renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,
or cooperative ogreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been poid or shoD be paid to
any. person for influenang or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any
Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, arxt officer or employee of Congress, or on
emptoyee of a Member of Congress in connecfion with ttnis Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative ogreement. the undersigned shall complete ar»d submit the
"Disclosure of Lobbyir>g Activities" form in occordonce with its instructions
fhtto://wvw.whitehouse.aov/Qmb/oronts/sflllin.Ddfl.

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a

prerequisite for moking and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title
31 and U.S. Code. Any person who foils to file the required certification shall be subject to
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shall require that the lar>guage
of this certification be included in subcontracts with oil Sub-Contractor(s) and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors which exceed $100,000 ond that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier
Sut>-Contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The DOE shall keep the firm's certification on file os port of its original contract. The
Contractor shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-
Contractors on nie. Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion
arxl occeptance of any given project.

Confroc'or ,
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Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Mode Under o Contract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality

Rights to Inventions Made Under o Contract or Agreement
Contracis or agreerrvenls for the performance of experimenlol. developmental, or research
work shoP provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting
Invention in accordance with,37 CFR part 401. "Rights to Inventions Mode by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperolive
Agreements." and any implementing regulations issued by the DOE.

Any discovery or Invention that arises during the course of the contract shall tje reported to the
DOE. The Contractor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer (within
2 months) otter the inventor discloses It in writing to controctor personnel responsible for potent
matters. The owarding agency shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be
allocoted consistent with "Government Potent Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

Confidentlority

All Written and oral Information and materials disclosed or provided by the DOE under this
agreement constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was
provided before or after the date on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge thot by making use of. acquiring or
adding to information about motters and data related to this agreement, which ore conndentiol
to the DOE aixJ its partners, must remain the exclusive property of the DOE.

Conftdential information means all data ond informotion related to the Ixjsiness and operation
of the DOE, including but not limited to oD school and student data contained in NH Title XV,
Education, Ctiapters 186-200.

Confidential information includes lx»t is not limited to, student and school district data, revenue

and cost information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in
part or in whole by the DOE. finorKriol information, partner informalion(inctucHng the identity of
DOE portners). Controctor and supplier informotion, (including Ihe identity of DOE Contractors
and suppliers), and any Information that has been marked "confidentiol" or "proprietary", or
with the like designotion. During the term of this contract the Contractor agrees to abide by
such rules as may be adopted from time to time by the DOE to maintain the security of all
confidential information. The Contractor further agrees that it wiD always regord and preserve as
confidential information/data received during the performonce of this contract. The Contractor
will not use, copy, make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential informatiori. nor will it give,
disclose, provide access to, or otherwise make availoble any confidentiol information to ony
person not employed or contracted by the DOE or subcontracted v^th the Contractor.

Ownership of Intedectual Property

The DOE shall retain ovmership of oQ source data and other intellectual property of the DOE
provided to the Contractor In order to complete the services of this ogreement. As welJ the 006
Nvfll retain copyright ownership for any and oil materials, patents and inleOectual property
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines,
posters, or reports. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than
use for the terms under the contract without prior written approval from the DOE.

Conlrocror Wriols

DofeSMi'
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Exhibit H

Termination

a. Termination for Cause

The DOE moy terminate the Contract for cause for reasons including but not limited
to the following circumstances:

1. Contractor's failure to perform the services as detailed herein and in any
modificalions.fo the Controct.

2. Contractor's failure to complete the Contract within the timeframe specified
herein end in any modificofions to the Controct.

3. Contractor's failure to comply with any of the material terms of the Contract.
If the DOE contemplates termination under the provisions of Subsections a.I..
0.2.. or a.3 above, the DOE shall issue a written notice of defoult describing the
deficiency. The Contractor stKill have five (5) business days to cure such
deficiency. In the event the Controctor does not cure such deficiency, the DOE
may terminote the Contract without further consideration by issuing a Notice of
Termination for Default and may recover compensation for damages.
If, after the Notice of Termination for Default has been issued. It is determined

that the Contractor wos not In default or the tefmination for default was

otherwise improper, the termination shall be deemed to hove been a
Terminotion for Convenience.

b. Termination for Convenfence

The DOE rrioy terminate the Controct for convenience, in whole or in part. when,
for any reason, the DOE determines that such terminotion Is in its best Interest. The
contract can be lermlrvated due to reasons known to the non-Federal entity. I.e..
including but not limited to program chianges. changes in state-of-the-art
equipment or technology, insufficient funding, etc. The Controct termination is
effected by notifying the Contractor, in writing, specifying that oH or a portion of
the Controct Is terminated for convenience and the terminotion effective date.

The Controctor shaD be compensated only for worlc satisfactorily completed prior to
the termination of the Contract. The Contractor is not entitled to loss or profit. The
amount due to the Contractor is determined by the DOE.

tn the event of termination for convenience, the DOE shall be liable to the
Contractor only for Controctor's worlc performed prior to termination.

c. The DOE'S Right to Proceed with Work

In the event this Contract is terminated for any reason, the DOE shall have the
option of completing the Contract or entering Into an agreement with another
party to complete services outlined In the Contract.

Conlroclor JruVtols

Defeat®



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Williom M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hompshire. do hereby certify that NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a New Hampshire Nonpront Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 24. 1982.1 further

certify that-all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62349

Certificate Number: 0004509686

SI Cfi
%

s
o

it

<1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi-xed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



A^CC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (SUVDOrYVYV)

05/06/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE CfOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: tf the cartlflcata holdar la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(laa) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba andorsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubjact to the tarma and condHlona of the policy, certain pollclas'msy require an andoraamant A atattmant on
thia cartiflcBta does not confer rights to the cartiflcata holdar In Uau of such andorsaniant(a}.

pROoucen

E 8 S Insurance Ssfvieas LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lena

POBOX7425

Gilford NH 03247.7425

SSSie^' Eleanor Splntzzola
(803) 293-2791 | KS. (603) 293-7186

Be«norspinazzol»Oasinsuranca.nal

msuReatsiAFFOADiNO coveitAoe NAICS

wsuaeRA: CraaiAmarlcanlnsurancaGroup GAIG

WSUAEO

Natlor^ AJUanca on Memal illness. NAMI-NH

85 North Sate Street

Concord NH 03301

WSURERS: Tachnotogy Insurance Co 42378

WSURER C:

PtSURER 0:

praURERE:

wsuRcR r:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2019 REVISION NUMBER:

iRSir
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED SELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDIDON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY RMD CLAIMS.

FOOCTBirpoLicV^F
TYFC OF MSUIUNCe poticr MUkBCit

COMMERCIAL OCNERAL UASIUTY

CLAIUS^DE OCCUR

OENL AOOfttaLTE UXTAPPueS PER:

i  i Sct i 1
OTHER:

LOC

IMWOOFrYYYI

0&07/2019

rMM/DO/Yrro

05/07/2020

uMrra

EACH OCCURRENCE

DuuesTonefnE?—
PREMISES <Eiocq>rT«f>e»>

XOexPlAffirowtcNwI

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERAL A0GRE0AT6

PRODUCTS - COMWOP AGO

AbMol Cnslf. OssSpc

COMBMEO SINGLE LIMir
(EAACdOAWI

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

3,000.000

3.000,000

i 1,000.000

AUTOMOBILe LIABnjTY

ANY AUTO

t 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Pw pnon)

OWNED
AUTOS OM.Y
MIREO
AUTOS OM.Y X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NQNOWKD
AUTOS OM.Y

05/07/2019 05«7/2020 BOOILY INJURY (P« AcdMM)

PROPERTY OALIAOE
(Ptr ■edatwl

UHBRELLALiAB

excess LIAS

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000.000

05/07/2019 05/07/2020 AQOREGATE

OeO I X RETEKITOW t ^0-000
Leb—WORKERS COMPeNSATICN

ANO CHPLOVERT UABILnY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEWeCCLmvE
OFFjCERMEAAER EXCLU06D7
(MNMawiy In HH|

olsCRIPTOM OF OPERATIONS BMwr

statute

0 10/10/2018 10/10/2019 E.L EACHACCOENT 500,000

E.U DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 5W.000

6.L. CMSEASE - POLCYLIIMT 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS IVEHICUS (ACORD 101. AMttonM ItenMrtu SchedulA iM)r M MMcMd H mert tpw* U mquM)

NH Oepanmeni of Education
Bureau of Student Wellness

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRI8E0 POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREO m
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPfUSeHTATIVe

ACORD 25(2018/03)

01988.2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Alt right* rM«rv«d.

The ACORD name and logo are ragistarad martia of ACORO



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporaiion wiihoui a Seal)

1, Russell Conte , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the Clerk of the Corporaiioit. cannot be siynatory)

(1) I am the duly elected clerk of NAMI New Hampshire .
(Corporation Name)

(2) The following are true copies of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on Mav 6.2019 .

(date)

RESOLVED: That this Coiporaiion enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through
its Department of Education.

RESOLVED: That Kenneth Norton Executive Director
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Siguaiory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the Stale and to execute
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

(3) The foregoing resolution(s) have rrat been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of the
day of Mav . 2019 .

(day, month, yr) (mu.^i be same date as the contract date)

(4) Kenneth Norton is the duly elected Executive Director of the corporation.
(luime orccnlract signatory) (title ofconinicl signatory)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Business Representative of the Corporation this
6th day of Mav . 2019 .

/0> MY
i / COMMISSION \ %.
=  -• EXPIRES - =

I  //(Signarure of Clerk of Corporation)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF Merrimack

On Mav 6*^ 2019 the foregoing instrument was acl^wledged before me.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Ju/l^ 2i01 tuMycommissioncxpu^on:*-^^ ̂  ̂ Notary Public/Justice of the Peace



National Alliance on Mental lllneea

nnmi New Hampshire
BIO FOR

BRIAN HUCKINS

Brian Huckins is a healthcare professional with a strong background in the development and
delivery of services of proactive care for people who need assistance with behavioral health,
developmentally disabilities, and/or medically frail conditions. His skills include development
and implementation of policies, procedures, care methods, and care coordination. Brian has a
unique understanding of broad services programs, state funding, provider networks and waivered
services for all age populations.

Brian has a history of working with people who require long-term supports and services from
ages zero through the lifespan. Brian helped make START Services a state-wide service. His
most recent work has been work has been with NAMINH. He is the Director of Children and

Youth Programs. He works with Wraparound Services and Family Peer Support Specialists
supporting children who have mental illness throughout the state of New Hampshire.

^  Find Help, Find Hope
NAMI New Hampshire • 85 North Stale Street • Concord, NH 03301

InfoLine: 800-242-6264 • Tel. 603-225-5359 • Fax 603-228-8848 • info@naminh.org / www.NAMlNH.org



National Alliance on Mental lllneas

nnini New Hampshire
iln rital tllpoaa

BIO FOR

SANDY ALONZO

Sandy Aionzo is a passionate educator who began her career with the youngest of children, as
the Director of a Licensed Child Care Program in Coos County. She also was a facilitator for the
Soft Skills portion of the WorkReadyNH program; teaching adults to use reflection, effective
communication, problem solving, as well as many other soft skills in a classroom setting. Sandy
has an understanding of human development (including effects of trauma), how to build trusting
relationships with others and she is knowledgeable about the services available throughout
Northern New Hampshire.

Sandy has served on the Board of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. as the Board
Chair since December 2013. She is proud to say her volunteer experience began as a Candy
Striper (Junior Volunteer) at Weeks Medical Center in Lancaster, NH while she was in high
school and has continued in her spirit of volunteerism to date.

Sandy is currently a Family Peer Support Coordinator with NAMI New Hampshire. She works
with NH High Fidelity Wraparound supporting youth who have mental illness and their families
in a strength-based, family-driven, youth-guided process in which the family and their team
(includes natural supports & local agency representatives) are striving toward reaching the
family's vision.

Find Help, Find Hope
NAMI New Hampshire • 85 North State Street • Concord, NH 03301

infoLlne: 800-242-6264 • Tel. 603-225-5359 • Fax 603-228-8848 • lnfo@naminh.org I www.NAMINH.org



NAMI NH Board of Director

2018-2019

NAME
BOARD

POSITION

Atkinsoo, Kate Mdnber

Brown, Donna Member

Bunker, John 1? Vice President

Conte, Russeil Secretary

Cunningham, Ross Member

Eastman, Chuck Member

Gardiner, Arthur Member

Hosmer, Andrew Member

Janelle, PetCT President

LaFrance, Shawn 1" Vice President

Moler, Teresa . Meriiber

Norian, Isabel Member

Rjchardison, Rose Tri^urcr

Sanders, Elizabeth Member

Trudel, Karen Member

Wright, Michael Member
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Frank Edclblut ChrtstlnaBrennan
-TZ^-- Deputy Commbaioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301
TEL. (603) 271-0133
FAX (603)271-1053

May22,20I8

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education Bureau of Student Wellness to exercise a
renewal option on a sole source contract with National Alliance on Mental Illness New Hampshire,
(KAMI NH), Concord;-NH (vendor code. 16.6630X by.increasing the price limitation by S80,623.70 from
$80,623.70 to $161,247.40 to continue working in partnersh^ with the NH Dqiartment Of Education,
(NHDOE) in all levelsiof decision-maldng, including the development, implementation and evaluatioh of
the System ofCare(SOQ, effective July 1,2018 through June 30,2019 upon Goveraor & Council
approval. This contract was originally approved by Governor and,Council on October 2,2017 (Item
#37). 100% federal fimds.

Funds to support this request are available in the account titled System of Care (SOQ;

06-056-056-562010-50600000-072-509073 FY'19

Grants - Federal $80,623.70

EXPLANATION

The DOE would like to exercise this renewal option on a sole source contract This contract was
originally sole sourced, due to the federal grant requirement that the agency identify the evaluation team
prior to submitting the application. A request for a Letter of Commitment ̂ HFC) was advertised on the
Ofiice of Student Wellness website and the Department of Education website, OfFice of Student Welbess
on March 23 through March 31,2016.

In FY'2018, NAMl NH's Lead Family Contact provided a one-to-one support to primary care givers of
children and/or adolescents with serious emotional disturbance (SED) using the Family and Community
Support peer-to-peer model. They also delivered a variety of trainings: Parents Meeting the Challenge,
Family Leadership Training and Cultural Competency. Key Meetings were attended by the Lead family
contact. Relationships were built with key players in all coverage areas of White Mountain Regional
School District, Claremont School District, and .Winnisquam School District The Lead Family Contact
woiked in partnership with System of Care partners to ensure the family voice is embedded throughout
the system.

TDD AccM«: Rolsy NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNmES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

May 22, 2018
Page Two

The purpose of this contract renewal is to improve mental health outcomes for children and youth (birth
to 21 years of age) with serious emotional disturbances (SED). This program supports the wide scale
operation, expansion and integration of system of care (SOC) approach by creating sustainable
infrastructure and services that are required as part of the Comprehensive Community Mental Health
Services for Children with Serious Emotional Disturbances. SOC supports the provisions of mental
health and related recovery support services to children and youth with serious emotional disturbances
and those with early signs and symptoms of serious mental illness first episode psychosis, and their
families.

NAMINH is evaluated by the Department dirough the monitoring of the services provided. In addition,
they submit reports to the Department on the progress in meeting the objectives of the contract. There are
two (2) more yearly options to renew on this contract then there will be a final report due from the vendor
within six (6) months of ending services. ^

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

FE:TLS

Enclosures



AMENDMENT TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New H&mpshirc Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellness, hertinaAer "the
Agency," end National Alliance on Mental Illness New Hampshire, Concord, NH, hereinafter "the Contractor", and, •
pursuant to an agreement bemreen the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on October 2,2017
(Item #37) hereby agree to modify same as follows: ^

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Amend Section 1.7 by removing June 30,2018 and replacing with June 30,2019.

Amend Section 1.8 by removing $80,623.70 and replacing with $161,247.40.

Remove Exhibit B (Budget) and replace with Exhibit B-1 (Budget).

All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and eSecL

This renewal option shall be effective on July 1, 2018.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the
parties end must be attached to the agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, hereto have set their bands as of the day and year first above written,

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Education
(Agency)

Division of Commissioner's OffK

By

sioner a Onice^

31:
Commissioner of Education Date

kIAVYM xIf.uj U>^mP£Ulgf
!ame of Corporation (Contractor)

By.

STATE OF l^BVO
County of_ ''A\<£gg.tv\ftr.k

Signature!, Title Date '

On this the \^^^dav of.. , 2d|^ before me, KLgTO/vj _,the undersigned
ftPRr.j>r ^ •>•**_ known to mc (orsalisfiictory proveD)-to be
the peraon'wESSnfflrne'Istobscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for'
the purposes therein contained.

Id witness^^lereof, I beret^set my hand and cfficial seal.

Ccmn^ion ExpiresNotary Public/Justice of the ̂

Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General ̂  « —SiShday of 20_.

)f Attorney General Office

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of. _,20

By:



EXHIBITB-1

Budget

Item Description FY'19

Lead Family Contact (LFC) Lead Family Contact to work with the Family
and ConuDunity Support Specialist (FCCS) st^
b ail levels of decision-making, bcludbg the
development, implementatipn and evaluadon of
the SOC and providbg support services for
families receiving services through the
cooperative agreement.

S44,W0.00

Lead Family Contract Fringe Calculated at 33% $14,846.70

Trevel/MeetiDgs Mileage reimbursement for Lead Family
Contact estimated at 18,000 miles per year based
on historical and statewide overseebg of (3)
FCSS bduding North Country; and travel to (be
National Conference. Mileage is reimbursed at
the GSA approved rate of0.535/per mile.

$10,200.00-Local
$ 2,500.00-National

Expenses Wireless phone service @S90/mo for Lead
Family Contact The wireless phone service
includes the monthly fee bcluding data and
botspot, and initial cost of phone, b addition,
the LFC will have a tablet with data which will

include connectivity costs.

S^l ,620.00

Administrative Costs S 6,467.00

Totals *■ $80.623.70

LlfrJtation on Priw: This Costrsct will oot «c«ed % $80,623.70

Soqrce of Funding: Funding for this coottBct is 100% Federal Funds from the account titled System of Care
(SOC), as follows: >

Account; 06-056-056-562010-50600000-072-509073
Gnmts - Federal

EOS.
$ 80,623.70

Method of PavmenI:

Payment will be made upon the submittal of an invoke that is received by the IO'' of the fbllowing month which is
supported by a summary of activities that have taken place b accordance with the terms of the contract.

Attn: Michelle Myler
NH Department.of Education
Office of Student Wetlness
101 Pleasant Street
Concorti,NH 03301

Page f off Initial
Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardna, Secrttaiy of State of the State of New Htropshiie, do henby certify thatNAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a N^ Hampshire Nooproflt Corpoation registered to transact business in New Htrepshire on September 24,19S2.1 fUrtber

certify that ell fees and documents required by tfae Secmary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is coacemed.

Business ID; 62349
I

Certiricate Number 0004082315.

c

Mf.
%

6&.

o

•s

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my band and cause to be affixed

th4 Seat of the State of New Hampshire,

this I6th day of April A.0.2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Cojporation without 8 Seal)

I, Richard A. Chevrefils ^ , do hereby certify that*
(Name of the Presideni of the Corporation, cannot be signatory.)

(1) • I am the duly elected President of NAMT N^w Humrwhirg
(Coiporaiion Name)

(2) The following are true copies of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on Mavl2.2018

(date)

RESOLVED: That this Corporatioo enter into a contract with the State ofNew Hairpshire, acting through
its Department of Education.

RESOLVED: TTiat Kenneth Norton - Executive Director ,
,  (Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

is baeby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said cotioact with the State and to execute
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

(3) ■ The foregoing resoIutionCs) have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and efiect as of the
12 davof Mav .2018 .

(day, monih, yr) (must be same date as the contract date)'

(4) Kenneth Norton is the duly elected Executive Director of thie corporation.
' (name of comraci signatory) (title of contract .>ugoatory)

davof

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereunto set my hand as the Business Representetive of the CorporatioD this
VvyouA .20\? .

O

of President of Corporaigna

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF Mcfrimack

On Mav 12 2018 . the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before mc.

In witness whereof I herointo set my hand and official seal. \ ^^
n

My commission expires on: Notary.Public^Justicc of ce



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATSCMMOOrmY)

04/16/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING 1NSUR£R(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If (he certificate hoidar Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policytles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provtslorts or tw cndoreed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED,'subfoct to the terms end conditions of the poU^. certain polldas may require an endorsenient A statement on
this ceftlfleate does not confer tl(^ts to the certtflceta holder In Oeu of such endorsementfs).

nioouceii

E & S Insurance Scrvlcss LLC

M Meadowbrook Lane

POBqii7425

GUbnl NH 03347*7475

wgjf" PMUack

rSn, (603)203.2701 | Kg. (5C3)203.71M

wsuaERtsiAFaondMo coveiuoe Muce

iMineeA: GreatAmsrfcanlroOioup
Msuaeo

National Ailanca en Mental IDnass. NAMLNH

es North State Saeai

Conctfri NH 03301

MsjKmn: TachnoiogvlnsuoneeCo 42376

DISUMaC:

eicjROlo:

otkuanei

MSunnF:

COVERAGES CERTlFtCATE NUMBER: aiW16l3»0 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED 8EL0W HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PCRIOO
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANOtNO ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE kiny BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAM. THE MSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE P01/CIES0ESCRI8ED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CCNDmONS OF SUCH POUOES UMTTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY RAID CLAMS.
nun
LTR TVPf OFMSURANCe PCUCYNUMaCR iMMOormm

POLICY IDS' UMTTS 1

A

OOKKSRCIALOCMERAL UAaa/rv

1 cuuMawAW OCCUR

— 05/07/2018 0SA7/2016

eroiocasnENce , 1,000.000

, 100.000

MCO G9 (Am en* ewMn) , 5.000

pntSOWLAAIP/CUURV , 1.000.000

OENVAOCIMOATBUiarAmjESPPt

3 "ACr n SEct (HI >■«=
1 OTHER

OENERALAOOREOATE , 9JW0i)0O -

PRODUCTS • CCAMOP AOQ , 3JXO.OOO
AbUelCnNr.CissSpc S lAXLOOO

A

AuroMoeRe LUBBjrr 1

—
OM7/2018 06/07/2019

' XMiiaiNLO Sit&lB Liu/f
iFsMefetmn t IJXXLOOO

X

IahTAUTO BOOLYIMAJRT (Pveuwn) 1

OwrCD
ALrrosorar
MNEO
m;tosom.y X

8CHSMJB0
AUTOS
NOHQVnCO
AUTOS ON.Y

aooLY iMAHY {Pv Kden} 1

PAOKRWiSAUU)£ s

t

\
A

X uttaaeuAUAB 1

exctssLUB [
X OCCUR

cufu^oe —• 0S07/2018 05/07/2019
eACHOccuRRace , 1J»D.000
AOORCOATt , 1.000,000

Imo I^^retemticns ^0-000 •

B

noaxca* coMPEirsAnON
MOEMearmTUABajTY
AMrpNOPRrTonAwmcRie«5Ct/m«
orwcgRii«iamexauoeo7 I " I
pSMSMefy u leq '

oescRFiON OP epgrwnows

NfA 1(yi0/2017 io/i(V2aie

XI sT/mrrF 1 1 pn

BJ. CACHACCOOrT 1 900.000
El. asEAsa * EA ckPLOYcs , SOOJXX)

Ei. 0ISEAS8. POUCY uwrr 500.000

1

oeacaiPTiono»opeunowiilocatiows/vpecms iACO*owi,Aeed*Miaewi*aeiiedi4%wye* we*nrw**!

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SlMe of New Hampshire Department of Education
101 Plcaseni Sveel

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISXINl

AurNORSCD REPREserrAnve

ACORO2S(201A/03)
61B8S-2019ACORO CORPORATION. All riphls raovod.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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"All This from My Kitchen Table!"

Peggy Straw was in ihe business of hope, in 1978. NAMI New Hampshire's founder

gathered six hurting families around her kitchen table to demonstrate they were not

alone. To connect with one another. af»d with community resources. To strengthen their

coileciive voice in advocating for their loved ones living with mental illness. Most of all.

to bring hope into the lives of struggling families.

Nearly four decades later. NAMI New Hampshire remains first and foremost (n the

business of hope, in 201S. when touring the NAMI NH office - her first visit to the building

at 85 North State Street - Peggy kept saying 'all this from my kitchen table!* She was

Incredibly proud of the work that we had dorte to sustain and expartd 'our NAMI.'

In 3017. NAMI New Hampshire served more ̂ an 15.000 Granite Staters - strengthening

communities statewide by providing support, education, advocacy, and hope. Over cups

of coffee and tears, laughter and stories, learning and shared experiences, attending and

testify!^ at legislative hearings, hope grows.

NAMI NH honors Peggy's l^acy by nurturing hope In the face of adversity, strength

In vulnerability, connection In community, recovery in treatment, and Justice In action.

There was much cause for hope in 2017. The Veterans and Military Family Initiative,

deployed in conjunction with the NH Oepanment of Health and Human Services and

NH Care Path, delivered free statewide events throughout the year, culminating in the

Military Family £xpo. The Connect Program's trainers provided suicide prevention

and posiveniion training coast to coast NAMI NH hosted an overflow crowd for the

Granite State premiere ol God Knows Where I Am.

The Public Policy Committee was busy actively engaging legislative

leaders Including the Senate President Speaker of the House, and
I

Governor, each of whom separately toured Emergency Departments

to better understand the EO Boarding Crisis. Dozens of mental health

advocates wrote letters, made calls, and testified in person at the

hearings for House Bill 400. Subsequently. HB 400 cleared the full

House end S^ate. before being signed into law by Governor Chris

Sununu during a ceremony at- NAMI NH.

While hope abounds, struggles remain, in late May 2017.35 adults

and 27 children in mental health crisis were wailing in Emergency

Depanmenis Across New Hampshire - 62 individuals waiting for

treatment and beds.

Our work, and^ Peggy's legacy, continue. Please join us on this Journey

of hope as w,e'sirlve to be fsUgmafreeiniheSOB.

Peggy Straw.'* ■.
.Founder; Family,- Friend
NAMI New-HarnpsKlre'was born at'Peggy
Straw's kjichen-tabie'ln 1978. to help six -i
honing famtiies. Out of this mbjhe'r's power -
to transform, 'an organization was created that
last year.proylded eduCatbn. suppon. an<j
advoca^ to over,15^000 ifidMduais. . -

Our heajjs bfo.ke_vyiih'the news of:Peggy's: ' ,
• u'nexpwie'd passing .bh March 9.2017. P^ggy
.wasa.traiibiajterra N^ionary. a.ieader • and. first
and fOfemosi.';a_mother.vyho lo.vediher chiVd'sq

^much thkshfe'sel'oUl lo'transforrn a system.;
• In ,2015. Peggy g^ us thischafg'e: *We must. '
push as hard asVe can io reiurnio the ;
good mental health delivery systern that.
New Harnpshire was known for In the pasi"
We hear you. Peggy, and "wNI carry yob in pur
hearts "as we pu'sh onward.

I
k

KS.

i-r

Kenneth Norton. UCSW
Executive Direaor

Richard Chevr^flls
PreskJeni

\

NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE - FY3017 ANNUAL REPORT
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Military Faniily Expo

The Military Fa'mity Expo presented by NAM! NH on
September 16.2016 was a'great success - connecting
hundreds of mllltaiy merribers, veterans and their families.
There Were'crafts, yoga, story time, bouncy houses and
dancing for the kids (and young'at heart), and a wide "

variety .of resburces. presented from over 50 exhibitors.

Rellr^ Army Staff Sargent Travis Mills,

a quadruple amputee and recalibrated
warrior, Inspired and delighted with'a

powerful, and humorous, keynote address.

There were aisp group push-ups. marty
workshops, and.plenty of good food. .

Most Importantly. •

our military

members,

veteraris and

their families

were able to

meet and spend

tirrie together.

m

m
'  I

i Va

ii
SuicldePrevehtion Week

Governor Maggie Has^n declared Septernber

4-10, 2016 as Suicide Prevention Week.

On September 9th. Tara Ball led a ceretnohy

at Exeter High School. - ' ••

*Pack Up Your Sprroivs'-Film -

Screening During Mental Illness

Awareness Week

On October 5. 2016. Rebecca KInhan and her

family hosted a packed screening of the

documentary Pack Up Your Sorrows at Red

River Theatres in Concord. NH. This benefit

for NAMI NH helped other families learn'more

about accessing help and.finding hope.

Corinect in Alaska

In August 2016, NAMI New Hampshire's

Connect Program flew west to Alaska.

Pictured are Connect Postventlon Trainers and

pahJcipants - at the Tanana Chiefs Conference

in Fairbanks. Alaska. •

A post-film discussion

featured filmmakers

Meg Hutchinson and

Rob St'egman. along with

Rive'rbend Community

Mental Health CEO

Peter Evers and NAMI NH

Executive Director

Ken. Norton..

. PACK .Up.
■ YOUR SORROWS
. ewrV ̂  iw't lele**N

I offended my first meeting of Survivors

of Suicide Loss. I am so thankful for this

opportunity to help heal. (Joon)
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In January 2009. organizers of

the-Memoflal Tree lost their.son •

•and brother. Ma.nhew Hampton,

to suicide. To honor Matthew and at)

other loved ones lost to any cause,

they organize the Memorial free •
Lighting each year.'The Memorial

Tree rerhains lit throughout Suicide

Prevention Awareness Week,

' 'in remembrance of all loved ones.

Connect In California

Turning Point Community Programs

in California welcomed NAMI NH's

Connect Program in October 2016 -

pictured are newly minted Connect

Prevention Trainers who participated

in the event •

a
too

J  ■ '

I am finding NAMI NH training sessions

life changing! Help others while helping
myself. (Rod)

Thank You For Testifying

• Thank you to each and every

iixHyidual vyho testified before. •

or sent messages to. the NH House

and Senate Finance Committees

. during the early 2017 budget

hearings.- More than 50 rhental

health advocates stepped up to the

microphone to share their stories,

and many more sent heartfelt and

. persuasive letters.

Testifying in Concord on March 13,

2017, Monique Miller shared:

'I'm begging you. the mental health

services in New Hampshire have ■

become Inhumane • and almost

non-e*/stenf... When you ignore the

mental health problems, they don't

go.oway, they become part of

another crisis, suicide, .

homelessness, drug addiction.'

Also testifying in Concord, lO-year-

old Charlie Murdoch Roy told the

Committee:

"Vou should treat people the exact

same way you'd want to be treated.

Ifyou needed care for any medical

need, would you wont to wait

2 weeks for a bed? No! None of

those 50 people want to wait days
I

on end, either.' s.

r •'. r "» • *

""""nnnirnih

44
Very proud to join NAMI NH as a member
and look forward to working with them on
changing the culture In our state of an

overburdened mental health system, (jock)
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Annual Award

H Annual Awards were,

our Annual Conference on

he Annual Awards were

ht the extraordinary work of

ganlzaUons who go above and

? the lives of Individuals affected

and suicide.

to our 2017 award winners:

PROFESSIONAL

V. MD. PhD

ENT & CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Harris

THE YEAR

•H PROFESSIONAL

iley

USE ,

.NESS

ber

MD.MPH

ou to our volunteer

ommlttee. who; carefully and

: NAMINHS Dib-BdlriJ y'iith
p^lrtiy Smith ofltXl Corp _ • •
Shar9 : ' ' '

Visit from .UK's

If U Care Share

NAMI NH had the great pleasure

in-April 2017 to'welcome Shirley

Smith." Loss Survivor from England.

After losing hersori. Daniel to

suicide, she arid her family started

the If U Care Share Foundation.

They have been tirelessly working

in suicide prevention and

bereavement for survivors ever

since. Shirley won a Winston

Churchill Fellowship that brought

her to the US for study and

collaboration.

Wentworth by the

SeaSK

Thank you to all who braved chilly

temps and exceptionally brisk

winds, in order to support NAMI

New Hampshire at the Weniwojth

by the Sea Country Club SK oh

April 8. 2017! We're

grateful to Wentworth

for selecting NAMI NH

as their 5K nonprofit

beneficiary again in

2017 - thanks to all of

the terrific staff, and

generous runners

and walkers.

-

Childreh^

May1, 2617- May 7. 2017

Children's Mental Health Awareness

Week-seeks to promote the

importance of chlldren's.mental

health and reduce stigrtia. In

New'Hampshire. actrviti.es and

events took place statewide to

honor the occasion.

t  ! . • « •

At the start of the week. Governor

Chrls-Sununu read a proclamation

for Children's Men^l Health Week.

Commissioner Meyers from the

Department of Health and Human

Services, and Commissioner Edelbiut

from the Department of Education,

also participated.



Party with a Purpose

On May 19. 2017, Party with a

Purpose attendees heard from

Dr. Alex de Nesnera, Interim Chief

Medical Officer at New Hampshire

Hospital and a professor at

Dartmouth College's Geisel School

of Medicine. Dr. d explained factors

impacting the current emergency

department boarding crisis, and

explored how we can all work

together to address the issue.

MIchele Grennon. NAMI NH Board

1st Vice President, hosted the

evening at her beautiful oceanfront

home. NAMI NH is grateful to our

sponsors, attendees, and in-kind

donors, who rnade Party with

a Purpose a terrific success!

Youth Leaders in Action

Tiffany White and Abigail Thomas,

members of the Future Business

Leaders of America at Prospect

Mountain High School, competed

against other NH schools in an

FBLA Community Service Project

and Presentation. This team

presented on the Connect Suicide

Prevention Training they received

from NAMI NH and the Partnership

for Public Health. They took 1st

Place in that state completion and

will travel to California tp compete

at Nationals this June! Congratula

tions to these remarkable students

on their suicide prevention efforts!

• (Photo courtesy or Lakes Peglon Partnership

for Public HeoHh)

God Where I Am

The sold-out opening night of God Knows Where I Am on

April 21, 2017 at Red River Theatres was powerful - featuring

important conversation, mental health resources, and a

remarkable film. NAMI NH was honored to host the pre-film

public reception and post-film discussion.

Thank you to our wonderful panelists:

Filmmakers Jedd Wider S Todd Wider

Joan Bishop (Linda's sister) & Caitlin Murtogh (Joan's daughter)

Bill Rider, pres. & CEO. The Mental Health Center
of Greater Manchester

Stephanie Patrick, Exec. Dir., Disabiiity Rights Center - NH

Moderator: Ken Norton. Exec. Dir..NAMI New Hampshire

We're also grateful to those who brought mental health resources,

and to all who attended and joined the conversation.

2015

•.V : r -'.n

.i'-' --.r ^ :2'm

i' 1.

•i-.'i ' -j- •

• s .r ;  ̂ ;jf

fT

u

Zero Suicide Academy

NAMI NH's Elaine de Meilo of The Connect

Program participated in the Zero Suicide

Academy hosted in Cartersville. GA In June 2017.

This is a compassionate, coring, loving community
of hope and charity. I feel so blessed and honored
to be a small part of something so important and
greatly needed for so many tDympnno)
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> 2017 Anniiaj
35th Anniversary

n

II who joined us at NAM!

ual Meeting and 35th

'lebration. vyith a special

of NAMI NH Founder.

c you to the evening's

iding: .

W National £ NAMI NH

■esldent

11s. President

ty. Interim CEO '
Ire.Hbspltol

omlnat'lng Committee Choir
ExecutNe Director

otorofthe Year Award •
idley

t of Senator Jeanne Shaheen

z, Office of Senofor

Office of Representative
ster

r. Advancement Committee

; to the newest members of
rd of Directors, elected at the

•tt (Concord)

. Sr. (Penacook)

ler (Laconia)

m (Hopklnton)
I (Penacook)
(Peterborough)

those Board members

eted their terms on the .
rd - we're so gratefui for

ler

Partnering with First
Responders

NAMi NH partnered with the NH Slate
Poiice to provide training on Stress
and Fatigue in First Responders;
Piedging to Preserve Self to aii
NH State Troopers.

This Is the first time all NH State
Troopers were brought together to
be trained in awareness, strategies
and resources around managing
their own mental health issues, and
understanding the risk for suicide.

NAMI NH Heads to

Capitol Hill to
#Act4MentalHealth

NAMI New Hampshire staff and
voiunteers. in Washington. OC for
NAMI National Convention, headed

to Capitol Hill on June 29. 2017. They
were among the 1.000 i^NAMIConl?
attendees v/ho spread out to visit with
their federai delegations. The NAMI
NH team extended thanks to Senator
Jeanne Shaheen. Senator Maggie
Hassan. Representative Annie Kuster.
and Representative Carol Shea-Porter
for their advocacy on behalf of
mental health.

\\h\

'rS'Poquette

NAMI NH Legacy Circle

The NAMI New Hampshire Legacy
Circle, launched at the 2017
Annual Meeting, offers opportunities
for donors at every level to help
ensure our neight^ors receive the
support, education and advocacy they
deserve • long into the future.

'Our life's message, and work,
bos been about the effect of mental
illness on our life, and that of our
family. NAMI NH was there for us
in our darkest days. We had hoped
that within our lifetime the Impact of
stigma would have been eradicated,
but we now know other families will
continue to need NAMI NH. We need

to know that NAMI NH will be there
for them in this difficultJourney for
a real and fulfilling life for those we
/ove.'(Rona and Ken Purdy)

For more information, contact us at
development@NAMINH.org.

NAMI National
Convention Leadership
Award

Congratulations to NAMI
New Hampshire's Executive Director.
Ken Norton, who received the
Vicki Cottrell Executive Director

Leadership Award at the NAMI 2017
National Convention in Washington.
DC. A well-deserved honor for an
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NAMI NIH Voluntoors
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NAMI NH General Support.,Education & Advocacy Statistics'
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j  , •" -!■■ 1 ll ■» ■--.. ' ■ ■ ■- ■
RiAMlWalksrNHlrfaltldiranTsi . ■ • ' 85(^ .
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Suidcio Prevention/PosivonUon & Survivor Supporl
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."ffdrTj[^t7a[rT|ngs}]'. _ ' <

SyjicldejBr.ev.crritlp^
^. ■ I ^ 7-.—7? L'' - ■ ;■ ■ ' '* '■ ,7"

fJ^^ehjlppiTrarnyrl^ ' • ■■" • ' ' '1
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QthXr/Sta'iesj?.. -
^3^frcrn}2*^tT^inln'gs)) '
.-j'.'i. ■■"■'• _ I ■■ "■(■■■*-

.^}^^^ira(n!ng|i*
8:^frpff.^trgjnLn'gs|f' ' ■

I  I ■ ■! I ■ ■ — M ■ — . .

W
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Famitv/CarGqiver Education Programs |
'FamiipUOf^dmliy} • * '' • } IcIasTesti ••■;. ••. ^

4icqrfrmunltll§...

f^yent^M^Ong'-^ftS 'G/ig//enge^
v.. - ] : ■ :f ■;
1 , * ' * •*. ! , * *• t •

rlSjpartlcr^^n&i,
2lci«s>s7:. 1 ••>.
'i'.commjjnltley^^^ ,1

'Sfdieib'yiSlde'i^' J •' yi.- '.'S' ■': j 1'42 pLatiictpa'n^^ * •
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Speakers' Bureau Presentations

■Suj^iwr}^lcesl

•  • • r. j

•^Pi^"hlaljcMi^sl V
.3^)Pta[pdl^rtGeIrT?j^'lJ^^ '

^)f^ihterrup(ed'i

•  • # . • • •

2*2|^esentayo^^^ , '

'.•■ '■ i -•■'■ •>.. .- .'"l

,;|^p7;es^^ia^ "

'A--- '1 ■ • '.- . -
l-tT-r r-:r . -H

"r>

■I

..|5-
-.'A'Sr

1 Total 9 of Individuals served Is approxlmalely 15.000. although It should be noted that it is unlikely that these are all unique Individuals
2 volunteer roles include: speakers' bureaus, support group leaders, teachers, board of directors, committee work, office volunteers,

walk volunteers, special projects, etc.
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3^ '-f ; We are grateful to our donors for iheir generosity
and commitment to'NAM! New Hampshire. If your •
name is missing or listed incorrectly, please contact
our Development OfHce at development@NAMiNH.org
so we may update our records.

Grant Funders

County of Cheshire.
Office of County Commissioners

NIMH Constituency Outreach
and Education Program

Endovfrneni For Health

New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation

State of New Hampshire

Merrlmack County Savtr>gi Bank

■Queen City Rotary OuO Foundation

In Memory Of
Matthew Aspirtwall
David E. and Laurie A.'A$pinw8ii

Linda Biahep
Kyle Clark

Jllllan Burris
Brian Burns

' Michael Cannlft
Robert Cannlff

Hannah Cimon
James Aberg
Robert Bear
Joseph Bishop
Jon 0. Gulgnard and

Virginia A. Blackmer
Randall W. and Lucille A. Cook
Zeke and Mary Ettelson
Rot>ert J. and Cheryl A. Evans
Glenn and Sara Pusonie
Leigh Humi
Richard and Oenlse Landry
Henry LIpman
LRGHealthcare
Salty Mlnkow
Kristen Oti
David Palfrey
Dianne Phiipot
Positive Coaching Alliance
Micheie Pouiin
Michael Pruett and Renee Shauls
Daniel E. and Debra P. Rodd
Mark Sakelosky
Ann Marie Shumway

'Stuart Trachy
Susan Vincent
Dawn Ward -
MicheleV/eich

Timothy Daigneautt
Ellen Hubbell

Joseph DaKome
Rich and Lynn Creedoh

Seth.Oougharty
Druscllla Scully
Marge Strickland '
Cheryl Walker

Staphan Drouln
Food & Nuimion Servica SNAP NERO

Kollaan Polay
Kira Johnson

Colin HasMtt

Grace A. Taiiarico

Barbara Hoyt
Martin Lam

Jason Langar
Patricia Hertderson

VIoiat Massnar
Fred R. Messner

Marisa Minlchltlle
Robert Vachon

Alaxandtr Moriay
Chartes Gaskin and Jeanne Jenkins
Beth Moriey

Marl# Norton

Artonymous

Shanrton Ouldora

SNhfU Shapiro Library Sunshine Fund

Nicholas Samlrtatora
Catherine R. Brown

Meghan Spears
RIanne Hanweil
Christine O'Conner

W.S. Badger Company

Micheel Stcarrts
Louann M. Stelner

Peggy.M. Straw
John and Patricia Bottomiey
The Burke Insurance Agei%cy
Marlon A Brink

Nancy A County

Dorothy C. Oewlit-
Oorothy Flanders
K&S Pet Sitting and Dog Walking
Marilyn K. Meyers
Edward R. and Karen J. Prive
Ken and Rona Purdy
Shirley R. Sanders
Polle S. Thayer
Christina Vaiar Breen

Lacy Woodali
White Mountains Comrrtunlty Colleg

In Honor Of
Monlque Jevne
The Reverend Lucreiia Jevne

Recovery Promoters
Anne S. Howels Charitable Fund
John Bunker and Jennifer Kinsey
Stacey B. Carloni ^
Steven and Anne Caubie
Richard and Franclne Chevrenis
Geoffrey Clark and

Martha Fuller Clark
Micheel and Saundra Cohen
Russell and Carol Come
Digital Credit Union
Robert Drake
The Duponi Group
Michele A Grennon
Donald and June Hicks
Hillary Kingsbury •
Nancy Leonard.
Stacy Matseas
CandaceMcLaughHn
Michael Murphy
Ken Norton and Lauren Noether
JenniferOrban
Ken and Rona Purdy
Red River Theaters. Inc
Southern NH'Medlcal Center
Peggy M. Straw
Stephen and Karia Forgiei
ChahiBble Foundation
John Sullivan

Resiliency Builders
Anonymous (4)
Robin M. Atvanos
AmeriHeaith Caritas
Atlassian inc

Perry Banks
Beacon Health Strategies. LLC
Frances Belcher and Richard Tyler
Community Church of Durham
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Community Health Chamies

Michelle A. Conner

Mlcheei Daily

Dartmouth College ^

Donna Sabin

Albert and Christine Dwyer

Chuck and April Eastman

Suelien Griffin

Janet l. Griffin

Stephen Gronberg and Carol Houde
Johnson & Johnson

Margaret M. Kennedy

Edward and Mary Kirby
Knights of Columous

James and Marjorie Matthews
NH Healthy Families

.Pinkenon Academy

Positive Coaching Alliance

Jeremy Rhodes

Rudolph Charitable Match Program

George R. Seaver
Susan L Steams

ENzabeth Sirikeman

Bm Thomson

Marilou Tyner

Waimart • Raymond 6030

Josh Weaver

Well Sense Health Plan

Wencworth tiy the Sea

Doug and Katie Wheeler
Tom Wilson

Hope Contributors
Anonymous (S)

Lisa A.B.

James D. and Amanda R. Abbott

Julie and Glenn Ackley

Valerie Acres

Nancy M. Adams

Daniel and Rosemary Affeidi

Laura Albei

Maryanne Albea

Mary Ann Aldrich

Diane Allen

AmazonSmiie Foundation

Cralg D. Amoih

Wade Anderson

Gayie Aponas

David E. and Laurie A. Asplnwall

Gert Assmus and Jan Ass'mus

Robert Ayotie

John and Oebt>le Batrd •

Bank of America •
Charitable Gift Fund

Laura Baneti

Chester and Judith Batchelder

Mary J. Baxter

Robert Bear

Mary Beckette

Ward Bennett

JUiian Beverstock

Cam Bevilacqua

Joseph Bishop

Jacquey Bianchetie

Peter and Ruth Bieyier

Brend Blond

John and Lucy BioomfleW

Sonya B. Bomsier

Gary Bond and Karen LIndIg

John and Patricia Qoitomiey

Denlse Bouchard

Louise Brennan

Ed and Muriel Broad

Kerri Broas

David artd Pamela Brown

Catherine P. Brown

Donna Brown

-Cutler L ano Morag Brown

Kathy Brusiiln

Patrlca Buhrman

Roben Burdick

Jane Burke

JOyBurrtU

Kaihryn Bushnell-Crowley

Martha A. Byam

Gordon M. Calkins

David and Kaihy Canedy •

Robert Cannin

Career and Technical
Eoucauon Center

Phillip Carpenler

Howard Carpenter

Jennifer Carr

Thomas H. end Pairlcla Carty

WflDam Cater

Christopher and Heather Chaooi

Sierra Chabot

Patrick Chaloux

Kathleen A. Chamt}ers

Jeffrey Chang

Lisa Chase

Anthony Chlcoyrvo

Lori Chlcoyne

Richard P. Church

Citizens Charitable Foundation

Lisa Clark

Courtney Clark

Jenn\{Bt Clouiler

Burton and Patricia Cohen

Betharty Cole-Rymes

Joe Collie

Erik Collins

Brian J. CoUlns

Carotann Constant

EDen Constant

Diane Cooper

RIk Cornell

Angela Cprreau

Peter Costa

Nigel and Elizabeth Cotton

David R. Coursin and Grace Mattern

WaynneCram

Rich and LynnCreedon

Ross Cunningham

Michael Curtey

Paul and Barbara Curley .
Bryan Curley

Leslie Currie

Gary Daiias-Kozioi
Susan Daly
Darcy Davidson

John and Susan Davies

Alex and Susan de Nesnera

Barbara Degaspe

Diane Degaspe ^
Bruce R. Derr and Blair LaBeila

Ann Desjardins

Charien Oesrochers

John Oixon

Thomas and Joan Doran

Paula A. Dorr

CerolynA Dudley

Raymond Ouhalme

Irene Oumas-Maurler

Robert Duncan. Sr.

and Kathleen Duncan

Sylvia Ouretie

Steve Duvai •

Loma Edwards

Theresa Eichhom

Tricla Ellis

Lorna Ellis

Zeke and Mary Etietson

Roben J. and Cheryl A. Evans

Dennis Falion

Kevin Fallen

Eleanor B. Fallen

Sman Family

Joshua FirKke •

First Universalist Society of Hanland

Mark Rsher

Paul Fitzgerald

Dennis Fitzgerald

Patty Flaheny

Dorothy Flanders

Mary Fleurent

Food and Nuuttion Service
SNAP NERO

Karyn Forbes

Foresighi IS Consulting LLC

Mary Forsyihe-Taber

HaiHe Fonkt

Lauren Foster

Sharon Gaiiager

Judy Garren

Mkhele Geary

Robert and Diane Gedney

Armlda Gelger

Timothy Gibson

Barbara H. GDe

Peggy Gllmour

Normand Girtgras

Globe Manufacturing Company. LLC

Phiup and Peggie Goddard

Michelle Goodnow

Jennifer dornnen
Beth Graf

Karen Graf

Granlie State Independent LMng
Doug Gram

Michelle Grasso

Juna Green
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AJicis Grtmaldl

Stephanie Guess

William 8. Gunn. Jr.

Edward and Janelle Guyoi

James R. ar>d Dortna M. Hagen

Paihcta Hamm

Ma^cla A. Hanaway

Margaret A. Hart

Harvard Pilgrim Heahcare Foundation
Cynthia Hayes

H8K Wealth Management. LLC

Terry Heinzmann

Amanda Heller

Ladsa Henderson '

Susan M. nines

Louise Hitchings Ooyle
Carolyn Hodges

Stephen 0. Elgen ana Ann M. Hoey

Tom Hopper

Sean Hopper

Andrew Hosmer

Charles and Ann Hotchkiss

Celeste Howe

Ellen Hubbefl

. Brian Huclcins

Leigh Humi

Meg Hydock

Susan ladevaia-Jalben

Insiliuie on DisaPllliy

Peter w. Janelle

Barry end Celine Jordan
Kathryn F. Kaiogerou

Pamela Kauli

Catherine Keane

Chrissy Keane

OePPie KeDey

Skip Keliey

Nancy Kelly

June Kelso

Christine Kevlle

Dorean C. Kbnbafl

Gayte KimPaii

Ruth Kletnick

Ted Kohler

Jone LaBomPard

Sharon A. Laferrtere

Terr! Landry

Calllln Landry

Sandy J. Lang

Lang and O'Connor Automotive

Gabrlela Lanza

John Laplanie

Edc Laplante

Raymond Laplante

Terri M. Lereau

Gary Lavaiiee

Thomas Lehman

Melissa Lindsirom

Henry Lipman

Chet G. uiilefleld

Karlalne V. LMngston

Melissa Ldiseiie

Marie T. Loiseiie

Joe Long

John and Jean Longa

Jack Longa

Susan A. Lord

LRGHealthcare I

UNH Social Work

Nancy L Mahony

Christine Marchand

Ndncy Maroen

Marilyn Marlnelll

Stephanie MarsnaR

Ruth A. Martin

Rebecca Matthews

Daniel Matthews

Jill S. Maurice

Mario Mauro

Marianne McCaR

Harry and Lor! KkCali

Katie McOonncI

Scott McKenney

Peter McNamars

Alison Meyer

Jeffrey Meyers

Marilyn K. Meyers

James Monahan and Donna Brown

Donald and Ahorah Moore

Maria Moran ^
Beth Money

Meghan Morris

Nancy and Wayne Morrtson-

Mark D. Moses and
Mary Therese Felies

Kim Mueser and Susan McGurk

Matthew T. Mulvern

Chris Muns

The Murdoch Roy Family

Rebecca R. Neai ^
New Futures

NH Community Behavioral
Health Association

James Nichols

Kflsien Nigrlny

Geraidine Nonit

Nonhem Edge Realty. L.LC

David Norton

Mark Norton and Beth Ann Strono

Robin M. Nuse

Karyn Oakes-Keeper

RandaD O'Brien

Devin O'Connor

John O'Connor

Sharon E. Oikeimus

Robert F. Oot and Carol w. Robey

Shawn end Megan Ordway,

Pampered Chef

Linda 5. Paqueue

Susan Paravenii

Marguerite Parent

Parker Family Fund

Karen Paiieiena

PayPal Giving Fund
Lynne R. Pedersen

Deb Pendergast

Martha Perricone

Gianiuca Plane zze

Carol Pierce

Richard A. Plerro

Heather Pike

Lisa Pleat

Michael Poirier

Christine Poichiopek

Heidi Postupack

Doreen E. Powers

PR Resiauranis. LLC

Margaret Pritchard

Edward R. and Karen J. Prlv^

Rekha Rao

Michael Rauck

John end Mary Raun

Carin Reynolds

Julie Rheauli

Rosemary A. Richardson

wraiamlRtder

Steve and Deba Robarge

Morion and Josephine Roberts

Joyce Robtieiiie

Amina Roderick'

John Rogers

WQlam C. and Marilyn J. Rogers
James Rosenberg

Harry Rosensteln

Kathle and Peter Roy

Peter Roy

Thomas Ryan

Eleanor Sale

Mark Sakalosky

Krisien Salesky

.Elizabeth Sanders

SanofI

Mary Sassln

Rtcnard Satier

Schwab Charitable Fund

Carrie Saibner
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JofTrey end Bernie Seifen

Unda Semlnaiore

Lorl Seog
Elizabeth Sheehan

Thomas and Lisa Shemian^

Gary Shlhock

Oana Shirlock

WlUiam C. Siroty

Sv^tla Slaveva-Grirnn

Heidi Sielman

Cory Smith

Scoti and Norma Smith

SNHU Shapiro Library Sunshine Fund
MaryAnn Somervllle

Kerry M. Spangier

Harold Sprir>osteed

Nicholas St. John Rr>eauit

Paul Staiier

KuMnder Stamper

State or NH

Kaihertne G. Stebbins

Derek Stern

SaMie Story

Sharon P, Stout

Susan Stout

Richard Stuart

Barbara Stuart

Margaret and Chanes Stumb

Jessie Sweeney
Glenn and Heather Sweeney

Raymond D. Sweeney and
Carole A. Sweeney

Jodi SyTnes

Pollle S. Thayer
The Benevity Community impact Fund
The Burke Insurance Agency
TPG Global. LLC

Sara Tracy
Transitional Housing Services
Heather TremMay

Richard and Anne-Marie Trudel

Unitarian Universallst Church

of Concord

Robert Vachon

Christina Valar Breen

Cynthia R. Van>ey

Silvia R. von Sacken

Raymond and Deborah L. >/orce

Stephanie Walker

Wal-Mart Store • Rmdge 2057
Chris Wardrop
Scott Watson

Kittle Weber

Kathleen D. Weeden

Roger and Sandra WeDs

wiliam p. and Maureen E. Wentzel)

John Wertz

WestBridge Community Services
Cynthia Whttaker

White Mountains Community College
Shelley Whltmore

Patricia C. Whitney
Marilyn M. Whitten

JiUlane WOey

Robert wiDis

Kathryn Wolf

Wyman Famly Furtc

Anne Young

Caroline ̂ ung

Peter Ybung

Ray Vbung

Friends

Anonymous (M)

Judith Abbott

Mimi Abell

James Aberg

Lisa Abohatab

Jeaneite Aoamkowski

Rosemary Affetdi

Joan Akers

Carey Aiiara
Susan Allen-Samuel

Tyson Alvanos

Maureen A. Anderson

Arthur Anderson

Kekh Anderson

Valerie Anderson

Gloria Andrews

Robin Andrews

Ar>gela Antosh

Peggy Arend

Kirsien Arends

Clayton Arnold

Kim Arsenauti

jU) Ashley
Gary Asselin

Janet L. Austin

Jessica Bachofen

Glenn R. and KatMeen l. Bacon

Carol J. Bagan

Anthony B.aker
John S. Baker

Adele Baker

Paula Baker

Stanley Balch

Kerrie Baiiam

Lynrte Bamford

Lynda Barbour

Danna Bare

Kathleen E. Barnes

Melinda Barnsiey

Debra Barrett

Steven M. and Anne Barton

Michelle Battagiia
Jana Bean

Maureen Beane

David Beatiy

Heidi Beauchamp

Donald J. Beecy
Shahrlar Belgi

Elizabeth BePsle

KimBellsle

Jay Bellsle

Jennifer Beiifveau

Linda Belllveau

Paul R. Belyea

Joan D. Bennett

Stephanie Bennett

Kelly Benson

June Bernard-Kriegi
Jennifer Berry

Shantelle Berry

Andrea Bevitacgua

Wlnnlfred Blerman

Jon D. Gulgnard and
Virginia H Blackmer

Eve Block

Bernie Biuhm

Karen Bober

Alssa Boduch

Deb Boggs
Paula BoMn

Kimberiy Boor)e -
Nancy Sobver
Claudia R. Boozer-Biasco
wmiam E. and Martene J. Bordy
Richard L. Borrazas

Siephanie Boucher

David and Beth Bouchard

Alfred and Jan Bouchard

Krlsia Bouchard

Caroline Boudrow

Katie Boutin

Rod Bowies

Jar>e Bowman

Thomas Box

*  Audra Boynton

Susan C. Branch

Mary Ann Brawn.

Jason Brett

Marion A. Brink

Patricia Brizicky
AUe Broom,

Anne Broussard

Joddte Brown

Sieve Brown

James and Kathleen Brown

Carolyn Brown

Hammond Brown

Kyle Brown

Jonathan Brown

Susan C Srosvn

Marissa Alvanos

Georgia Brussard
Max Bryant

Tracy Bryenon

Kerry Buckley

DenJse Burbank

Siephan Burdene

Kaihleen Kennedy Burke
Arthur Bums

Pamela A Bums

Brian and Janice Burris

Linda Burrowes

Jennifer Burstein

June Burton

Ann N. Butenhof

David Butenhof

Edwin Butenhof

Kathleen A. Cahlll and
Joseph Magruder
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•  Mary-Margarei Cahoon

SheriCaiabrese

Dennis Calcuu

Sarah 0. Cailey
Sharon Caflum

Margaret Campbell

Katharine Canevan

John and Heidi Caniln

Jean Capone

Annette Cartx)nneau

Melissa CarOin

Tiecy Carney
James and JudHh Carney
Adam Caron

Charles 0. and Janet R. Carpenter
Susan Carrier

Genia Carroll

Denise Cascio Botduc

Qridgette Casey
TIzlano Casol

Brandy Cassada
Jean Cassotls

MaryCastanlno

inna V. Castelot.

Barbara CatNn

John Caynon

Sharon Cerreiani

0. Oianne Chambers

Carrie Chandler

Tom and Mary Anne Chapman
Ashley Chappell

Richard and Pauline Charpentler
Amanda Charpeniler

Maalna Charpentler

Paul Chanter

Aiihea Chase

Andrew ChevrdHls

Amy Chevr^nis

Eleanor Chllds

Judy Chrlsp

OlMa Christian

Janis Christian

M. Eileen Christopher
Carolee Churchill

Renee Cicerchi

CRlzens Bank

Wendy Clark

Mike Clark

Coleen Clark

Leeann Dark

Kyle Clark

Cecilia Clarke

• Diane CUfTord

Shane Clinord

Marilyn Cloud

Tammy Clootler

Pierce Cioutler

Barbara Coates

Martin Cohen

PamCoianero

Sandy Cole

Wendy Cole

Jason Cole

Raymond Colletle

Laurie Compion
Emily Compton

Nathaniel Coniey
Shaun Connors

Laurie Conrad

Matthew Cook

Jacquelyn Cook

Randall W. end Lucille A. Cook
Jen Coroeit

David and Jane Corbett

Judy Corbett

A/leen Cormier

Judeann Cormier

Artene Cormier

Derek Correla

Linda Corriveau

Anie Costa

Dawn Costa

Douglas Cote

Grace Cotton

Peter W. and Joyce G. Cottrell
Nancy A. County

Dolly Courtemanche

Amy Courtney
Lyman Cousens

Emily Cousens
Jay Couture

Claire Covllie-Pforr

Katherlne Cox

Greg Coy

Paye Craighead
Charlene Crefeld

June 8. Croissant

Claire Oonin

Fred Crowley
Peter Crowley
Lisa Ann CuUlnan

Amanda Cummings
Krysial Cunha

Donna Curboy
Theresa Curley
Susan Curry
Jennifer Cusson

David Cyr
Diane Cyr
Jessica Cyr

Jeff Czekanski

Donna D'Aleo

Rose M. Oalphin

Sandra Daly
Lydia Darling
Tamare Oawli

,  GIsel De La Ona

ElainedeMeiio
Brian Oeamer

Margo DearbhaH
Chase Oeblois

Sandra Decaio

Lauren Oecesar

Julie Decosia

Jacqueline Deiancey
Krisil Oemeis"

Janyce Demers

Gabriella DeMoss

Tarn! Dennison

Melissa Oepaima
Robin Derosa

Laura Deschamp
Kathleen j. Desmarais

Karen Desmarais

Sara Devlin

Dorothy C. Dewlti

Christy Oewitte

Leona Oickerson

Oebra L. Oickerson
Brandi Oickerson

Rebecca Dickerson

KaihyOlckey
Linda Dickey
Richard Okkson

Francis DiDonato •

Rebecca Digregorio
James DUts

^rah Dion

Mike Dipesa

• Robert Oilman

Briiia DM

Tara and Ella Doneny
Laura Doherty

Marie DokoupU

Michael and Ann Domingue
David DomlniannI

Michael Donahue

. Michael Donnelly

Jane P. Ootchin

Thomas Douceite

Nellie Doughty

Dcnr>a Downes

Katie Doyle

Lawrence Drake. Jr.

Bob and Mary Drew
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Oesiree Orlscoil

Megan DriscoH

Amoineite Ofouan

B^an and Karen L Drum
and Thomas and JooiDude.

Hope E. Dubois

Aaron Duffy I
Christopher and Helen Dugan

Lauren Dugan

Miriam Dumaine

DePdy S. Dumals

Julie C Dunham

Vlrglnla-G. Ouniap
Lorie Dunne

Jo-Ann DupwiS

Anne Marie Durani

Nicholas Duvel

James Eastham

Sara J. Eooighausen

Gall Edmonds

Kaiilyn Edwards

Ashley Edwards

Phyllis V. EKins

Jim and Pally Ekins

Matthew T. EtHou and

Samamha D. Ellott

Robert W. and Louise S. Ellis

Loretia Emerson

Barbara Endres

Erie insurance

Di Erwin

Eliza Evans

Stacey Evans

Melissa R. Evans

Tena M. Ewing

Marietie Pacques

Murray Family

LOfi Fancy

Pairlcle Fancy

Lon Fancy

Catherine Farrtngton

Tera Felgen

Kathleen Pencil

Randall Fenion

Sharon Fenton

Rebecca Ferman

Robin Femald

Annlka Fernandez

Lymda Field

Steve Fifleid

Jean Rler

Maroiyn A. Filtfon

Rachaei Fishbein

MicheDe Fishvirtck

John Fitgerald-Nunnlnk

Jim Flizgeraid
Shannon Fitzgerald

Allison Platen

Deborah Foden

Maggie Fogarty
Krysile-lynn FoOanst^e

Michael Folsom .

Nancy Folsom

Carrie Focuone

Carrie Forbes

Kelley Forester

Julie Forgaard

Jessica Forrest

Wendy Forrester

Laura Fortner

Linda Foster

Steve and Lon Foster

Heather Fraiey

Ginger Franchitio
Karen L. Frahe

AJyssa Frechetie

Sally Freeman

Desiree Freeman

Rita Friedman

CathyFrlerson

Valeria Frtsoey

Jennifer Phzzell

Tom Fullenon

Glenn and Sara Fusonie

Christine Gagne

Monica Gagne

Kartn Gegnon

Holly Gahm

Sarah Gahm

Maryellen Ganr>on'*
Maureen Gardeiia

Karen P.Gardner

June Garen

Rache! Garen

Mary Lou Garland

James Garner

Jackie Garnet!

Gayle Garrett

Christina Gauoei-Peletler

HoPy Gaudeitie Rich
David Gazda

Anna Gdanlan

GE Foundation

Eric Gendron

Majdouieen Georgeos

Patricia Giguere

Lorinda Gilbert

Nancy Giltis

Frederick Gulls

Anna GUstrap

Paul Godki

Peter and Sheryl Goedecke

PhlBp Goldman and
Patricia Wolf Goldman

Brenda Golla

Caroline Gomez

Suzanne P. Good

Lynn Goodnough

Jane Gornnen

Kenneth Graf

Jessica Graham

Debra Grant

Cassle Graton

Dawn Graves

David Green

MlchaeiGreenspan

Lucy Grnio

Dennis Ghmard

Kim Grtswold

Barry Gross

Anne D. Grossi

Grove Street Fiduciary. Inc.

Virginia Gutnia

Mimi Hailowell

Michael Hancock

Chrlssy Hanisco

Helen Hanscom

Laurie Hard!

Annemene Hargreaves

Dave Hartshorn

Michelle Hartshorn

Rlanne'Hartweil

Zoe Haskeu

Eric Hasse

Shawn Hassel

Marshall Hatch

Stephanie Hausman

Amanda Hawkins

Sally Hawkins
Tammy Caldweii

Randy Hayes and Martha Clark
Colleen Haynes

Jamie L. Hayward

Thomas Heald

Beau Hebert and

C David Hedman

Patricia Henderson

Jon Hermansen

Christen Herod

Katie Herzig

Kevin HMbrunner

Jull HIncks ■

Melissa Hinebauch

Trevor Hlnes

Joan Hirst

Erica Hoar

Leni Hodgins

Liz Hodgklns

Barbara Holmes

Rebecca Holske

Alexandra Holske Sapier

MeOssa Hoh

Maxtne Houie

Kendra Houie

Peggy Housewonh

Peg Huboer
John Hucklns.

James Hughes

Kathleen Hughes

Thomas Hulslander -

Humana

Gena Hunt

Jamie Hupfor

Denise Hun

Karen hMzda

Robert Hynes

James lerardi ^
Kerrle ike

Michael itacqua

Sadie Irving

Reynold S. Jackson

Lalena J. Jackson
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(9SIiM£l!£lL^ D

Jdne James

Gloria Jameson

John Janninl

Elaine Jasriin

Charles Gasirin and Joanne Jenkins
Nina Jenssen

Sue Johnson

KIra Johnson

Km* weoer

Lisa Johnston

Marie E.Jones

Gisela Jones

Brand! Jong

Jennifer Jordan

Bruce K. end Laurie J. Jorgenson

Susan Joyce

Tony and Sue Jukosky
Ann Juiras

Paul Jutras

K and S Pel Siuing and Oog Walking
.Oeoorah A. Karr-Prancis

•Jennifer Kaiz-Sorrin

Peier Kavanagh

Paul Kayne

JudyKeane

Kevin Keefe

Margaret Kehew

Patricia Keighiey and Katnerine BRss
Anike Keller

Lyn Keney

Krtsien KeUey

Lorraine Kelly

Olane Kelly

Adam Kelly

Kim S. Keisey

Andrea Keon

Joan Kerr

Elizabeth Kershaw

Tammy Kfoury
Dahlia Khankan

Khaih. LLC

Erin KIley

Lucia H, Kimoau

Pamela Kimber

Penelope R. King

Becky Kinhan

Chris KInney

Alice M. Kirby

Eric Klemarczyk

Jennifer Klembcr

KC Kimgensmllh
Timothy Knapp

Judy Koioski
Leonard Korn

Cheryl Kouble

Pamela Koziowski

Debbie Krapf

Lucme 0. Krteger

Linn Krtkorian

Diana Kroeger

Rose Kundanis and John B. Bordenet

Kaihy Kus

Jean-Pierre La Touretie
Chartas J. I^&ena

Joseph C labeiia Jr.

Meiinda Labo

Peter Labombaroe

KathyLabonte

Jessica Lachance

Alan Joe Lacroix

Michelle Ladegard

Abigail Ladegard

Paul and Barbara Laflamme

Robert A. LaPieur.jr.

Chantei Lafond

Matt Lahr and Deb Harrigan

Sophia La}eunes$e

Steven R. LaOy

Manm Lam

Richard ana Denlse Landry

Helen Landry

Pam Lane

.Karen Lang

Tina and John Langiey

Patricia Langiois

M. Serena Lanza

Paul Lassins

Jennifer Laurent

Lisa P. Lavoie

Andy Leach

Eric Leader

Diana Leavlii

Wendy Lebianc

Roxann J. LeClaire

Renee Leciaire

Cristina Leduc

Giorta M. Lee

JuUe Leek

Tamasoh L. Lemire

Nicole Lessard

Bradford Levangle

Laurie Levesque

David Lewis

Heidi Lewis

Susan, Brian and Griffin Lincoln

Sara Linogren

Lynn Lipplll

BobLtsk

Customlnk. LLC

Michael Loan

^sLolselle

Robert and Karen Lord

Thomas Lord

Barbara Louison

Cathy Lounsbury

Debbie Manus Love

Ashieigh losve

Bruce Lund

Shawna Lupoti
Kenneth Lusster

Lou Lussier

Kim Lyden-Rlcker
Kevin Lynch

Lisa G. MacDougall

James MacEachern

Dean MacKinnon

Stanley MacKinnon

iiene Mack-Zaghioui
Heather MacNeli

Nicole MacPherson

PhyUlsMacKay

Alan Macrae

- Ronald Magoon

Lenni Maguire

Tara Mahacy

Patricia Mahon

Ondy Mallniak

Elizabeth Maliniak

Joan Malkiiak

Effie Maiicy and Gerald Duffy
Joe Matloy

Stephanie Maioncy

Hoity Mandlgo-Aly
AJUson Mangan

Donna O. Manlon

Joseph P. Manning

Karen Martnaccio

Luz Stella Mariniltl

Michael Marlska

Marina Markot

Lee Ann Maroni

Tammi Marscon

juDe A. Marsion

Christen a. Martin

Terry Martin

Rachel Martin

Karen Manin

Jim Martin

Craig Manln

Olivia Martin

' AbbyMaru

Greg Mason
Oaire Matseas

Grace Mattern

Usa Maurice

NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE - PY20I7 ANNUAL REPORT tS



Alexandra Mavris Beth Nagy and Gil Pairy
Kimborty Maynard Basim Nasir Heidi J. Pauer
Kathleen Maynard Susan Neary Neia Pcixinho • R
Jo Ann McCallster / Natalie Neilson Nicolas PeiiUo
Lori McCormIck Kristyn Nelson Stacy PeQssier
Meghan McCormJck Stanley Nemerowsid Mark Peiieiler

Katie McCormIck Belinda and Johrt Nerl Lauren Peloquin
Larry McCrum Network for Good CarolAPenney
Amartda McCuUen Christina Newton •' Zach Perez
Julie McCutcheon Linda Nichols Jill H. Perkins
Susan McDonald Edward Nichols Arthur Perry
Dlar>e C. McEntee Michael NUno Carrie Perry
Denise McGione Jane Niiles , Sharon Peters
Wendy McGonigie Betty T. Nitchie . Jes^a Peterson
Christine McGovern *  Leslie Nixon James Peitoretii

Holly Mcimyre Deborah Nden Julie Petty
Constance McKenna ' Robin Norman . Oianne Phlipot
Kristin McKenzle Diane Norton Millie Pike
Patrick and Susan McXeown Nancy Nowell Colin Pio
Kim McKinney Sarah Nugent Tara Pitarys.
Rtchard A. McLaughlin Rosa Nuie Mark Pitcock

June McLean Barbara Nutter Stacy Poirier
Lisa McNay Elen Nutter Brittany Porter
Juliet McPhcrson • Heather Obara Kathertne Porter
Evan Medici Megan O'Brien Amartda Potash
Kathleen Mercer Geraidine a. O'Brien Mike Poublon
Sophie 8. MerriQ Karieigh O'Brien Mlcheie Poulin
Fre<] R. Messrver

Jennifer Meicalf

Donna Meyer

Jessica Micheisen

Jarrtes A. MUier

RoOyn Geuemy

Charles A. Miller and

Barbara P. Srervnan

MaryMDIer

Michael and N. Trac/ MiDer

Mickenzie Mills ^
Hatiie Milton

Sally MInkow

MIra Mlshkln

Lisa MisUer

Heidi E. Mitchell

Shelley Moffatt

Qndy Moher

Don Monroe

Craig Monroe
Dawn Moore

Micheje Moran
Charles Moran

MIcheDe Moranl

Theresa Morehouse

Amanda MonBI

Susan L Morrison

Patricia Morrtssey
David Morrow

lesOe Morse

Robyn Moses-Harney
Robert Moution

Issam Mouse

Melanle Muns

Sharon Murphy
Tammy Murray

Carol Myers

Karen R. O'Brien

Christine O'Conner

Arlene F. O'Connor

Brendan O'Connor

Delia O'Connor

Mike O'Dea

Jeffrey O'Dea

. CaiUin O'Donnell

Heidi L Ohison

Caihertne Okhuysen
Ed and Catherine O'Leary
Marie Oliver

Margaret O'Meara

Sharon Os borne

Jack Ostander

Michael Ostrovrsk)

Catherine L. Otey
Krisien Ott

Ashley Owens

Lori Owens

Kristen Packard

Sophia Pagiieroni
David Palfrey

Sue Palmer

Benjamin Palmer

Wendy Palmqulst

Chelsea Paradore

Linda Pare

Brian Parent

Jody Parker

Michelle Parker

Kert-Ann Parodi

' Jenn Parrotto

, David and Jennifer Parroito

Usa Parsons

Rebecca Panon

. Stephanie Patrick '

Richard Powell

.Gina R. Powers

Christine Powers

Geralyn M. PrestI arid John Sedor

Karl Prichard

Edward R. and Karen J.

Susan Proctor

Peter E. Proulx '

Michael Prueti and Renee Shauiis

Wendy Prugh
Greg Purlnion>8rown

Paul and Sandra Putnam

Judy M. Ouigiey

Michael Ouinn

Jan Racer

Christina Racicot

Trudy A. Racine

Renee Ramirez

David Rauck

Sara Soderberg
Frank O. and Betty L Rauck
Ondy Reardon

Susan M. Reed

Gordon Rehnborg
Paul Rekj

Theresa Renner

Donna Resilvo

Linda Reval

Sharon L Reynolds

Charles Rhoades

Metanle L. Rhoades

Rebecca Ribeiro

Paige Ricciardo
Beth Rice

David Richards

Bernice Richards

Lisa Richards
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Dave Richardson

Denni Rieger

Theresa Riei

.Karert Rigazio

RobyriRlos

RJC Ptaza BeauiySaiori UC
Donna S. RoDblriS

Pairicv. Elizaveta, artd Zde Roberts
Calilln Rooerts

Melanie Robertson
Emily Robinson

Daniel E. and Debra F. Rodd
Amy Robieder

Cberi Roklia

Linda M. Ronan

Leigh Rosaio
Jonathan Routhier

Kathleen Runyon' /
Nancy Russell

Daniel Russell

Dennis P. Ryan .

Susan Ryder

Cynthia Saaihorr
Jason Saiimarsh

Mary Ann Salvatoneiio
John Sanchez

Shirley R. Sanders
Sreanna Saniella

Alyssa Satas

Carrie Sawyer

David T. Sawyer

Catherine Sayer

Valerie Schlavone

Tonl Schmit

Patricia Schoiz Cohen

Kelly Schroeder
Kathleen Schuhz

Dnjscilla Scully

Kara-Lynn Seager

Jen Seusing

Joanne Sevigny

Bonnie Sgroi'
Karen S. Sheldon

Heather Shepherd

Kaihertne Sheridan

Lisa Sheridan

Kathleen Sherman

Maureen Shields

Hilda Shortaii •

Ann Marie Shumway

DonaW L. and Miriam Shumway

Katie SiciaK

Lisa Slmons-Kearns

Amy Skinner

Bonnie Skogsholm

Pamela Skovtra

Chris Slater

Mike SlatofT

MaureenD. Sloan

Joanne R. Smith

Curtis ar«3 Ann Smith

Joy Smith
Henry M. Smith
Cathy Snow

Kanna Srtow

Laurie Snow

Larry Snow

KJmberty Somarrlba

Nell Somberg

Joan H. Sontag

Joyce E. Soucy
Jessica Sousa

. Kim Sousa

Kara Spengler

■ Amanda Spiro

John St. Laurent

James and Donna Stamper

Cynthia Stsnion

Rachel Sianton

Staples

Daisy Starr

Hartson Starr

David Stecider

Cameron Sleekier

Kaiy Oevine

Dorothy Steenbeke
Louann M. Stelner

JodI Stephens

Heidi Stetson

Lauren Stewart

Beverty Stewart

Julia suner

Jim Stone

Sionecrest Properties. LLC
Ann C Suachan

Marge Strickland
Susan Sirickter

Rebecca Suonck

Rhonda Strosberg

Laurie Stuan

Marie Stuart-Long

Kristin Sturgls

Joani Styllanos

Cynthia Su
Glenn Sullivan

Harold Suiivan

Amy Summers

Mary Super

Jay SufOukowskl

Lisa Swanson.

Judson Swinimer

Haylee Szczepkowski
Stanley and Pairicia Szydto
Susan Tagiiaterro

Grace A. Toilartco

Gina Tamagini

Arlene Taranow

Michael Tarolft

Wes Tator

Taylor TevemetU

Kelly R. Teevan

Patricia Tempesia

Kknberly Therrten

Sarbjit Thiara

Maurice Tibbetis

Chad Tibbeiis

Beth Todgham

Amanda Toppin

Katharine Torrey

Heidi Tourste i

Melissa Traber

Stuart Trachy

Steve Trask

Carolyn Tromoiy

Monlque Trutson

Ed Tucker

Deora Tullo

. Katharine W. Tunney

Cectle Turgeon

Cyndl TurkJngton
Barbara R Uien

Pauick M. Uiman

Lorene UlrKh

Ellen Vail

Ouiana Vale

Laurie Vaitee

Vanity Fair Beauty Salon
Susan Varrleur

Gabriel Vega

John veilieu*

Kate Verfaillie

Beverly A. Ve'rmeer
Tonl A. VervUle

Elizabeth Vezina

Janice Vien

amhla VIens-Oneto

Lisa Viilemaire

Susan VUKeni

Carol Vincent

Rebeccah vining

Klmberiy Vogel

W.S. Badger Company

.Cheryl .Walker

Claudia 8. Walker

Maria Ward
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Dawn Ward

Karatynn Warden

Tara Wardrop

Ernie Ware ^

Janei Wassouf

Mary Waisor)

Elizabeth Watson

Ethan Watson

Oavid VWjbor

Connie Webster

Kristen M. Welch

Micheie Welch

Oenise welch

Karen Weidon

Melissa Wens

Susan Wheeler

Catherine Whelan

Peter Whippie

Chrlsia WhKcomb

Carolyn White

Ron R. White

Gregory White

Susan White

Sarah 0. White

Paul svhitman

Nancy T. Wldrew

Richard Wiggins

Patricia Wllczynski

Joanne G. Witheim

Lorl A. Wilkinson

Richard C WKlgoose

Joy Williams

Jessica wiijiams

Rebecca Williamson

Scott Williamson

Richard 0. V/Ilsort

Christine Wilson

Aaron Wltthohn

Wlllam Wolfe

Kathy WOlfson

Leonard C. and Nancy L worster

Oonna A. Wuftz

Kathleen Yankowski

Weiie veager

Reglna Young

Mike Young

Thomas Ybung

Mary Zableiski

Edward Zadravec

Mary Zaremba

Louise R. Zerba

Marian Zlckefoose

Mai]l Zintz

Event Sponsors
AmerlHealth Cariias

Emily Brackeit

John Bunker and Jennifer Kinsey

David and Kathy Canedy

Michael and Saundra Cohen

Crotched Mountain
Rehabilitation Center

Einot Health System

•Michele Grennon

Janssen

Jumpin' Jay's Fish Caf^

LNe Free f^otography

Grace Mactem and
David Courslns. MD

Murdoch Roy FamHy

Ken Norton and Lauren Noether

Margaret Soflo and
James Zuckerman. MO

Southern New Hampshire Heaiti\

Susan L. Steams

US Housing Consultants

Katie and Doug Wheeler

NAMIWatks NH Sponsors
Gold Sponsors

Alkermes

Peggy M. Straw

Media Sponsors

iHeart Radio

ROCK 101 • WGIR FM

WGIR • AM 610

Sliver Sponsors

Anthem

Cross Insurance

NH Community Behavioral
Health Association

Otsuka

TO Wealth • Benjamin Couch Trust

Start/Plnlsh Line Sponsor

Westbridge

Bronze Sponsor

AH Metal industries

Genesis Behavioral Health

Michele Grennon & Michaela Phaneuf

Henrtr<er Septic Service

Janssen

Weil Sense

Wentworth'Douglass Hospital

Supporteri

Associated Grocers of New England
John Bunker end Jennifer Kinsey

Checkmate Payroll Services

Dartmouth-Hitchcock

EDot Health System

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

Hampsiead Hospital

The Harbor Group

KfaTiball Jenkins School of Art

Merrlmack County Saving 6ank

NH Psychiatric Society

Northeast Delta Dental

Panorama Wealth Strategies

Paquetie Pools and Spas

Rtverbend Commuruiy Mental
Health Center

Sanctuary ATC

Seacoasi Mental Health Cenier. inc.

TO Wealth • Genrude Couch Trust

M. Paialinjug Tyner. M^., FaPa

US Foods

Welmart #2055 • CorKord

West Central Behavioral Health

Y8P Library Services

Kilometer Sponsor

Webster and SyMa Anderson

Bernstein Shur. P.A.

Buienhof and Bomsier. PC

Michael and Saundra Cohen

Edward Jones • GofTstown

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

Suelien Ghffin

John Gaird Trucking

KOD Painting. LLC •
McLane Mtodieion

The Mental Health Center

of Greater Manchester

Murdoch Social Capital

PC Masters

Sam's Oub '6386 • Concord

Stonyfleio

Taylor Rental

Wharf industries Printing Inc.

£
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Frtnk Edeiblut
CcRi^Ktomr

3l

Paul )C lAtttitr
Dqwb Comrnftalentr

STATE OF NEM HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMBIT OF EDUCA-nON

101 PiMunt Street

CeAeerd.N.H. 03301
TEL (803) 2M-S133
FAX (603) 371.108)

Spptetnber 15,2017

His Excellency, Covemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Special Education, Office of
Student Wellness to enter into a sole source contract with National Alliance oh Mental Illness
New Hampshire, (NAMINH), Concord, NH (vendor code 166630), in an amoimt not to exceed
S80,623.70, to work in partnership with the NH Department Of Education. (NHDOE) in all
levels of decision-making, including the development, implementation and evaluation of the
System of Care (SOC). This contract with an option to renew for 3 additional years will be
effective upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30.2018. 100% Federal funds.

Funds to support this request arc available in the account titled System of Care (SOQ.

06-056-056-562010-50600000r072-509073 FYM8

Grants - Federal S80.623.70

The DOE would like to enter into a sole source contract with the National Alliance on Mental

Illness New Han^shire (NAMI, NH) who wilt partner with the DOE by providing a Lead Faihily
Contact to work in partnership in the decision making, including the development,
implementation and evaluation of the System of Care (SOC).

The purpose of this contract is to improve mental health outcomes for children and youth (birth
to 21 years of age) with serious emotional disturbances (SED) and their families. This program
will support the wide scale operation, expansion and integration of system of care (SOC)
approa^ by creating sustainable infrastructure and services that are required as part of the
Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for Children with Serious Motional
Disturbances. SOC will support the provisions of mental health and related i^very support
services to children and youth with serious emotional disturbances and those with early signs and
symptoms of serious mental illness first episode psychosis, and their families.

TOO ACCMS: rMsy NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNTTY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And (he Honorable Council

Page Two

A Request for Letter of Conmiitinent (RfC) was advertised on the Ollice of Student Wellness
Website: www.nh5tudentwellness.org; and the Department Of Education website -Oflice of
Student Wellness, on March 23 through March 31,2016. The Office of Student Wellness only
received one request which was submitted by NAMl NH. The grant required OS W to select an
evaluator prior to submittal for the grant and to submit an evaluation plan. NAMI NH agreed to
work whh the New Hampshire Department of Education to fulfill the requirements of the grant.
NAMI NH has been an active partner in the NH Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative
steering committee and Safe Schools/Health Students and Project Advancing Wellness and
Resilience in Education (AWARE) state management teams.

NAMI NH will be evaluated by the IDepartment through the monitoring of the services provided.
In addition, they will submit reports to the Department on the progress in meeting the objectives
of the contract

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Frank Edeiblut

Commissioner of Education

FE-TLS

Enclosures



Attachment A

Request for Commitment (RFC) Subraittal

Date Submitted: Job description and resume submitted on April 13,2016
j

Submitted to: Mary Steady, Administrator in the Office of Student Wellness ^

Who Submitted: NAMJ, NH

When writing for this federal grant there was a requirement to submit a job description and
resume for a Lead Family Contact Since there is a very quick turnaround (typically 60 days or
less) to complete the aforementioned task it doesn't allow for the foil RFP process to be
implemented In addition, NAMI NH currently is the only family organization that provides the
Family and Communi^ Support pecr-to^peer model, which is a requirement of the grant
To do our due diligence with the &ir and competitive bidding process the OSW was instructed
by the Commissioner's Office and Business Office to release a Request for Commitment (RFC-
see attached). The RFC was advertised on theNH DOE website from March 23-31,2016.
NAMI NH was the only respondent to the RFC. They contacted the OSW via phone call to
discuss the requiremems of the RFC. The OSW took the following actions:

1. Discussed^ntervicwed NAMJ NH on their experience with System of Care
2. Discussed with DHHS the role of NAMI NH in their SOCginnt
3. Went into vcibal apeeraent with NAMI NH to as^ NH DOE with writing the

deliverables of the Lead F^Iy Contact, the job description of the Lead Family Contact,
and identify and submit the resume of the Lead Family Contact



FORM NUMBER P-37 (versioa 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnation that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Sate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAJL PROVISIONS

I, mENTinCATlON.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Dqurtment of Education

1.2 State Agency Address
101 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

IJ Contracoor Name

Natioaal Alliance on Mental tUness New Hampshire,
(NAMINH)

1.4 Contractor Address

85 North State Street. Concord, KH 03301

\S CoQtractor Phone

Numbv

(603) 225-5359

1.6 Account Number

See Exhibit B

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$80,623.00.70

1.9 Cbtttracting Officer for State Agency
Mary Steady. Administrator, OfRce of Student Wellness

I.lb State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-3730

1.11 Contractor Signamre 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Kenneth Norton, Executive Director - NAMI NH

1.13 Acknowledigem^ Stated , County of

OiScfmrn&u^ >a(>before tbe undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and Bcicno<^edged IhM a/he executed this documem in tbe cqiacity
itidicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Sigostuiu of Notary Public orihistice of the Peace

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNotaiy or Justice of the Peace

OlANc GEON£Y, [<c:sry Putlfic
Ji^ bgrrcB Ml UVlMfl.

1.14 St^/^encySi

OatK

1.15 Name and Title ofState Agency Signatory

ec/iSiSijir (f edroTf OK
1.16 Approval by the Nil. Dqiailmetuof Administration, Division of Personnel (^app/icoh/e^

By; Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (tf applicable

On:
/ V-T// 7

1.18 Ai^rroval by the Governor and Executive Council/^opp/ictr6/<^

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF COrTTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sute of New Hampshire, aciing

through the agency iderUifted in block 1.1 CState**), engages
contractor ideotiHed in block 1.3 ("ContractoO'lt) perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is iacorporaied herein by reference
O'Services'O.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwith$tanding.any provision of this Agreemeol to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Couocil of the Stale ofNew Hampshire, if
q^plicabk, this Agreement, and all obligatioas of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreemeol as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no su^^rova) is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by (he State Agency as shown in block
l.UCEffeetivcDate'O.
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, (he State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, mctuding without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor (or any costs incurred or Services performed
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in bbck 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State haeunder, including,
without limitatioD, the continuance of payinents hereunder, are
conttngenl upon the availability and contimted appropriation
of (iinds, and in no event shall the State be liable (or any
payments hereunder m excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated fiinds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately up(m
giving the Contractor notice of such tcnsiiBitioa The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account idenUfied in block 1.6 in the event hinds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LnvUTATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
E^QOBrr B which is incorporate herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbunemeoi to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof^ and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than (he contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to of&et from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor uoda this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by NH. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, m
00 event shall the total of all payineats authorized, or ftcmalty
made bcreuoda. exceed the Price Umitatioo set Gmb in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
• OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he perfonnance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
sod orders of federal, state, county or municipal authonties
which inmost any obligatioa or duty upon the Contractor,
inctuding, but not limited to, civil rights and equal t^portuoity
laws. This may include the requiremept to utilize cuxiliary
aids and services to ensure (hat persoia with cotnmunication
disabilities, including vision, baring and speech, can
conunimicate with, rieceive infortnatioo from, and convey
infomiatkm to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or qiplicaots for
enqiloymeot brcittisft of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientatioa, or natiooal origin and will take
afftnnative action to prevent such discrimination.
6 J If this Agreemem is Amded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Comnctor shall conpty with all (be
provisions of Executive Order No. 112^ CEqual
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regubtkms and orders,
and the covenants, terms and cooditions of this Agrecroent.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perfoRD the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so unda iu applicable
taws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not pennit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved m the
procurement, admioistntion or perfonnance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agrecmeot. This provisioD shall survive tenninaiion of this
A^eemenL
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's r^resentadve. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Cmtnctiog Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. event of default/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute aa event of defisult hereunder
CXycnt of Default"):
5.1.1 &)luie to pcifbrm the Services satis&ctorilyoron
schedule;

8.1.2 fiiihire to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.U &ulure to perfonn any other covenant, (enn or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDefiuilt, the State
may take any one. or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give tie Gontiactor a written notice specifying the Event
of Defisult and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
jtWyrw! of a greater or kssa specificatioo of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of lennination;
8.2.2 give lbe.Contrector a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and ail payments to be m^ under this
Agreement and ordering that (he portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during (be
period from (be date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set offagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word **dau" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of^ or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, dtarts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memonnda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unCnisbed.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with fbnds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termittttion of this Agreemem for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
ch3pter9l*A orotber existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In (he evcm of an early tcrminatioo of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
Icrmination, a report ("Tcnnioalion Report") desoibing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and iacfudmg the date of tenninatioa. The form, subject
matter, content, and number'of copies of the Tenninatioa
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11.CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THESTATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent oor
80 co^loyee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its eoq>!oyees.

12. assignmcnt/belegation/sijbcontracts.

The Contractor shall oo\ assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Service^ shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by (be
State, its oSiccri and cnqiloyecs, and any and all claims, .
liabilities or penaftics asserted against the State, its offtcos
and en^loyees, by or on behalf of any person, on account oC
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, end sbill require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprebensive general liability insurance against all
cUiros of bodily tqjury, death or propeity damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000'
aggregate; and
14. U special cause of toss coverage form co>cring all
property subject to sut^nragrapb 9.2 herein, to an imotmt not
less than 60% of the whole replacement vahie of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagrq>b 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and eodorscmenls qtproved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the Nif. Department of
losurBDce, and issued by insurers Itcensed in (he Stale of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials

Date



143 The Concactor shall furnish to (he Contracting Officer
identined in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a ccrtirtcate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish (0 the Contnictirtg Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiricate(s) of
insurance for all roKwalfs) of insurance required unda this
Agreetnent no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date ofeacboftbe insurance policies. Thecertificate(i)of

and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated ber^ by refaence. Each certincate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clausf requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OfEccr id^tifted tn block 1.9, or his
or ha successor, cm less than thirty (30) days prior written
rtoiice of cancellation or cDodiftcaiion of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt frotn, the requirements of Nil. RSA chapta 281-A

Compensation'').
15.2 To the extent the'Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofK.Hi RSA chapta 281-A, Contractor shall
nmintiiin^ and rcquirc any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maitrtxin, payment of Workers' Corapens^n in
connectioo with activities which the penon proposes to
undertake pursuant to this AgreemenL Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting OfTtcer idaitified in block 1.9, or his
or ha successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
fflanoadescnbedioNil.R5Achapta28UA8nd8ny •
applicable roMwal(s) thaeoC which shall be attached and are
incorporated boein by refiereDce. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensatioo
pioniuffls or for any other claim or benefit for Contiactor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda applicable State of New Hrapshire Workers'
Compensation taws in connectioD with the perfonnance of the
Services under this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. Ho failure by the State to
enforce any provbtoss hereof afta any Event of Defoult shall
be deemed a wiiva of its ri^ts with regard to that Event of
DefiuilL or any subsequent Event of Defoult. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defiault shall be deemed a
waiva of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any funha or otha Evertt of Default
on the part of (he extractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the otba party -
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of maQing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post GfiTice addressed to the parties at tbe addresses
given in blocks 12 and 1.4, herdn.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an' instrument In writing signed
by tbe parties hereto and only alia approval of such
aroeodroent, waiva or discharge by the Govonor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no

such approval b required under tbe circunutarxes pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

Thb Agreement shall be constaied in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and b binding upon and
inures to (be benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in thb Agrcemott
b the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of coosmicuon shall be applied tgatosi or
in fovor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and thb Agreement shall not be
construed to confa any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. Tbe headings tbrou^Mut the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and tbe worth eontaioed
(boein «h*ll in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in (he imeipretation, coosizucitCQ or of the
provbiotts of thb Agrecmettt

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions act
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are mcorpcrated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provbtons of
thb Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdicikm to
be contrary to any state or fisderal law, the remaintag
provbiotts of thb Agreement will remain in foil force and
ef&ct

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may
be executed in a oumba of counterparts, each of whicb.shall
be deemed an original, constitutes tbe entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreemeois and understandings relating beieta

Page 4 of 4
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EXHIBIT A

Scope of Services

NAMl NH will provide to the New Hampshire Department Of Education, Office of Student
Wellness with the services of a Lead Family Contact to work in partnership with the awardee
staff in all levels of decision making, including the development, implementation and evaluation
of the System of Care (SOC).

A Lead Family Contact will:

> E^vide one to one support to &milies/primaiy caregivers of children and/or adolescents
with serious emotional distuihance (SED).

> Demonstrates in his/her work a commitment to the system of care values and guiding
principles.

> Deliver Parents-Meeting the Challenge Education Program (implementation, marketing
and training).

> Assess the readiness of community aitd establish Parents Meeting the Challenge Support
Groups.

> Identify, recniit family leadership candidates and connect them with a Family Leadership
Training Program.

> Recruit, provide or ensure tiaimng/orientation and support to family leaders in a role of
their choice.

> Work to eliminate stigma and end discrimination regarding mental health for all
individuals and their families.

> Serve on work groups, advisory councils and committees as^ assigned.
> Collect and analyze all data related to the position.
> Build readiness for regional System of Care implementation family voice to assigned

community planning meetings.
> Effectively outreaches and promotes education, leadership programs, and public policy

advocacy.

NAMI will be required to work collaboratively with the Office of Student Wellness, and the
System of Care evaluation team to collect and submit all SAMHSA required information.
NAMI will submit monthly invoices to the NH Department Of Education, Office of Student
Wellness.

Page lor 3 Initials
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EXHIBIT B

Budget

Item Descriptkn FY'IS

Lead FamDy Contact (LFC) Lead Family Contact to work with the FamQy
and Community Support Specialist (FCCS) staff
in all levels of decision-making, including (be
development, irtiplementation aixl evaluatiOD of
the SOC and providing support serykes for
families receiving servkes through the
cooperative agreement.

S44.990.00

Lead Family Contract Fringe Calculated at 33% SI 4,846.70

Travel/Meetings Mileage reimbursement for Lead Family
Contact estimated at 18,000 miles per year based
on hatorical aitd statewide overseeing of(3)
FCSS including North Country; and travel to the
National Conference. Mileage is reimbursed at
the GSA approved rate of O.S3S/per mile.

S9,000.a0-Local
S2,SOO.OO-National

Expenses Wiickss phone service @S90/tno for Lead
Family Contact. The wireless phone service
includes the montUy foe including data and
botspot, and initial cost of phone. In additioQ,
the LFC will have a tablet with data which will

iiKlude connectiviiy costs.

SI,620.00

Stalks Laptop for Lead Family Contact Activities,
purchase and set up.

SI ,200.00

Administrative Costs S 6.467.00

Totals S80.623.70

UmlUtton op Price: This Contract wil) not exceed S SS0,623.70

Soofce efFonding: Fundug for this contract is 100% Federal Ftmds firom the account titled System of Care
(SOQ» as follows;

Account: 06456-OS6-562010-5060000(M)72-S09073

Grants - Federal

zm
S 80^23.70

Method ef Payment:

Payment will be tnade upon the submlttal of an invoke that is received by the 10* of the following month which is
supported by a summary of activitjes that have taken place in accordance with the terms of the contracL

Atio: Mary Steady
NH Department of Education
0£Dce of Student Weltness

101 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Page 2 of 3 Initial
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EXHrorrc

(

This contract contains a provision that allows the Dq>artment to add an option to renew
for three additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery for services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Coundl.

Page 3 of 3 NUat.Date ^//y/?



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Ganlner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certily that NAM) NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a New Ham;^ire Nonprofit Corporation roistered to craosact business In New Hampshire on Sepcetnber 24.19S2.1 (lirthcr
cenify that all Tea aiKl documenu requited by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this ofTioe is concerned

Business ID: ̂2349

%

Ik

O ■w

A %
%

ty

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aflued

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 25th day of August A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State '



CERTmCATE OF VOTE
(Corporation without a Seal)

Russell Conle do hereby certify that:

(1)

(2)

1 Bzn the duly elected clerk of NAMl New Hanimhire

(3)

(4)

■ 1 .>rp.«r.i.;. ju-i

The following are true copies of the rcsc^utions duty adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on Seoterober 13.2017 .

RESOLVED: That this Corporation ester into a contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, acting through
its Department of Education.

RESOLVED; That Kenneth Norton - Executive Director ,
r.> {I-IvvrC /

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agetsy to enter into the said cootrsct with the State and to execute
and all documents, agreements and oUier lostiuments, and any aiDcodmeDts. revisions, or modifications
thereto, aa he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

The foregoing Tesolution(s) have not been amended or revoked, and remain m full force and effect as of the
1-3* davof Seoietn^.2017.

jjir-t!: »r)'' !v .«u!s -• ••''w* •• v: -

Kenneth Norton is the duly elected Executive Director of the corporation.
• lujiv M/i':• ) ti'tk •

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I.have hereunto set my hand as the Business Representative of the Corporation this
13* davof September .2017.

n.iiurv' «•»! 1. lyrk .'I Corrisr.i't.Mii>1

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF Merrimack

On September 13.2017. the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me.

In wimess whereof I hereunto set my hand and ofRcial seal.

My commission expires on:

OMMZ CEWEV, MatVyPUfc
l^GkcaSfiDa la lots

Notary Public/Justice of M PeaceI



ACORO CERTIFICATE OF UABILITY INSURANCE
OATS |iiM)oryvr«)

iaoe/20t7

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CCRTTFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS). AUTHORIZED
REPRESEMTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
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Nattonal ADIenceon MenM Cbiass

nnmi New Hampshire
Ittwaaa

MISSION & VISION STATEMENTS

Adopted 5/16/15

MISSION
NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the quality of life for all
by providing support, education and advocacy for people affected by mental illness.

VISION

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help; and health, and
are able to:

•  access the supports and evidence^ased treatment necessary for recovery.
•  have a lifespan that is not cut short by their mental U(ness or co-morbid conditions, and
•  reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discriminatibn and stigma.

Find Help, Find Hope.
NAMI New Hamp&hire • 65 North State Street • Concord. NH 03301

InfoLine: 600-242-62&4 • TeL 603-225-5359 • Fax 603-228-6848 • tnfo@n^inh.org / www.NAMINH.crg
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INDEPENDENT AUDfTOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

Report OQ the Finaocial Statcmcob

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire (a nonprofit
entity), v^icb comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,2016 and 2015, and the retated
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Moftttgemeiu's RapcnsiblUiy for the FUtancIai Stattments

■Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prcsontatbn of these rmancial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud or
error.

k udUor's ResponslbUlty
.Our resprmsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by tlie Comptroller General of the United Stales. Those standards require (hat we plan end perfonn
the audh to obtain reasonable assurance about \ihether the fmancial statei'nents arc free from material
misstatement.

' An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence obout the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevont to the
entity's preporatkm and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to desipi audit procedures
thai are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the enti^'s intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signlficanl
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suHlcicnt and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in bII material respects.
tl>e financial position of NAMI New Hampshire as of June 30. 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Olher Masters

Supplementary InformaHon

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The schedules of fimctional expenses on pages 14 and 15 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedule
of cxperulitures of federal awBrds> es required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniform Adminislrailve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reqw'rements/or Federal Awards.
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements.and certain
additional procedures. Including companng and reconciling such infonnation directly te the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in acrardance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the Umted States of America. In our opinion, the information is fiatrly stated, in ell material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government AudUingStandards

In acoorxlance with Government AudUlng Standards^ we have also issued our report dated
December 19, 2016, on our consideration of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering NAMI New Hampshire's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

P
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 19,2016 y



NAMIN&W HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSmON

For ih£ Years Ended June 30,2016 and 2015

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cftsh

Invesiments

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

2016

187,011
346.032

159371
6.970

699J84'

2015

300.451
244,177

16S.463<
H.050

721.161

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land

BuUdiag and ia^srovements
Equipment
Furniture and fUtums

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

164300
735.018

8318
604

907340

(63.988)

843.852

164,000
735.018

8.218
604

907.840
(43.498)

864.342

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS .

357.101

357.101

S 1.900,337

372.400

372.400

S 1,957,903

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Mortgage notes payable
TOTAL CURRENT UABILITIES

S  67,087
50.712

16.889

134.688

S  71361
86,636
15.570

173.467

NONCURRENT LIABDUTIES:

Mortgage notes payable
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABIUTIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

337.196

337.196

471.884

371390

371390

544,757

NET ASSETS:

Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

821

1.427.632

1.428.453

S 1,900337

115,080
1.298,066

1,413.146

S 1.957.903

See notes to/inenclei stotements
3



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30,2016 and 201S

2016 2QIS

changes in unrestricted NEt ASSETS:
Fees and grants from govenunental agencies S 1,296.647 S 1,098,761
Contributions ' ' i 153.473 238,753
NH Charitable Foundation endowment Income 8,950 8,758

Interest end dividends 17,990 11,903

Unrealiied (losses) on investments (27,160) (8,905)
in-kind donations 10,085 32.818

Fundraising events /  119.953 92,671

Training services 313,535 273,894

Membership dues 4317 6,0)3

Other revenue 28,876 30.616

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES 1.926.666 1.775382

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS:

SatUfbction of donor restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPENSES:

PROGRAM SERVICES:

CoimnuftiQ^ and Public Policy Relations
Connect Suicide Prevention Project
Public Education

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES
\

SUPPORTING SERVICES:

Management and general
' Fundraising and development

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL EXPENSES

TOTAL INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, JULY I

NET ASSETS. JUNE 30

II5.M0

115,080

2.041.746

101.998

574,894
845.463

1.522,355

214,387

175,438

3B9J2S

129,566

821

(115.080)

(114,259)

15^07

1.413.146

S  1.428.453

99.878

99.878

1.875.160

,64.967
522.156
837.862

1.424.985

122.286
202.585

324J71
1,912.180 1.749.856

125,304

115,080
(99.878)

15,202

M0,506

1.272.640

S 1.413.146

Sm »oia tojinoneld uottmtnts
A



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30.2016 and 2015

2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received ftom grants and contributions S 1.896,808 8 1,901,715

Interest Income received 17,990 11.903

Other Income received 28,876 30,616

Cash paid to employees (1.037,331) (877,680)
Cash paid to suppliers and othen - (868,508) (764,030)
tnteresi paid (11.784) (12.966)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 26.051 289.558

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTrNG ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments (113,716) (125.228)

Purchase of property and equipment (79.275)

Net Cash Used by bvesting Activities (113.716) (204.503)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVmES:
Payments on mortgage notes payable (25.775) (24.594)

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities a5.775) (24.594)

Net increase (deaease) in cash (113.440) 60,461

Cash, beginning ofyear 300.451 239,990

Cash, ending of year 8  187,01) 8  300,451

Reconciliation of Change In Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities;
Change in net assets 15^07 S

A^jostments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Net unrealized losses on Investments

Depreciation
Forgiveness of debt
Change in assets and liabilities:-
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

27.160

20.490

(7.000)

6,112

4.080
(4.174)

8.90S

14.868

67,785

1,190

11,599
44.705

26.051 289.558

Supplemental Disclosure ofNon-cash Transactions:
In-kind donations received

In-kind expenses
Forgiveness of debt /
Capitalized in-kind donations

S  10,085 S 162.818

(10,085) (22.818)
7,000

(140.000)
$  7.000 8

See notu to /inandat jtotemenis
5



NAMI NEW lUMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEmrS

For tbe Years Ended June 30,2016 end 2015

NOTE 1-SUMMARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLiaES

' Organhasien and Purpose

The National Alliance on Mental Illness, New Hampshire (NAMI New Hampshire) was founded as a
nonpront corporaion in 1982. NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots. Statewide organization of families,

consumers, professionals and other volunteers, dedicated to improving the quality of life of all people
affected by mental illness and/or serious emotional disorders through education, training, support and
advocacy.

NAMI New Hampshire'provides education for huniiies and community members to Increase awareness
end understanding of mental illness, promote research and the effectiveness of treatment and to instill
hope and belief that recovery from mental illness is possible. NAMI New Hampshire provides training
and consultation services to families, community members and providers who work with persons with
mental illness to help them better unders^d the needs of these individuals so that their services are more
cfrective end efUcient NAMI New Hampshire also works to address stigma and discrimination towards
persons with mental illness. All these activities arc carried out statewide, through a network of afHIiate
chapters, staff and volunteers that provide information, education and support to families and consumers
and to the public at large. The financial support for these programs and activities-comes from a variety
of sources that include grants from foundations, contracts, gifts, donations and membership dues.

Accounting Poiicies

The accounting poiicies of NAMI New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in (he United States of America as applicable to norv-profit entities except as indicated hereafter. The
following is a summary of significant accounting poiicies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
.958-205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Entity is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three cluses of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets, based upon the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. .

Basis of Accounting
\

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues from program services are recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.



NAMI NEW UAMPSHUU:

NOTES TO PINANCUL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Yean Eoded June 30*2016 and 2015-

Contributhns

The Entity accounts for contributions received in accordance with FASB ASC 958*605, Accomting for
Contribuiions Received and Contributions Mode. Contribudons received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existericc and/or nature of any
donor restrictions.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted
net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support Is recognized. All other
donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
rtclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Casb and Cash EiguivaUnts

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
on hand.andall highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

lavaiments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, mutual lunds, and exchange traded
fiinds, are carried at their market value at June 30,2016 and June 30, 2015. Unrealized gains and losses
on investmertts are reflected in the statement of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment ere stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entiles policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of SI,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period Incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize thc cost of related assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Yws

Building and improvements 39
Equipment . 5
Furniture and flxtures 7*10

Depreciation expense was $20,490 and SI4,868 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

notes to financial statements (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended Jane 30» 2016 and 2015

Compensated A bsenees

Full-time and part-time employees art entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward-a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, fulMime^employees will r^ive up to five days of accrued/unuscd vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to 517,334 and S 16,644 as of June 30,2016 and 201S. respectively.

Donated Services, Materlats and FaciUtles

NAMI New Hampshire receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer
e^oits, \^ile critical to the success of its mission, is not reflected in the financial statements since it does
not meet the criteria necessary for recognition according to geiierally accepted accounted principles.

Donated goods and professional services are recorded as both revenue and expense at estimated fair
value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services in support of fUndraising activities
totaling SI0,08S and 522,818 during the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015. respectively.
Additionally, the Entity was the subrecipient of a $ 140,000 federal grant (see Note 4) (hat was capitalised
in accordance with the Entity's capitalization policy during the year ended June 30,2015.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses,

The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a.
functional basis. Accordingly.^certain costs have been allocated on the statements of functional expenses
among the programs and supporting services based on percentage allocations determined by the Entity's
management.

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the cost of preparing contribution appeals, running special events, and
letters of appreciation by staff of the Entity and totaled $175,438 and ̂ 02,585 for the years ending June
30,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was 510,842 and 52,630 for the years
ending June 30,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. No allowance has been recorded as of
June 30, 2016 and 2015, because management of the Entity believes that all outstanding receivables are
fully collectible.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANaAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For tbc Years Ended Jane 30» 20]6 and 2015

Estimata

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates artd assumptions that aflect certain
reported amounts ertd disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ fiom those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Entity has received a detemiination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualiHes
for tax-exempt status under Section S01(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for any exempt function
Income. In addition, the Entity is not subject to state income taxes. Accordingly, no provision has been
mode for Federal or State income taxes.

The FASB adopted Accounting Standards CodiHcalion Topic 740 entitled Accountingfor Income Taxes
which requires the Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. 'FASB ASC
740 prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose in its financial
statements, tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity^s tax returns titat are reflected in
measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax positions taken
in a tax return and amounts recognized in the fmancial statements will generally result in an increase in a
liability for income tax payable or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or an increase irr a deferred tax
liability. The Entity does not have any material unrecognized tax benefits. As of June 30, 2016, the tax
years ending June 30, 2015. 2014 and 2013 remain subject to possible examination by major tax
jurisdictions.

Fair Vaiue of Fmancial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently shoft>term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determbed for finartcial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

NOTE 2-CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located'in New Hampshire. The
Entity's demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total
of $250,000. The Entity had $-0- and $63,240 of uninsured deposits as of June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. .

NOTE 3-rNVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements .of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820) which establishes a fiamework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended Jane 30,2016 and 2015

for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurement) and the lowest {priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The tliree levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

• Level I - Inputs to the valuation methodology ere unadjusted, quoted- prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation include:

\

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that are not acdve;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that art observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that art derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
.measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of (^servable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Cash or cash equfvolent money market mutuaJfunds: Valued at acquisition cost.

Common slocks, unit tnvesimeni equities, and fixed Income securiries: Valued el the closing price
reported on the ectivc market on which die individual securities are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate end consistent with other market participants, the use of difTerenl
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instrunients could result In
a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets at fair value:
t

Assets at Fair Value aa of June 30.2016
Level t Level2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual Ainds S 297,706 . S 297,706
Mutual fitnds 159.909 / 159.909
Exchange traded fbnds 196,823 196,823
Corporate debt securities '48.695 48.695
Total assets at fell value $_^MJ33 $ 703,133

10



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Ycars^ Ended Juno 30» 2016 and 201S

Atsetf at Fair Value a of June 30.2015

Money nxftricet mutual funds
Mutu^ fttnds
Exchange traded funds ^
■Corporate debt securities
Total assets at fair value

LeveH
$  196.572

214,369
157,735
47.901

S 616.577

UxsU Level 3 Total
$  196,572

214,369
157,735
47.901

S 616.577

Investment Valuafion andIncome Recofniiion

The Entity's investments as of June 30. 2016 and June 30, 2015 are stated at fair value. Shares of the
separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares
held by the Entity at year-end.

I

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Investments consist of money market investments, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, and corporate
debt securifies which are carried at market value (adjusted monthly). Realized and unrealiznl gains and
losses, are reflected in the Statetnents of Activities. Assets held in the investment accounts were as
follows at June 30,2016 and 2015:

Money market mutual funds
Mutual funds
Exchange traded funds
Corporate debt securities

Market Value
2016

S  297,706
159.909
196,823
48,695

$  703,133

Market Value
2015

%  196,572
214,369
157,735
47,901

S  616,577

NOTE 4-MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30,2016 and 2015, the mortgage notes payable consists of the following;

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by property, payable
in monthly installments or$2,297 including interesi ihrou^
April 2032. The variable interest rate on the note Is 5.0%
through April 2022. Thereafter, the lotertsi rate will change
to equal the 5 year Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
amortizing rate phis 3.0H. The interest rate change will not
occur more often than each five years. The balance of the
note is payable In fUll on April 2,2032.

2016 2015

S 221.085 V S 246.860

II
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended Jnne 30,2016 and 2015

S140,000 morlgfige notepayeble to the City of Concord, New
Hampshire is non^interest barring and is secured the property.
The Entity ia a subrMiptent ofConununity Developffleot Block-
Grant funds which were used to create an ADA compliant
cotnmuoiiy education space. Repayment of the funds will be
requiied in the event of noncompHance with the grant. The note
wilt be for;givcn over a period of 2Q years through December 31,
2034. 133.000

354.033

140.000

S 3»6.t«)

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30,2016;

Year Ending
-Hme 30.

2017 .

.  2018

2019

2020

2021

Thereafter

Amoum

S  16,889
17,753
18,661
19,616
20,620

260.546

S '354,085

NOTE S-TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets constsl of the following donor restricted funding at Juno 30, 2016 and
2015:

2016

NHCF grant - family support
NHCF grant - operations
Seacoast Women's Giving Circle
NIMH gram 821

821

2015

2UI9
75.000

18.761

115.080

NOTE 6-UNRESTRICTED NCT ASSETS

Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June 30,2016 and 20 IS:

Board desisted:
Investmehu held for capital improvements and debt service
Fumre building improvements

Undesignated

2016

$  357.101

60,000
1.010.531

S  1.427.632

2015

S  372.400
60,000

865.666

$  1.298.066

12
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NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the Years Ended Jane 30.2016 and 201S

NOTE 7-CONCENTRATION OF REVFJ^UE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received fron) the State of New Hampshire and
directly ftcm the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Entity
recognized revenue of $1,296,647 (67J27%)and $1,098,761 (S8.12%X respectively, from fees and grants
from govenunental agencies. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the grant contracts and
is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training services, contributions,
in-kiod donations, and other income.

NOTE 8-BENEFiaAL INTEREST IN TRUST

The EntiQr is the beneficiary of an endowment fund held by the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation.
The Eniify has no claim to the assets of the trusts, but is entitled to 4.03% of the income from the trusts.
At June 30,2016 and 20 IS, the fblr value of the Enti^'s interest in the beneficial trust held by others is
$208,501 and $226,282. respectively. The fair value is based upon the marfcet value of the underlying
investments based upon daily market information provldpd by the trust's agent. Income distributed from
the trust to the Entity is unrestricted and recognized as endowment income on the Statements of
Activities. Distributed income from the trust totaled $8,950 and $8,758 for the yean ending June 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 9-PENSION PLAN

The Entity has a deferred compensation pension plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Under the terms of (he plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan. During
the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Entity's contribution to the plan was equal to 2.0%
respectively of each eligible employee's annual salary. The Enti^ contributed $12,067 and SIO.960 for
the years ended June 30,2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE lO-CONTlNGENCIES

The Enti^ participates in a number of federally assisted grunt programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance-audits-by the grantors or their representatives. The amountsj if any, of
additional expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be deteimined at (his time,
although the EntiO' expects su^ amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE II-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 19, 2016, which is tlie dale the financial
st8temei\ts were available to be issued.

13'



NAMI NiW HAMfSHlRE

SCKEDULS or Fut«cno;«AL sxrtNSCs
Nr te y«r BiM iM M. 3014

r«»eia S«fv>eti Supportng S«rv(ca

SALARIES AHD UlATED E39ENSES:

itbAa

Eaplq^bcMflts
fl)teO«ta

OTHPtEXTENSES:

ACCBHBB(

Audh'fco

nl resiAmMp fees
CoBBiasd itmku

Olca iBvkesftiiiRlRg
Ocnipar/
Offletti^in
MdUMoee

FwMtfeil^EwM tappBcs

Feedavelics
6i^i^C9Cti fCR&l

Atfwbtag

Tdqtaw «B< CeoBBuaicsiMS
roott Bd SMppiot
S&if

rw!f>^iit np^KS

OAeapiafitim

Tetd

OowMsicj^ Comsct

•DdrvbOc Svkids TOBl Mu^dmui Ten)

rolky fmcBtioa PobGe Piopw Md Suppeniflf Teal

BtteietM fwllfM gdnotkr Stmcei Qsotol Stniert Fanmta

S W.70I S  213,456 t 491,613 5  771,770 S  154529 S  16,479 S 240,709 S 1512.479

10,196 36,415 61,941 99553 17,771 •  14599 32.769 131531

1.129 17.144 4SilO 63593 9.703 6l590 11293 79.176

7i;a6 297,015 606.164 934 505 190.703 109567 299,770 1522575

jr 2J59 2J56 5502 763 352 1,115 1417

t92 *M3 7.096 12523 924 1523 2,047 14570

214 3.961 1,799 5034 516 1543 1559 6593

17,000 307,605 52,217 376,923 5665 15570 17.735 3»«,557

Ml 11,923 59,596 79,090 901 3527 4.121 13501

197 5.460 1537 15594 1539 1541 2579 17573

1 ija 420 1,946 11515 2.774 14519 16535

IJ03 7,9(6 11,975 21,126 5643 1577 4J20 31446

39 39 17562 I75G 17500

1,047 6J73 10.433 17,952 940 1.799 2539 30.490

141 14523 14,463 3535 4.666 7531 ZZJI4

M 3J29 3547 6541 434 629 1553 7594

199 1.400 2,779 5,079 172 255 427 5505

10,137 10,127 Its 530 715 ie5tt

750 351 1,101 1552 5597 7.149 9590

2.94J 5,390 155*9 33.779 1.705 1512 2517 26596

2 2,739 259 /  2,999 1,910 1532 3542 6541

3437 XMI 29.052 67530 1 1593 1594 69.414

571 3J20 5,762 9.960 •  669 993 I5C2 1150

40 1,000 1540 755 •590 2545 10595

■ 94 »J24 3,497 4,115 1.051 5117 3.169 75tJ

S  101,999 S  574.994 S  945,463 S 1523,355 5  214517 t  175.431 S 399525 S 1512.110



HAMI new RAMTSHIRE

SCHEDULE or rUtCTlONAL EXPENSES

F«r (ht Yor bM IM 30.2015

PretfCT Sovico S«PPCTl>«oScr»fco

CooBHftit)r
•ndPvblk Soieidc Totf Mmtcsctd ' T«al

PeCiejr Ptwtntion PoUk PfiH>n tad ScppoHm Tail
RcVttieni Pwltcl EdoatfoQ Snvka Cetcnl FbimX liiifiK Scndcca Ezscma

SALAUES AKD KEU7E0 EXPENSES:

SiMa i  4i.2di S  213.623 S 496,66) 1. 733,549 $  74,014 s  97507 S  171.931 t  923.470

Eoploycc bcocflu IMS 33.269 71.391 103,732 3,434 II57I 13,403 134,127

PiyreOtwa 3.0)3 13.153 37J62
,  , ,

3.733 6566 1259s 63.443

4d.U9 366.746 603J3) 9IM]t 33.130 il6.4U 199.634 1.I1S043

OTKEX EXPENSES:
A/tZkB>faf IS) UIO 2,003 3.46S 934 760 i5»« xia

AodkCeo 433 3,474 3.612 9,331 343 1536 ^199 11,720

Upl «f Bwobiniiio fea 2S7 1.613 2J40 4.792 IJ63 IMS 3.431 7523

OMJKtCd Mf^CO •JOG 131.619 40,643 307,134 3.160 20537 23597 23653!

aka wvkciteoioiBS 13 23313 66.749 90.146 694 1.430 2.134 92570

Ocnpwry 113 7,701 10.941 19,471 U79 25*2 4.131 23592

0(BttR90Uo 63 2.762 13,393 16.419 6537 3.040 9597 26,016
lAilaiLniMA ni 6.361 13.473 23.334 1592 2543 4.133 37509

Ptfiaititotffwypto . 304 10573 11577 IIJ77

Daradslon 393 4,407 7.646 13.643 373 1530 2523 14.161

Peedi^plia 133 3.714 2517 4529 3546 10573 1)593

E^wpncHRattl 344 1.944 3.140 JJ2I 471 760 1531 6539

|>^pBBU BlkBCRBCe 666 3,644 4J7) I5t3 364 1595 2.159 10M2

Adwnldfli 1.439 1.439 210 92) 1501 2.330

PikSDS 6.130 6.130 63 3.7)2 3.793 9543

Tckotoae nd Cememtadera J.733 3,230 I2J33 30,173 2573 2552 4,127 M503

Ponp ad Sidppiii| •4 2.261 391 2,743 1514 3.713 4527 7570

SqITowspomooB 3.679 2S.090 39.714 60.433 139 3560 2.799 635S3

hamKi m 3,032 4J9I UIO 735 I.IU 1520 10530

KoMtdmppOe 439 439 4.400 17579 22579 22511

Oda opcodkurci 163 Utt 2.737 347 779 1526 4533

Too) S  64.967 S  322.136 S  137.163 S 1,434.933 3  122516 S  20LSt5 S 224571 S 1.749.136



SCHEDULE I

NAMI f^ew Hampshire
Scbedale of Espendltures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30.2016

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
Stale Agency/Grant Program/State
Grant Nuinber

DEPAKTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Received directly from VS. Treasory Ocpartaeat
Sub&tance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional
and Nsiional Signincancc
0SU79SMO6U8I-O2

lfSU79SM06U8i<03

Pass Tbroogb Paymeots from the New Hampshire Division for
Children, Youth aad Families

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional
and Nallonal Significance
1142103802

Poss Tbroogh Payments the New Hampshire Department
of Health aod Human Services

Medical Assistance'Program

M90533I6

Federal

Catalogue
Number ExoenditUfes

93.243

93.243

93.778

Total Department of Health and Homan Services

Total Espesdltores of Federal Awards

S  102,190

333.323

435.513

197.298

143.879

776.692

776.692

Passed

Through To
Subreeioicnts

S  34.633
139.077

173.710

173.710

173,710

5r< notts to schtdiHo of expendlturu offtdtrd awards
16



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30.2016

. NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule'*), presents the activity of
all federal rinancial assistance programs of NAMI New Hampshire. NAMI New Hampshire's reporting
entity is defined in Note I to the Entity's basic financial statements.

The information In this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Ftdtrd Rtguloiiona Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of NAMI New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of NAMI New Hampshire.

NOTE 2—BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in
Oflloe of Management and Budget Ciraular A-122. Cost Principles for Non-Profll Organisations, or the
cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Unform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles. OTtd Audit Requirements for Federal Awanp (Uniform GuidanceX
wherein certain types of expenditure are not allowable or art limited as to reimbursement.

NAMI New Hampshire has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis Indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3—RELATIONSHIP TO ITNANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards is Included in fees and grants from goveromental
agencies.

17
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANOAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF HNANCUL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERPfMS/^ AUDITING STANDARDS

hdeoendent Auditor's Report

To (he Boaid of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards geoeralty accdpted in the United Stales
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Covcnment Audiling Standards
issued by the Comptrolter General of the United States, the financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire
(a nonprofit entity), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30.2016 and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, end have issued our report thereon dated December 19,2016.

«  \ ,

lotenial Control Over nnanclal Reporting

(n planning and performing our audit of (he financial statements, we considered NAMI New
Hampshire's internal control over, financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances for .the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial

.statements, btit not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eHecdveness of NAMI New
Hampshire's internal control Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofNAMf
New Hampshire's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned fiincdons, to prevent,- or
detixt and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies. In internal control, such that (here is a reasonable possibility that a material miutatement of
the endty's fmancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a tjmely basis. A
sigyiificont deficiency is a deHciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control thW is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our considemtton of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
(his section end was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material vreaknesses. However, motoial weaknesses

exist thai have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance eboul whether NAMI New Hampshire's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of tavrs^ regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could.have a
direct and material effect on the determination of finttKiaJ statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompllance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Ccvernmcnt Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this rtpon is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control'oron eomplianoe. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in coitsidering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester. New Hampshire

December 19,2016
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor'a Report

To the Board of Dtrecton

NAMI New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Eacb Major Pctlcrai Program

We have audited NAMI New Hampshire's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance SuppUmenl that could have a direct and material effect on NAMI New
Hampshire's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2016. NAMI New Hampshire's m^or
fcde:^ program is identified In the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

' Management b responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its fcdural programs. '

Auditor's RespottsibUity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for NAMI New Hampshire's major
federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conduct^ our audit of compliance in accordance with audlCing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued the Comptroller General of the United States; end the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principies, and
Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that wc plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliancc
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could hav% a direct end material effect on
0 mi^or^eral program occurr^. An audit Includes exmnlning. on a test basis, evidence about NAMI
New l-tampshlre's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as wc
considered necessary In the circumstances.

Wc believe that our audit provides a reasonable basb for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit docs liol provide a legal determination of NAMI New Hampshire's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program.

In our opinion, NAMI New Hampshire complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
program for the year ended June 30.2016.
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Report on Internal Control Over Corapliance

Managetneni of NAMI 'New Hampshire Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered NAMI New Hampshire's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for its mqjor federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Unifonn Guidance, but not for the punx»c of expressing
en opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do rrot express en
opiniort on the enectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control over compliance.

A defteiency in inlernal control over compliance exists when the design or opciation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in Ihe normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal prograp) on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficienQr, or combination of denclencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance witlt a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material

weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
wiU) governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material wetnesses or signincant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses iruy exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe Che scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report b not suitable for any other purpose.

Pc.
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 19,2016
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NAMI New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings aod Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30,2016

Section ]»Snromary of Aoditor^s Results

Finenciat Stotements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over nnancial reporting:

Material weaknes5(cs) identified?
Significant dencienc)^ies) identified
ntM considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to nnancial statements noted?

Unmodifttd

_yts X no

yes

_ycs

_2g none reported

JL- no

FederalAwards ^

Internal Control over major programs:
.'Material vi«alcness(es) identified?
Significant dcflciency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance vrith
2CFR 200.516(a)?-

^cs X no
_ycs X none reported

Unmodified

yes no

Identification of major programs:

CFPA Numbcrfsl Name of Federal Program or Qoster

93.243 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects

of Regional and National Significance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B program:

Auditeo qualified as low-risk auditee?

S  750.000 ■

X  yes no

22



Section n-rFinanciAl Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Sectioo in—Federal Award Radlngs and Qoestioned Costs

There were no Hndings and questioned costs required to be reported under 2 CFR 200.S 16(a).
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NAMINH

Board of Directors

2016-2017

NAME AFRLIATION TELEPHONE

Bdcher. Frances Licensed MarriaRe & Family Therapist 603/535-3270

Bloomfietd. Lucv Licensed Massase Therapist 603/531-3700

Brown, Donna
I

Wadleijdu Starr and Peters, PLLC 603/496-8558

Bunker, John University of New Hampshire 603-862-1897

Cerloni. Dr. Stacey Greater Nashua Community Mental Health Ctr 603/727-8500

Chevrdfils, Richard AARP Link 603/224-9077

Conte, Msjor Russell New Hampshire State Police 602/m-BS06

CunninRharn, Ross Merrimack County Department of Corrections 603/398-2246

Grant, Dour Family Member 603/444-6982

Grennon, Michele Family Member 603/436^351

GrifTin, Suellen West Central Behavioral Health 603/448-0126

Janelle, Peter Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 603/493-3080

Psquette, Linda New Futures 603/225-9540

Privd. Karen Family Member 6D3/86CL6629

Richardson, Rose Merrimack County SavinRS Bank 603/491-6696

WriRhl. Michael Private Practice Attorney 60^496-2196



^nnmi New Hampshire
National AlUana on Mental lltnesa ^

Overview of the Organizetion

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the quality of life for all
by providing support, education, and advocacy for people affected by mental illness. NAMI NH
is cpmprised of a network of community*based affiliate chapters apd support groups, staff and
volunteers that provide information, education, and support to families across the lifespan and to
NH communities affected by mental illness and suicide. We envision a future where people
affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
•  access the supports and cvidcncc-based treatment necessary for recovery,
•  have a lifespan that is not cut short by their mental illness or co-morbid conditions, and
•  reach their full potential, living in their communities fnc ftom discrimination and stigma.

NAMI NH offers programs that support and educate families affected by mental illness, co-
occurring-substance use disorders, and suidde. We provide leadership opportunities for youth
and adults, and deliver mental health and suicide prevention education and trainings statewide in
community and professional settings. We advocate for removing stigma and other barriers which
impede access to mental health care and work to simplify the mental health service delivery
system in NH so it is more easily navigated by individuals with mental illness and their
caregivets. We teach and empower our members and volunteers to advocate for these important
issues. Our programs enhance the effectiveness of the work of mental health service
professionals and families.

Find Help, Find Hope.
NAMI New Hampshire • 85 North Stale Street • Concord. NH 03301

InfoUne: 800-242-6264 • Tel. 603-225-5359 • Fax 603-228-8848 • info@naminh.org / www.NAMINH.brg



NAMi New Hampshire

List of Personnel -SOC 202O-OOE

Name Title Annual Salary

Brian Hucklns Director of Children & Youth Programs $  55.500

Susan Steams Deputy Director $  86,000

Ken Norton Exectulve Director $  96,340
Patrick Roberts Program Evaluation and Improvement Coordinator $  48,925

Tammy Murray Chief Rnancfal Officer $  85,647



KENNETH NORTON

EDUCATION: UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT. Hartford. CT
MSW, December 1985. Casework Major. Groupwork Minor

UNIVERSITY OF MAINE. Orono, ME

BA, May 1980, Philosophy and Sociology - wiih High Distinction
BSW in Social Welfare from the Couocil On Social Work Education (CSWE)

CERTCFICATIO^VS; NEW HAMPSHIRE BOARD OF MENTAL HEALTH PRACTICE
UCSW - Licensed Indq}endent Clinical Social Worker. November 1995

ACADEMY OF CERTIFIED SOCIAL WORKERS

ACSW December 1987. Silver Springs, MD

EYE MOVEMENT DESENSITIZATION REPROCESSING (EMDR)
Specialized Trauma Treatment. Trained in Level 1 EMDR, Nov. 2000

WORK:

EXPERIENCE:

COMISSIONS &

COMMITTEES:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

National Alliance On Mental Illness, NAMINH, Concord NH
Statewide or^nization dedicated to improving the lives of those impacted by mental Illness and
Connect Suicide Prevention Program. Re^nsiblc for all adjects of the organization bcluding
financial, personnel, program development and implementatioa, public policy, advocacy, grant
writing and fimdraising. Reports to the Board of Directors. May 201)-present.

DIRECTOR CONNECT SUICIDE PREVENTION PROGRAM

National Alliance On Mental Illness, NAMI NH, Concord, NH
Responsible for development and implementation of (he Connect Suicide Prevention Project
including program design, community organization, and developing statewide protocols for
responding to suicide incidents. Other duties involve grant writing, marketing, conducting
trainings, providing technical assistance to military, communities, coalitions and key
stakeholders. Serve as a member of NH Suicide Prevention Council which oversees

implementation the NH Suicide Prevendon State Plaa January 2003 - May 2011.

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT
Familystrenglh, Concord. NH ,
Duties included fund-iatsing, grant writing, board development, marketing, public relations and
publishing newsletter. Other responsibilities included participaiion on agency management team
and program develc^ment. Mar^ 1999 - January 2003.

DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES/DIRECTOR OF ADULT SERVICES '

Genesis The Counseling Group, Laconia. NH
Senior managemenl position involving complete administrative and clinical responsibility for
seven programs with a combined thirty five full time staff. Programs included residential,
vocational, case management/outreach and office based treatment modalities. Responsibilities
included establish and monitor program goals, develop and implement policy and procedures,
oversee budget and personnel issues. Also supervised regional 24/7 psychiatric emergency
services program covering Belknap and Southern Graflon County. July 1997- March 1999r

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON MEDICAID MANAGED CARE:

Appointed position on twelve member commission to review and advise the Governor on the
implementation of Medlcaid Managed Care in New Hampshire. April 2012- present

STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBER
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline, Mental Health Association of New York City



Steering Committee members provide the Lifeline's primary administrators with expert giudance
on the issues thai affect the network. Members provide recommendations and advice that support
the Lifeline's mission and work to cnharrce its capacity to serve persons throughout the US who
potentially could be suicidal. October 2008-present

NATIONAL ACTION ALLIANCE FOR SUICIDE PREVENTION;

Member of the Military and Veteran subcommittee. Survivor of Suicide Loss Committee and
Sustainability Comminee examining and making recommendations for in^tlementation of the
National Strategy For Suicide Prevention November 2011- present

VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE:

AWARDS:

CONCORD HOSPITAL MEDICAL ETHICS COMMITTEE

Community member of a muJiidiscipllnary hospital ethics committee reviewing policies and
procedures as well as individuals case reviews to offer guidance and recommendations
December 2011 - present

WINNIPESAUKEE RIVER TRAIL ASSOCIATION

Member of a small steering committee that has secured over S700,000 in funding for a
Multi-use rail tp trail that parallels the WinnipesauJcce River. Assisted with community
organization, landowner negotiations, publicity, special events, grants and fimd-raising.
October 1998- present

FOUNDER.

Friends of the WInnipesaukee River, Tilton, NH.
Established environmental advocacy group for the Winnipesaukee River Watershed.
Responsibilities include: community organizing, writing press releases, lobbying at state and
local levels, attending public hearings organizing events etc. December 1987 - present.

FOSTER PARENT.

New Hampshire Division of Children Youth and Families, Laconia, NH
Licensed Foster Home. October 1997-July 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

New Beginnings - A Woman's Crisis Center, Laconia, NH.

Member of the organizational steering committee, and Board of Directors for agency serving
victims of domestic violence and sexual assault in Belknap County. Duties included grant
writing, membership development, writing press releases, fund raising, and policy de^Iopment,
served as Board Vice Chair. December 19^-April 2001.

LEADERSHIP AWARD: NH Psychiatric Society
For Leadership in service to people with mental illness May 2014

SOCIAL WORJCER OF THE YEAR: National Association of Social Workers NH Chapter
For significant contributions to the profession and society. March 2009

COIN OF EXCELLENCE: NH National Guard Adjutant Gcneral.Major Gen. Kenneth Clark
Presented for technical assistance and consultation in development of NH National Guard Suicide
Prevention Program February 2009

CASE MANAGER OF THE YEAR - NAMI NH National Alliance For The Menially 111.
For outstanding services and advocacy for individuals with mental illness and their families.
October 1991

SENIOR SKULL HONOR SOCIETY — University ofMaine for outstanding leadership,
scholarship and exemplary citizenship 1979.

REFERENCES: Available upon request.



VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE:

AWARDS;

Steering Committee members provide the Lifeline's primary adminisimtOTS with expert guidance
on the issues that affect'the network. Members provide recommendations and advice that support
the Lifeline's mission and work to enhance its capacity to serve persons throughout the US who'
potentially could be suicidal. October 2008-present'

NATIONAL ACTION ALLIANCE FOR SUICIDE PREVENTION:
Member of the Military and Veteran subcommittee, Survivor of Suicide Loss Committee and
Sustainability Committee examining and making recommendations for implemenlation of the
' National Strata For Suicide Prevention November 2011 - preset

. CONCORD HOSPITAL MEDICAL ETHICS COMMnTEE

Community member of a multidisciplinary hospital ethics committee reviewing policies and
procedures as well as individuals case reviews to offer guidance and recommendations
December 2011'present

WINNIPESAUKEE RIVER TRAIL ASSOCIATION

Member of a small steering committee that has secured over S700,000 in funding for a
.Multi-use rail to trail that parallels the Winnipesaukee River. Assisted with oooununity
organization, landowner negotiations, publicity, special events, grants and fund-raising.
October 1998-present

FOUNDER.

Friends of the Winnipesaukee River, Ulton, NH.
Established environmental advocacy group for the Winnipesaukee River Watershed.
Responsibilities include: community organizing, writing press releases, lobbying at state and
local levels, attending public hearings organizing events etc. December 1987 - present.

FOSTER PARENT.

New Hanq)shire Division of Children Youth and Families, Laconia, NH
Licensed Foster Home. October 1997-July 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

New Beginning - A Woman's Crisis Center, Laconia, NH.
Member of the organizational steering committee, and Board of Directors for agency serving
victims of domestic violence and sexual assault in Belknap County. Duties included grant
writing, niembership development, writing press releases, fund raising, and policy development,
served as Board Vice Chair. December 19^ April 2001.

LEADERSHIP AWARD: NH Psychiatric Society
For Leadership in service to people with mental illness May 2014 '

SOCIAL WORKER OF THE YEAR: National Association'of Social Workers NH Chapter
For significant contributions to the professioriand society. March'2009

COIN OF EXCELLENCE: NH National Guard Adjutant General Major Gen. Kqmcth Cbrk
Presented for technical assistance and consultation in development of NH National Guard Suicide
Prevention Program February 2009

CASE MANAGER OF THE YEAR - NAMI NH National Alliance For The Mentally 111.
For outstanding^s^ces and advocacy for individuals with mental illness and their families.
Octoba 1991

REFERENCES;

SENIOR SKULL HONOR SOCIETY - University of Maine for outstanding leadership,
scholarship end exemplary citizenship 1979.

Available upon request.



Brian S. Huckins

;

Supervisor, Long Term Services and Supports

Healthcare Professional with strong background in the development and delivery of services of proactive
care for people who need assistance with behavioral health, developmentally disabilities, and/or medically
fmil conditions. Skills include development and implementation of policies, procedures, care methods,
and care coordination. Unique understanding of broad services programs, state funding, provider network
and waivcred services for all ages of population. Well regarded for recruiting and developing staff in all
phases of care delivery including consumer outreach, service agreement development and data tracking.

Experiencj?

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) Concord, New Hampshire
NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots non-profit dedicated to improving the lives of people affected by mental
illness.

Director of ChOdren and Yontb Programs . (12/16-Fre3cnt)
Provides overall leadership for the development, iniplementation, and evalualion of services for feiruUes of children
and youth with Serious Emotional Distuii»nce (SEO).
•  Coordinates and promotes training and educational programs for children, youth and their families/caregiveis.
• Promotes the "fiamily perspective" and knowledge of SED through public presentations and professional

, trainings; provide educational materials and speak to various community groups about children's mental health
issues and NAMI NH's position on the issues.

•  Participates in programs that eliminate stigma and end discrimination r^ardtng mental health for children,
youth and their families.

•  Services all-contracts relating to the provision of mental health training which address the needs of children,
youth and their femilies.

•  Supervises the collodion and organization of statistical data for the benefit/obligation of program quality
improvement; grants and contract requirements; and assure required reports arc timely and accurate.

•  Serves as the liaison/spokesperson between NAMI NH and other organizations concerned with services to the
SED population and promote the NAMI NH brand in all venues. ^

•  In coordination with the Executive Director and CFO, develops and oversees a program budget and all relevant
grants/contracts.

• Advocates on behalf of youth with SED and their families/caregivers at local, regional and state levels by
actively participating on various committees and/or testifying at hearings.

• Represents NAMI NH and actively participate with the NH Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative and
various local, regional, state and national venues that pertain to health and mental health services for children
with SED and tl^ir families.

I

New Hampshire Healthy Families Bedford, New Hampshire
NH Healthy Families (wyvw.NHheallhvfamilies.com) is underwritten by Granite Stale Health Plan, Inc. Granite
State Health Plan is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Centene Corporation providing coordinated healthcare,
behavioral health, pharmacy, vision, and iransporlation jervicer to members in New Hampshire's Medicaid Care
Management Progyam.

LoogTerm Services and Support Care CoordiaatiooSapervisor (9/15-11/16)
Department responsibility to develop stafllng to support Long Term Services and Supports for Medicaid eligible
members. This Medicaid eligibility includes: CFI, DD, ABD, IHW, Nursing Homes and DCYF.
• Managed the High Touch Process for members .who utilized NH Medicaid waivcred services connected with

developmental disability services, elder services, and children's special medical services.
•  Participated and case presentation at weekly Medical Management Clinical Rounds for entire team, including

medical and pharmacy directors.
• Completed Home Health Service Asse^ents in member's homes in collaboration with home health service

agencies. >
• Management and documentation of cases through TruCare and CRM data systems, evaluating post discharge,

hospltalization, prior authorization and utilization review. ^



•  Participated in the development of practices and policies for submittal ofNH Medicaid state planned autism
treatment services.

• Developed the prelimina/y policies and procedures in anticipation of the start of Long Term Services and
Supports.

•  Played key role NCQA audits ensuring (hat quality standards and Feder^ Requirements are met.

START (Systemic, Therapeutic, AssessmcDt, Resources, and Treatment) Concord, New Hampshire
START fwwv/.centerfontartservices.ore) is a national initiative that strengthens efficiencies and service outcomes
for individuals with intellectual/developmental disabilities and behavioral health needs in the community.

Central Cdlaborative Team Leader and START Coordinator (4/10- 9/15)
Provided cl wca! and systematic leadoship in the development of START Services in NH. These services support
individuals who experience dcvelopmerual disabilities and co-existing behavioral health disorders.
•  Supervised NH START Coordiitator Collaborative (Concord. Manchester, Nashua and Kxcnc)..
•  FomnaUzed preventative strategies to keep individuals with developmental disabilities out of crisis, emergency

rooms and Hospital.

• Convicted health screening tools as part of work with Dartmouth Medical Center and UMass Medical Center's
ODD Clinics.

•  Established community linkages and serves as liaison to mental health, providers, local medical providers and
other community partners.

• Worked in close collaboration with the Center for START Services and (he Bureau of Developmental
Disabilities to identify systems, trainings, service and other needs and insure that the fidelity to the START
model.

•  Provided clinical and systemic leadership to the Central Collaborative.

• Chan^ioned the develt^menl of the START Center in Boscawen. NH.
•  Provided clinical tm-call support.
• Developed implementation of START Center Outreach Supports.

• Tracked monthly statistics and data regardir^ START Center residency rates.
• Wrote START Center admission and discharge plans, Comprehensive Service Evaluations and Cro» System

Crisis Plans.

New Hampshire Autism Council Concord, New Hampshire
The New Hampshii^ Council on Autism Spectrum Disorders (www. nhcoiincUonasd. ort) was created by the NH
Legislature in 2008 to coordinate sxtpports and servicesfor individuals and theirfamilies.

Chair (9rt)».8/16)
Charged with providing state-wide coordinated leadership in addressing the healthcare, education, and service
needs of individuals who ciqieriencc autism or a related disability.
•  Lead council meetings and agendas.
•  Charged with yearly report out to NH State Legislation and Governor.
• Managed grant funding.
•  Coordinated and testified for and against autism related laws in the NH State Government.
• Co-develc^)ed Connor's Law.
•  Ck)-deveiopment the NH Autism Registry.
•  Assisted in the coordination of the NH Stale Needs Assessment and State Plan for Autism.'

• Hosted annual seminar on ASD for piofiessional development to over 400 professionals.

Community Bridges Concord, New Hampshire
Community Bridges (ww^'.comntunitvbridgesnh.orc) advances the integration, growth and interdependence of
people with disabilities in their home communities in ways that promote their ability to have positive control over
the lives they have chosen for themselves.



lodividnft] ood FoxnOy Support PlanniDg SpedaUst/Snpcrvlsor (9/06- t/J 1)
Provided individual, group supervtsipo and coaching {o.case management department.
•  Eosured He-M S03 regul^ions were met by case management department.

•  JEnsured individuars Projected Service Needs (Bureau of Developmental Services) was maintained and update.
• Managed Individual budgets, requests for proposals, and formal service needs for Community Participation

Services, Supported Employment, and Residential Services.
•  Participated in decision making for allocation of funding for DD, ABD, and EHS waivers.
•  Participation and care coordination in Qinical Rounds for individuals in crisis, experiencing severe persistent

mental illness and/or forensic support needs.
•  Implemented orientaiioo/training of staff, including designing group trainings for person centered planning^

Datura! resources, service development, and respite.

Education

Granite State College
BA in Human Services, anticipated graduation 08/2017.

Workshops j
• NHLcadership'graduate, University ofNew Hampshire loslituteon Disability I
• NH Advanced Leadership graduate, University ofNew Hampshire Institute on Disability I
•  Education Advocate graduate. Parent Infonnation Center I
•  Professionallhesentations: Perspectives on Autism at the Carrier Aft Center and NH Public Radio Interview on I

Autism Awarenas Month (4/15) fhttp://nhpr.Qnz/post/diagnQses-rise-forum-expiores-perspectives-auttsml I



Patrick A. Roberts

EDUCATION

Coonsellng M.Ed. University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, May 2(X)7 to May 2009
o Overall CPA 3.83/4.0

o Relevant counework: Theory and Practice of Counseling, Psychology of Career and Personal
Development, Group Counseling, Psychological Disorders - Human Development, Society and
Culture in Counseling

Jnstice Studies University of New Hampshire, Duiham, NH, January 2005 to September 2006
o Overall GPA 3.90/4.0

o Relevant coursework: Violence in the Famil)^, Children & the Law, Organizational Leadership,
Evaluation of Social Programs, Quantitative Research Methods

Psychology and Justice Studies B.A., University ofNew Hampshire, Durham, NH, August 2001 to
May 2005
o Overall GPA: 3.42/4.0 Within Major: 3.75/4.0
o ' Relevant counework: Behavioral Analysis, Pcisonality Psychology, Abnormal Psychology,

Behavior Culture and Contemporary Society.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Cdordinator of Program Evalnation and Improvement-National Alliance on Mental Illness: New
Hampshire, Concord, NH, 2006 - Present

o Collect, enter, analyze, and manage program data
o Provide recommendations for program improvements based on evaluation results

Develop new evaluation tools
o Ensure compliance with evaluation requirements of giwts/contracts
o Conduct extensive literature reviews to support new and existing programs
o Coordinate with outside evaluators to ensure that data collection activities are in compliance with

Institutional Review Board requirements
o Participate in state wo^groups to improve the capacity of data surveillance systems

Evatuatioo Consultation - Antioch University New England Center for Behavioral Health Innovation,
2013-Present

o Collaborate on evaluation of federal grants including Garrett Lee Smith Suicide Prevention,
FAST Forward (System of Care), Safe Schools Healthy Students, and Project AWARE

o Collect and submit National Outcome Measure and Infrastructure Development, Prevention &
Mental Health Promotion data on a quarterly basis

o Develop and maintain program data dashboards
o Interface with multi-site evaluation teams for federal grants and respond to data and reporting

requests

Office Assistant -The Office of International Students and Scholars - UNH, Durham, NH, 2003-2(X)6
o Performed general administrative duties i.e.. Filing documents, data entry, preparation of

correspondence, preparation of event materials, website maintenance, etc.
o Provided information to ensure that students maintained appropriate immigration status
o Assisted with training/supervision of new staff
o Acted as International Student Orientation Leader for newly arrived international students



Resume - Patrick A. Roberts (cont'd)

RECENT PUBLICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

o Co-author: Trcmblay, O.C., Fauth, J., Erdmann, J., Roberts, P. (2015, November). Maximizing
Practitioner Utility ofData Dashboards. Paper presented at the aiuiuaj meeting of the American
Evaluation Assodation, Chicago, IL.

Patrick Roberts, MA, MEd, Coordinator ofProgram Evaluation and Improvement.
Patrick Roberts received his BA in Psychology and Justice Studies from the University of New
Hampshire in May of2005, his MA in Justice Studies from the University of New,Hampshire in
September of200i$, and his MEd in Counseling in 2009 from the University of New Hampshire. Since
September 2006 he has been employed at NAMINH. He oversees the internal evaluation and evaluation
reporting of all NAMI NH programs, and coordinates with the state and national evahiators for the NH's
.Garret! Lee Smith, FAST Forward (System of Care), Safe Schools Healthy Students, and Project
AWARE SAMHSA grants. Mr. Roberts also maintains the social media pages and wdrsites for NAMI
NH and NAMI NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Program. He is a member of the NH Research and
Evaluation Group, a special member section of the NH Public Health Association, and chairs the NH
Suicide Prevention Council Data Subcommittee.



Susan L, Stearns
Mental Health Executive Development Prt^essional

QUAUnCATlONS

Solid background in ncn<
profit development de

adminiscradon

Proven lodetship skills
and advocacy experience

Recognized expert in
development and grant

wiidr^

Excellent wdrten and oral

comiminicator

Knowledgeable in
program development and

evaluadon

Experienced working uith
boards and volunteers

Ability CO work well with
diverse individuals and

groups

Cerdfied mediator and

victim advocate

Professional

educator/trainer

Broad understanding of
abuse, poverty, disability

and fiunily issues

WORK EXPERIENCE

2016- Deputy Director, NAMI New Hampshire, Concord.

2013-2016 Director of PhiUndirvpy, NAMI New Hampshire, Concord.

2007-2013 Director of Development, Greater Nashua Mental Health
-Center at Community Council, New Hampshire.

2005-2007 Director of ProposalDevelopment, Harbor Homes. Inc.,
Nashua, New Hampshire

2004-2005 Executive Director, part-dme posidon. Digs for Success New
Hampshire, Concord.

2004-2010 7>tt£rje/,contracted part-time, Guardian Board,
Concord. New Hampshire.

2001 -2006 Director, part-time posidon, Cc^don for Family Law & Mental
Health, Dbabilides Rights Center, Concord, New Hampshire.

2000-2013 Grant Sc Marketing Writer, Independcot Conciactor.

2000-2004 Grant Writer/Development Associate, part-dme posidon.
New Hampshire Associadon for the Blind, Concord.

1998-2000 Ejrecr/iivr Director, Whole Village Family Resource Center,
Plymouth. NH.

I

1993-1998 Program Spea'alist, New Hampshire Coilidon Agiictsi
Domcsdc 6t Sexual Violence, Concord.

1988-1993 Administrative Director, Task Force Against Domesdc &
Sexual Violence, Plymouth, New Hampshire.

1986-1988 Assistant Ombudsperson, Ombuds Office, Unh'crsiiy of
Massachusetts, Amherst

EDUCATION

1986-1987 Graduate work. Consuldngde Counseling Psychology, School
of Educadon, Uah'crsity of Massachuscca. .'Nmherst

1986 B.A. in English. Universicj' of Massachusetts. AmhersL



S. L Sieams
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PUBUCATIONS

2012 Medicaid Contracts Raise Questions Galore, CM(ordMcmior^ (with H. Hafez), April 18,
htfp://www,concordmoniror.com/Rnicle/3242Qa/fnedicaid-contracta-raisg-qutttioM-plQfe.

2009 Reclaiming Our Future: A Pathvtray for Treating Co-Occurzing Mental Health and Substance Use
Disorders in Neur Hampshir^s Adolescents and YoungAdults, National Alliance on Mental Illness -
New Hampshire (primary author), www.naminh.oT^/dncuments/NAMlReglaimingQufFuture.pdf.

2008 Raising Matthew: A Mother Reflects on McdieaUng Her Son, N0
Coromunity Council of Nashua, (reprinted in Cemsh Tima,
w-ww.Eenesishh.orf/pdf/Genesis%2QTimea%20-''/p2Q2QQ9.pdfl.

2008 Comxnunity Council - The Community's Mental Health Center, Progress Edidon, Nashua Telegraph,
www.print2webcorp.com/newa/Nashuft/HealthandEducation/2008Q3Q4/p28.asp>ad=p28 «4htm'aft=«.

2007 Coming in from the Cold: Creating ̂ lutions to HotnelessnMB for People with Disabilities, K^P
Sbttt The Latest in DisobiBtf Kueanb, Adaoccay, Polity, end Prartite, (for P. Kelleher).
www.drcnh.oi^/RapSpringQ7.pdf. •

2006 Guidelines for Parents: Planning forAppropriate Care foryour Children, Coalition for Family Law dc
Mental'Holth.

2005 The Struggle for Justice: Seeking Legal Equity for Parents with Mental lUness, The Latest
in DisebiBfy Ktstonh, Adsecay, Polity, andPractite, VCmtcr Issue, w^v^v■dfcnh■Q^g/^apsheec^vintet05■pdf■

2003 Best Practice Standards for Adequate Assessment ofParenting Competency, O>alition for F'amily
Law & Mental Health. www.drcnh.org/ParentaLA53es5meni.pdf.

2003 Pointers for LegalProfessionals Regarding Family Law Issues and Parents with Physical or Mental
Illness, Coalidon for Runily Law dc Nfcntal Health, w\vw.drcnh.ofg/ParentalPointers.pdf.

1998 StaBdag:.A guide for victims. New Hampshire Coalirion Against Domestic dc Sexual Violence.

1997 Sexual Assault, A Lt^ Handbookfor Women in Any Hampshire, New Hampshire Commission on the Status
of VC omen. www.unh.cdu/wr^mens-eQmmissiQn/lepl-handbQok/5cxual-«5ault.html.

1994 Mediadon and Domestic Violence: Consideradons for Mediators and Battered Women, Hem
Hmpsbin Bar Jonmel, Vol. 35, No. 2, p. 32, June.

RECENT PROFESSIONAL ACnVITIES

Member, GoverooPs Commistioa on DianbUity, appointed by New Hampshire Gottmor Hassan (since 201Q.
Member, AMfdo/Trusreej.TaylorCommumc}', Lsconta (since 2016).

Member, Juao'ce tomhed Veterans Task Force, New Hampshire (since 2013).

Facilitator, Conh'thn 00 Mental Health Sc Justice, Hillsborough Count}- (since 2009).

Member A Past President, Board of Directors, Genesis BchaAioral Health. Laconia (^7'26l6).
Member, Criminal Justice/Mental Health Work Team,

Commission to Develop a CompreKensKrc State Mental Health Plan, Concord (3007-2D0Q.

Member, TaskForce on FamilyLaw, appointed by New Hampshire Covcmor Shaheeo (2002>2004).



TAMMY E. MURRAY, CIA

SUMMARY: Expertise \n accounting systems development, fiscal management, financial
reporting and strategic planning. Proven record of developing and Implementing financial and
operational controls that improve P&L performance. Successful track record in building strong
organizational cultures. Identifying business opportunities, and delivenng ppsitive results. Known
for ability to conceptualize and successfully implement human resource systems for sustained
business growth. Core competencies Indude:

Rnandal and strategic planning Cash flow management
Auditing arxl compliance Employee reiations
Budget development and management Business process improvement
Federal grant management Numerous accounting software programs

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE;

Chief Financial Officer NAMt New Hampshire, Concord. New Hampshire

•  Integral member of senior management team leading complex nonprofit organization with
multiple funding sources including federal and stale contracts and an affiliated structure with

-  diverse program areas delivered nationally.

• Developed and utilized forward-looking, predictivemodels and activity-based financial analyses
to provide insight into the organization's operations and business plans while managing
organizational risk.

• Reorganized accounting functions, investigated and Implemented sophisticated furxl accounting
software, and achieved balance sheet creditabiiity through proper accounting policies and
prt)cedures. '

•  Implemented controls for A/P. A/R and G/L. ensuring accuracy, consistency and compliance with
all funders requirements including the Office pf Management and Budget Uniform Administrative
requirements, cost prindples and audit requirement for federal awards.

• Achieved unqualified audit opinions, with'no material weaknesses or deficiencies during entire
tenure of position.

• Developed a financial measurement standard and developed system to monitor performance
against goals including budgeting, forecasting and business models.

•  Engaged finance committee in investrhent. and asset management, growing activities by $1M.

•  Secured Bne of credit to rrieet short term cash flow deflciendes.

• Created the organizations first finandal and human resources policies and procedures manuals.

•  and executed real estate acquisition and renovation of organization's facilities, reducing
overhead expenses and enhandng organization's visibility.

• Developed and administered employee benefits Induding 403(b) plans for all employees.

•  Identified IT system upgrade requirements to accommodate expanding growth, and compliance. -



TAMMY E. MURRAY, CIA (Cent)

RELEVANT PRIOR EXPERIENCE:

Field Operations Manager
OfficeMex, Incorporated, Cleveland. Ohb.

Senior Internal Auditor

OfTiceMax, Incorporated, Cleveland, Ohto.

Colloctlon Servicee Manager

Balfour Con^pany, Attleboro. Massachusetts.

Senior Auditor/Accountant

Balfour Company, Attleboro, Massachusetts.

Office Manager
C. Fisher Manufacturing, Smlthfietd, Rhode Island.

Staff Accountant

The Jan Companies, Cranston. Rhode Island.

EDUCATION a PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATION:

BRYANT UNIVERSITY, Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
Major Accounting

CERVFIED INTERNAL AUDITOR


